City of Coral Gables
Planning and Zoning Staff Recommendation

Applicant: 4225 Properties, LLC and 4311 Ponce de Leon, LLC

Mixed Use Site Plan Review (continued from

Applications: |, ber 8, 2014 Board meeting)

4225 and 4311 Ponce de Leon Boulevard (4311

P :

roperty Ponce)

Public Planning and Zoning Board,

Hearing - November 12, 2014, 6:00 - 9:00 p.m.,
Dates/Times/ City Commission Chambers, City Hall,

Location: 405 Biltmore Way, Coral Gables, Florida, 33134

Applications

Mixed use site plan review for the mixed use project referred to as “4311 Ponce”, as follows:

A Resolution of the City Commission of Coral Gables, Florida requesting mixed use site plan review
pursuant to Zoning Code Article 4, “Zoning Districts”, Division 2, “Overlay and Special Purpose
Districts”, Section 4-201, “Mixed Use District (MXD)” for the mixed use project referred to as
“4311 Ponce” on the property legally described as Lots 36-43 , Block 5, Industrial Section (4225
and 4311 Ponce de Leon Boulevard), Coral Gables, Florida; including required conditions; providing
for an effective date.

Mixed use site plans require review and recommendation by the Planning and Zoning Board and City
Commission at one (1) public hearing (via Resolution).

Continuance of Application

This item was continued at the Planning and Zoning Board’s 10.08.14 meeting in order to allow the
Applicant to address unresolved issues that were identified in Staff’s report. The Applicant has chosen not
to revise the proposed project, so the plans and application package provided with this Staff report is the
same as those submitted and presented at the Board’s 10.08.14 public hearing. Minutes from the
10.08.14 Board meeting are provided as Attachment A.

The unresolved issues that were identified are as follows:

1. Application does not comply with Zoning Code requirements for building setbacks/stepbacks.
Application must comply with one (1) of the following in order to meet the requirements of the
Zoning Code for setbacks/stepbacks for mixed use projects:
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a. Provide the minimum ten (10) foot front setback for the entire building along the front
property line (Ponce de Leon Blvd). A minimum front setback of ten (10) feet is required
for buildings over forty-five (45) feet in height; or

b. Comply with Zoning Code Section 4-201.E.15 for setback reductions. Applicant may
provide zero (0) foot setbacks on all sides if vertical building stepbacks of a minimum of
ten (10) feet are provided at a maximum height of forty-five (45) feet on all building
facades.

Currently, the project proposes a zero (0) foot front setback and 93’-7” building height, and does
not provide a stepback on all building facades.

2. Comments have been provided by the City’s Public Works traffic consultant regarding the
submitted Traffic Study that have not yet been resolved. Those issues are itemized in this Staff
report.

3. Comments have been provided by the City’s Public Service Director regarding proposed
landscaping that have not yet been resolved. Those issues are itemized in this Staff report.

4. Zoning Code Section 3-302(D) requires all applicants filing applications requiring a public hearing
before the Planning and Zoning Board conduct a minimum of one (1) public information meeting,
a minimum of fourteen (14) days in advance of the Planning and Zoning Board public hearing. The
Applicant was notified of that requirement in the 04.25.14 comment memo provided when the
project was reviewed by the Development Review Committee (DRC). The Applicant has not
provided evidence that the resident’s meeting has been conducted.

Staff comments: Since the proposed plans for the project were not revised, the project still does not
comply with the requirements of the Zoning Code as identified in Item No. 1. Items No. 2 and No. 4 have
been resolved. The comments provided by the Public Works Department regarding the Traffic Study
have been satisfactorily addressed, and the Applicant held the required residents” meeting on 10.29.14.
The Applicant provided responses to the comments concerning the landscaping identified in Item No. 3,
and has proffered conditions that are acceptable to the Public Service Director. Those conditions are
itemized in this Staff report, and would only be necessary if the Board recommends in favor of the
Application.

City attorney comments: It is the City Attorney’s opinion that the history of review and approvals of this
project since 2008 may be considered by the members of the Board as it applies to this specific request,
including because there has been a claim of reliance upon them that will be raised by the Applicant. To
the extent these earlier actions and decisions are inconsistent with the present interpretation as to
these matters, they will not apply going forward for other projects, as those projects should rely on the
present interpretation. The City Attorney will be present at the meeting to provide his analysis and
opinion on this subject.

Summary of Application

4225 Properties, LLC and 4311 Ponce de Leon, LLC, owners (hereinafter referred to as the “Applicant”),
has submitted an application (hereinafter referred to as the “Application”) for mixed use site plan review
for consideration at public hearings for the mixed use project referred to as “4311 Ponce” pursuant to and
in accordance with the City of Coral Gables Zoning Code Mixed Use District (MXD) provisions. The
Applicant has chosen not to revise the proposed project, so the plans and application package provided
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with this Staff report are the same as those submitted and presented at the Board’s 10.08.14 public
hearing. The 10.08.14 application package is provided as Attachment B.

This property is located within the City’s North Industrial Mixed Use Overlay District on the northeast
corner of the intersection of Ponce de Leon Boulevard and San Lorenzo Avenue, and is 0.46 acres (20,035
sq. ft.) in size. The property is bounded by Ponce de Leon Boulevard (west), SW 39" Avenue (east) and
San Lorenzo Avenue (south). A one (1) story commercial building adjoins the property to the north. The
“Village of Merrick Park” is located across Ponce de Leon Boulevard to the west and across San Lorenzo
Avenue to the south. A mid-rise commercial office building which faces onto San Lorenzo Avenue is
located across SW 39" Avenue to the east. There are one (1) story commercial buildings and surface
parking currently on the site. The property has “Commercial Mid-Rise Intensity” land use and Commercial
District (C) zoning designations, which are appropriate designations for the proposed mixed use project.

The project consists of an eight (8) story/93’-7” building containing a total of 55,178 sq. ft., consisting of
11,457 sq. ft. of retail on the ground floor, 24,133 sq. ft. of commercial office space on the 5" and 6"
floors, and eight (8) two story, two bedroom residential units on the 7" and 8" floors. There are 145
parking spaces proposed on three (3) garage levels above the ground floor, including eight (8) mechanical
lifts. A total of 144 parking spaces are required, as indicated within the application package.

Resolution No. 2008-38 (adopted on 03.11.08) approved a mixed use project on this property also known
as “4311 Ponce”. The current site is slightly larger, with the addition of a 5,000 square foot parcel (Lots 36
& 37) adjoining the site to the north. The previously approved project consisted of a seven (7) story / 83’-
6” high building with a penthouse (to 95’-6” height) containing 46,150 square feet of primarily commercial
office space with ground floor retail, four (4) live/work residential units and three (3) floors of parking.
There were 182 parking spaces provided (24 spaces more than required by Code), with 83 of those spaces
being mechanical lifts. Conditions of approval were required for the project and are listed in the adopting
resolution. A copy of that resolution is included with the application package (see Attachment B). The
previously approved mixed use project was not constructed, and the proposed project has now been
submitted for public hearing review.

The property is bounded by Ponce de Leon Boulevard (west), SW 39" Avenue (east) and San Lorenzo
Avenue (south), as shown on the following location map and aerial photo:
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Block, Lot and Section Location Map

PONCE DE LEON BD
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Site Data and Project Timeline

Site Data and Surrounding Uses

The following tables provide the subject property’s designations and surrounding land uses

Existing Property Designations

Land Use Map designation

Zoning Map designation

Mixed Use Overlay District (MXOD)
Mediterranean Architectural District
Coral Gables Redevelopment Infill District

Commercial Mid-Rise Intensity
Commercial District (C)
Yes - North Industrial MXOD

Yes - Mandatory Mediterranean Architecture Style
Yes

Surrounding Land Uses

Location Existing Land Uses CP Designations Zoning Designations

North 1 story commercial building Commercial Mid-Rise Commercial District (C)
Intensity

South The Village of Merrick Park Industrial Industrial District (1)

East Mid-rise commercial office Industrial Industrial District (1)

building and City of Miami

West The Village of Merrick Park Commercial Mid-Rise Commercial District (C) &

Intensity & Industrial Industrial District (1)

The Applicant proposes no changes to the property’s existing land use and zoning designations, as
illustrated in the following maps:

Existing Land Use Map

Existing Zoning Map
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City Review Timeline

The proposal has undergone the following City reviews:

Type of Review Date Result of Review
Development Review Committee 04.25.14 Comments provided to Applicant
Board of Architects 06.12.14 Preliminary approval and approval of
Mediterranean architectural bonuses
Planning and Zoning Board 10.08.14 Continued to 11.12.14 meeting
Planning and Zoning Board 11.12.14 | TBD
City Commission (Resolution — MXD site plan) 11.18.14 | TBD

Proposed Mixed Use Project

Legislative History

A mixed use project also referred to as “4311 Ponce” was previously approved on this property. That
project consisted of a seven (7) story / 83’-6” high building with a penthouse (to 95’-6” height)
containing 46,150 square feet of primarily commercial office space with ground floor retail, four (4)
live/work residential units and three (3) floors of parking. There were 182 parking spaces provided (24
spaces more than required by Code), with 83 of those spaces being mechanical lifts. The following
resolution was approved for that project (copy of resolution provided in Attachment B):

1. Resolution No. 2008-38 (adopted 03.11.08) — Approved mixed use site plan with conditions,
which are listed in the adopting resolution.

Proposal — Mixed Use Project
The Application package submitted by the Applicant (see Attachment B) includes the following:

1) Cover letter;

2) Application;

3) Survey of property;

4) Aerial and site photos;

5) Architectural plans and elevations;

6) Landscape plan;

7) Utility relocation plan;

8) Lighting plan;

9) Sign master plan;

10) Concurrency impact statement;

11) Public school preliminary concurrency analysis;
12) Background — Resolution No. 2008-38;
13) Historical Significance Letter; and,
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14) Traffic study executive summary.

Mediterranean Architectural Style

Mediterranean architectural style is required for mixed use projects located within a Mixed Use Overlay

District (MXOD). The proposed project received preliminary approval which included Mediterranean

architectural style approval from the Board of Architects on 06.12.14.

A summary of the project is provided in the Applicant’s Zoning Data Sheet submitted with the

Application and is presented in the following tables.

Site Plan Information:

Type

Permitted

Proposed

Total site area

20,035 sq. ft. (0.46 acres)

3.5 FAR x total site area

70,123 sq. ft.

Total square footage of building

55,178 sq. ft.

Retail square footage

11,457 sq. ft.

Office square footage

24,133 sq. ft.

Building height Up to 100°-0” 93'-7”
Number of floors No limitation 8 floors
Residential unit total No density limitations (units/ 8 units
acre) within a designated MXOD

Residential unit mix:

One bedroom N/A

Two bedroom 8 units

Three bedroom N/A

Parking:
Off-street (onsite) parking
Uses Required Proposed

Residential units 16 spaces 16 spaces
Retail use 46 spaces 46 spaces
Office use 82 spaces 82 spaces
Total on-site project parking 144 spaces 145 spaces
Additional parking provided 1 space

There are currently two (2) on-street parking spaces adjacent to the property along San Lorenzo Avenue.
The Parking Director has determined there will be a loss of one (1) on-street parking space. As a result,
the Applicant, property owner(s), its successors or assigns, shall be required to reimburse the City for the
costs associated with the loss of on-street parking in accordance with City requirements.
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Development Review Committee Zoning Review

A zoning review was prepared by the Planning and Zoning Division based on the project application
submittal for the Development Review Committee (DRC) and is provided in Attachment B.

Setbacks/Stepbacks:
The proposed Application does not comply with the Zoning Code requirements for building

setbacks/stepbacks. The Application must comply with one (1) of the following in order to meet the
requirements of the Zoning Code for setbacks/stepbacks for mixed use projects:

1. Provide the minimum ten (10) foot front setback for the entire building along the front property
line (Ponce de Leon Blvd). A minimum front setback of ten (10) feet is required for buildings over
forty-five (45) feet in height.

2. Comply with Zoning Code Section 4-201.E.15 for setback reductions. Applicant may provide zero
(0) foot setbacks on all sides if vertical building stepbacks of a minimum of ten (10) feet are
provided at a maximum height of forty-five (45) feet on all building facades.

Currently, the project proposes a zero (0) foot front setback with a height of 93’-7”. The minimum
ten (10) feet stepback at a maximum height of forty-five (45) feet on all building facades has not
been provided.

Setbacks:
Type Required* Proposed
Front setback (Ponce de Leon Boulevard) Ten (10) feet Zero (0) feet
Side street setback (San Lorenzo Avenue) Fifteen (15) feet Fifteen (15) feet
Interior side setback (north) None Zero (0) feet
Rear setback (SW 39" Avenue) None Zero (0) feet

* Setback reductions may be awarded for MXD projects approved for Mediterranean style design bonuses. Setback reductions
are only permitted for MXD projects subject to providing vertical building stepbacks.

Stepbacks:
Type Required* Proposed

Front (Ponce de Leon Boulevard) 0’-0” up to 45’ and Complies for

10”-0" over 45’ habitable space
only

Side street (San Lorenzo Avenue) 0’-0” up to 45’ and None — does not
10”-0" over 45’ comply

Interior side (north) 0’-0” up to 45’ and None — does not
10”-0’ over 45’ comply

Rear (SW 39t Avenue) 0’-0” up to 45’ and None — does not
10”-0’ over 45’ comply

* Vertical building stepbacks are required for MXD buildings when setback reductions are requested.
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Landscaping:
Location Required Provided
Landscape open space (on-site) Must comply with ZC Section | Must comply at time of final
5-1104 A 1 thru 11 plan review
Landscape open space (rights-of-way) Must meet City Streetscape Must comply at time of final
Master Plan requirements plan review

The Applicant’s proposed ground floor plan, landscape plan, and building elevations are provided on the
following pages.
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West (Ponce de Leon Boulevard) Building Elevation
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South (San Lorenzo Avenue) Building Elevation
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East (SW 39" Avenue) Building Elevation
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North (LeJeune Road) Building Elevation
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Findings of Fact

This section of the report presents City Staff’s evaluation of the Application and Findings of Facts. The
City’s responsibility is to review the Application for consistency with the City’s Comprehensive Plan (CP)
Goals, Objectives and Policies and compliance with the Zoning Code and City Code.

Findings of Fact - Mixed Use Site Plan
Mixed Use District (MXD) Purpose and Objectives

The current Zoning Code and Comprehensive Plan mixed use provisions were adopted in 2004 and
updated/revised as a part of the Zoning Code and Comprehensive Plan rewrite. The Zoning Code and
Comprehensive Plan provides for a designated North and South Industrial Mixed Use Overlay District
(MXOD) geographic area. The MXOD was created to encourage mixed use development that specifically
provided for residential development which was previously not a permitted use within the City’s
Industrial District. The regulations are voluntary and property owners who choose to develop under
these regulations are required to undergo conditional use site plan review.

Zoning Code, Division 2, Overlay and Special Purpose Districts, Section 4-201, “Mixed Use District -
Purpose” provides for the following:

“1. Provide the method by which tracts of land may be developed as a planned unified project
rather than on a lot-by-lot basis as provided for in the City’s other regulations.

2. Provide for residential uses at higher densities in exchange for public realm improvements.

3. Provide maximum design freedom by permitting property owners an opportunity to more
fully utilize the physical characteristics of the site through modified development regulations
and the planned mixing of uses.

4. Require that property within the District will be developed through a unified design
providing continuity among the various elements causing a better environment.

5. Create a diversity of uses within walking distance, including but not limited to: residential,
offices, workplaces, neighborhood commercial, and public open spaces.

6. By organizing appropriate building densities, public transit will be further strengthened as
an alternative to the use of private vehicles.

7. Provide a strong emphasis on aesthetics and architectural design through the use of the
regulations and the planned mixing of uses to establish identity, diversity and focus to
promote a pedestrian friendly environment.”

Staff comments: The compliance of the Applicant’s plans with the mixed-use requirements and
performance standards set out in Zoning Code Section 4-201 (D) through (M) has been evaluated and is
provided in the DRC Zoning Review prepared by the Planning and Zoning Division provided in
Attachment B. That analysis determined that the proposal does not satisfy the Code’s minimum
requirements for a mixed use project. The proposed project does not meet the requirements for
building setbacks/stepbacks.
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Conditional Use Review Criteria

Zoning Code, Division 4, Conditional Uses, Section 3-404, General Procedures for Conditional Uses
summarizes the procedures for the review of a Conditional Use application:

“1. Provide a report that summarizes the application, including whether the application
complies with each of the standards for granting conditional use approval in Section 3-408.

2. Provide written recommended findings of fact regarding the standards for granting
conditional use approval in Section 3-408.

3. Provide a recommendation as to whether the application should be approved, approved
with conditions, or denied.

4. Provide the report and recommendation, with a copy to the applicant, to the Planning and
Zoning Board for review.

5. Schedule the application for hearing before the Planning and Zoning Board upon completion
of the Board of Architect’s review.

6. Provide notice of the hearing of a conditional use application before the Planning and Zoning
Board in accordance with the provisions of Article 3, Division 3 of these regulations.

7. Schedule and provide notice before the City Commission of a conditional use application in
accordance with the provisions of Article 3, Division 3 of these regulations.”

Zoning Code, Division 4, Conditional Uses, Section 3-406, “Planning and Zoning Board Recommendation”
states that the Planning and Zoning Board shall review applications for conditional use (site plan review)
and provide a recommendation to the City Commission whether they should grant approval, grant
approval subject to specific conditions or deny the application. The Zoning Code specifically states “the
Planning Department, Planning and Zoning Board and City Commission may recommend such conditions
to an approval that are necessary to ensure compliance with the standards set out in Zoning Code,
Division 4, Conditional Uses, Section 3-408, “ Standards for Review.“

Planning Staff’s review of the criteria set out in Section 3-408, “Standards for Review” is as follows
(italics indicate Zoning Code verbatim text):

A. “The proposed conditional use is consistent with and furthers the goals, objectives and policies of the
Comprehensive Land Use Plan and furthers the purposes of these regulations and other City
ordinances and actions designed to implement the Plan.”

Staff comments: As concluded in this report, this Application is “consistent” with the CP’s Goals,
Objectives and Policies, except for Policy DES-1.1.5 which addresses bulk and massing of the
proposed development. The Industrial District encompasses a large area that is served by numerous
residential, commercial, retail and office uses. The area is served by the Coral Gables Trolley and
regional Miami-Dade Metrorail station.

B. “The available use to which the property may be put is appropriate to the property that is subject to
the proposed conditional use and compatible with existing and planned uses in the area”.

Staff comments: The subject property is located within the MXOD North Industrial District which
allows for the voluntary development of this property as a mixed use project with residential units.
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There are existing mixed use projects in the area, and others are being planned and under
construction. The utilization of the site as a mixed use project is consistent with the property’s
existing “Commercial Mid-Rise Intensity” land use and Commercial District (C) zoning designations.

C. “The proposed conditional use does not conflict with the needs and character of the neighborhood
and the City”.

Staff comments: The subject property is surrounded by properties with commercial and industrial
land use designations, and is located between the “Village of Merrick Park” and an existing mid-rise
commercial office building. Leleune Road, Bird Road and Ponce de Leon Boulevard serve as arterial
transportation corridors and physical boundaries for the Industrial District. The redevelopment of
this property as a mixed use project provides additional multi-family residential units to residents of
the City, and the creation of a pedestrian oriented urban environment in the North Industrial MXOD.
The ground floor pedestrian uses included in the project shall enhance the redevelopment of the
Industrial District.

D. “The proposed conditional use will not adversely or unreasonably affect the use of other property in
the area.”

Staff comments: The existing Village of Merrick Park is adjacent to this site to the west and south,
and an existing mid-rise commercial office building is located to the east of the project. These
developments include residential, retail and office uses, which are similar to the proposed mixed use
project. The Applicant’s proposal is consistent with the underlying CP designation. The proposed
project does not comply with Zoning Code’s required building setback/stepback for a mixed use
development, which is intended to reduce the project’s impact on adjacent properties and protect
the general health and welfare of surrounding tenants and rights of adjacent property owners.
Conditions of approval are recommended that mitigate potential negative impacts created during
construction, and after the project has been completed. These include conditions that require the
provision of a construction staging and service plan during construction, address parking and parking
circulation, and the provision of public realm/landscaping improvements and streetscape
improvements.

E. “The proposed use is compatible with the nature, condition and development of adjacent uses,
buildings and structures and will not adversely affect the adjacent uses, buildings or structures”.

Staff comments: The planned redevelopment of this property as a mixed-use project does not
comply with the Zoning Code’s MXOD provisions, as it does not provide the building
setback/stepback which is intended to reduce the project’s impact on adjacent properties. The
height of the project is 93’-8”, which is similar in height to other developments located near this
property.

F. “The parcel proposed for development is adequate in size and shape to accommodate all
development features.”

Staff comments: The subject property is larger than the minimum 10,000 square foot size for a mixed
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use project within an approved MXOD. The Planning and Zoning Division’s DRC Zoning Review
indicates the project does not meet all Zoning Code requirements and design criteria (see
Attachment B).

G. “The nature of the proposed development is not detrimental to the health, safety and general welfare
of the community.”

Staff comments: Commercial and industrial zoned properties surround the project site, and the
height of the project is consistent with the property’s underlying “Commercial Mid-Rise Intensity”
land use designation. The proposed project does not comply with Zoning Code’s required building
setback/stepback for a mixed use development, which is intended to reduce the project’s impact on
adjacent properties and protect the general health and welfare of surrounding tenants and rights of
adjacent property owners.

H. “The design of the proposed driveways, circulation patterns and parking is well defined to promote
vehicular and pedestrian circulation.”

Staff comments: All vehicular parking for the project is accessed from a single curb cut located on San
Lorenzo Avenue, away from the primary pedestrian street frontage along Ponce de Leon Boulevard.
All service access is located along the rear of the building, and is physically separated from
pedestrian circulation around the perimeter of the project. Conditions of approval are recommended
to assure that adequate service access is provided during the construction of the project.

I.  “The proposed conditional use satisfies the concurrency standards of Article 3, Division 13 and will
not adversely burden public facilities, including the traffic-carrying capacities of streets, in an
unreasonable or disproportionate manner”.

Staff comments: The proposed project was reviewed by the Zoning Division for concurrency, and the
Concurrency Impact Statement (CIS) issued by the Zoning Division for the project indicates that there
is adequate infrastructure available to support the project. The CIS is included within the Applicant’s
submittal package provided as Attachment B.

Traffic Study

The Public Works Department and their consultant reviewed the Applicant’s proposed plans, and all
issues identified regarding the submitted Traffic Study have been satisfactorily addressed.

Proposed Landscaping

The proposed project has been reviewed by the Public Service Director, who identified the following
issues regarding the proposed landscaping:

1. Since the existing driveway is being removed, the existing curb cut and driveway apron needs to
be removed, replaced with a vertical curb, and landscaped with irrigation to match the existing

streetscape.
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2. Planting bulb outs may be required at the alleyway and parking garage entrance on San Lorenzo
Ave.

3. Some form of landscape needs to be incorporated on the street level in the alleyway. i.e.
Creeping Fig growing on the walls, trellis structures with vines, etc.

4. Are the overhead wires in the alley way being relocated underground?

5. The balconies on levels five and six, particularly the east facing ones, need to have planters and
irrigation incorporated into them since they face the blank wall of the adjacent building.

6. Consider screening the exposed parking on level four from the view of level five above.

7. The Residential Outdoor Plaza on level seven is confusing as to its purpose and functionality.
What is the intended program/use for this vast covered area? More landscape should be
considered to help define the space and enhance the functionality for the residents.

The Applicant and the Public Service Director have met to discuss these comments. They have agreed
that conditions could be required which would satisfactorily address these issues. These conditions
would only be necessary if the Board recommends in favor of the Application. The six (6) conditions that
were agreed to are as follows:

1. Existing curb cuts and driveway aprons will be removed, replaced with a vertical curb, and
landscaped with irrigation to match the existing streetscape.

2. Subject to review and coordination with the Public Works and Public Service Departments,
landscaping, possible including bulb-outs, will be provided at the entrances to the alley and
parking garage.

3. Subject to City approval of the right-of-way encroachment and Public Service and Public Works
review, an 8”-12” planting area with irrigation along the base of the building fronting the ally
shall be provided.

4. Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the Applicant shall provide for screening of the 4™ level
parking area which is visible from the 5™ level.

5. Prior to the issuance of a building permit and once the tenant mix is better established, a
landscape program shall be provided for the outdoor plaza on the 7" level.

6. Since there is no tree canopy proposed within the property at the ground level, prior to the
issuance of a building permit, a plan for small trees and/or palms on balconies, rooftops, and/or
amenity decks need to be provided.

Concurrency Management

This project has been reviewed for compliance with the City’s Concurrency Management program. The
Concurrency Impact Statement (CIS) for the project indicates that there is adequate infrastructure
available to support the project. The CIS is included within the Applicant’s submittal package provided in
Attachment B.

Public School Concurrency Review

Pursuant to the Educational Element of the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Article 3, Division 13 of the
Zoning Code, and State of Florida growth management statute requirements, public school concurrency
review is required prior to final Board of Architects review for all applications for development approval in
order to identify and address the impacts of new residential development on the levels of service for public
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school facilities. For a residential development to secure a building permit, adequate school capacity
must be available or scheduled to be under actual construction within three years of the final approval.
If capacity is not available, the developer, school district and affected local government must work
together to find a way to provide capacity before the development can proceed. A letter was received
from the Miami-Dade County Public School Board dated 08.27.14 stating the proposed project had been
reviewed and that the required Level of Service (LOS) standard had been met at all three school levels
and that school capacity has been reserved for a period of one year. A copy of that letter is included in
the submitted application package provided in Attachment B.

Art in Public Places Program

The plans submitted with the Application package indicate the proposed location for public art intended
to satisfy the City’s Art in Public Places program. The proposed art work is in the form of vertical topiary
art walls depicted on the west elevation (Ponce de Leon Blvd), south elevation (San Lorenzo Ave), and
east elevation (SW 39t Ave) of the architectural building elevations provided in the applicant’s submittal
package (Attachment B). The Applicant must comply with all City requirements for Art in Public Places,
which will include having the proposed artist and concept reviewed by the Arts Advisory Panel and
Cultural Development Board, and obtain Board of Architects approval before being submitted to the City
Commission. This requirement has been included as a recommended condition of approval.

Consistency Evaluation of the Comprehensive Plan (CP) Goals, Objectives
and Policies

This section provides those CP Goals, Objectives and Policies applicable to the Application and the
determination of consistency:

et CP Goal, Objective and Policy St?ff
Ho- Review

1. | Goal FLU-1. Protect, strengthen, and enhance the City of Coral Gables as a vibrant | Complies
community ensuring that its neighborhoods, business opportunities, shopping,
employment centers, cultural activities, historic value, desirable housing, open
spaces, and natural resources make the City a very desirable place to work, live and

play.

2. | Objective FLU-1.1. Preserve Coral Gables as a “placemaker” where the balance of | Complies
existing and future uses is maintained to achieve a high quality living environment by
encouraging compatible land uses, restoring and protecting the natural environment,
and providing facilities and services which meet or exceed the minimum Level of
Service (LOS) standards and meet the social and economic needs of the community
through the Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Classifications and Map (see
FLU-1: Future Land Use Map).

3. | Objective FLU-1.2. Efforts shall continue to be made to control blighting influences, | Complies
and redevelopment shall continue to be encouraged in areas experiencing
deterioration.

4. | Policy FLU-1.7.1. Encourage effective and proper high quality development of the | Complies
Central Business District, the Industrial District and the University of Miami
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i CP Goal, Objective and Policy St?ff
No. Review

employment centers which offer potential for local employment in proximity to
protected residential neighborhoods.

5. | Policy FLU-1.7.2. The City shall continue to enforce the Mediterranean architectural | Complies
provisions for providing incentives for infill and redevelopment that address, at a
minimum, the impact on the following issues:

e Surrounding land use compatibility.
e Historic resources.

e Neighborhood Identity.

e Public Facilities including roadways.
e Intensity/Density of the use.

e Access and parking.

e landscaping and buffering.

6. | Policy FLU-1.9.1. Encourage balanced mixed use development in the central business | Complies
district and adjoining commercial areas to promote pedestrian activity and provide
for specific commitments to design excellence and long term economic and cultural
vitality.

7. | Objective FLU-1.11. Maintain a pattern of overall low density residential use with | Complies
limited medium and high density residential uses in appropriate areas to preserve the
low intensity and high quality character of the residential neighborhoods.

8. | Goal DES-1. Maintain the City as a livable city, attractive in its setting and dynamic in | Complies
its urban character.

9. | Objective DES-1.1. Preserve and promote high quality, creative design and site | Complies
planning that is compatible with the City’s architectural heritage, surrounding
development, public spaces and open spaces.

10. | Policy DES-1.1.3. Ensure that the design of buildings and spaces in historic areas of | Complies
the City complements, is compatible with, does not attempt to imitate and does not
undermine the City’s historic character.

11. | Policy DES-1.1.5. Promote the development of property that achieves unified | Does not comply
civic design and proper relationship between the uses of land both within | (see following
zoning districts and surrounding districts, by regulating, limiting and | staff comments
determining the location, height, density, bulk and massing, access to light for issues)
and air, area of yards, open space, vegetation and use of buildings, signs and
other structures.

12. | Policy DES-1.1.6. Maintain the character of the residential and nonresidential | Complies
districts, and their peculiar suitability for particular uses.

13. | Policy DES-1.2.1. Continue the award of development bonuses and/or other | Complies
incentives to promote Coral Gables Mediterranean design character providing for but
not limited to the following: creative use of architecture to promote public realm
improvements and pedestrian amenities; provide a visual linkage between
contemporary architecture and the existing and new architectural fabric; encourage
landmark opportunities; and creation of public open spaces.

14. | Policy DES-1.2.2. Require that private development and public projects are designed | Complies

consistent with the City’s unique and historical Mediterranean appearance in balance
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et CP Goal, Objective and Policy St?ff
o Review

with contemporary architecture.
15. | Objective DES-1.3. Encourage high quality signage that is attractive, appropriately | Complies
located and scaled, and balances visibility with aesthetic needs.
16. | Objective HOU-1.5. Support the infill of housing in association with mixed use | Complies
development.
17. | Policy HOU-1.5.2. Encourage residential mixed use as a means of increasing housing | Complies
supply within the Downtown/Central Business District/Mixed Use Development
Overlay Area, thereby promoting increase in commercial and retail activity, increased
use of transit, reduction of auto dependency, in association with minimizing visual
and physical impacts of nearby lower density areas.
18. | Objective MOB-1.1. Provide solutions to mitigate and reduce the impacts of vehicular | Complies
traffic on the environment, and residential streets in particular with emphasis on
alternatives to the automobile including walking, bicycling, public transit and vehicle
pooling.
19. | Policy MOB-1.1.1. Promote mixed use development to provide housing and | Complies
commercial services near employment centers, thereby reducing the need to drive.
20. | Policy MOB-1.1.2. Encourage land use decisions that encourage infill, redevelopment | Complies
and reuse of vacant or underutilized parcels that support walking, bicycling and public
transit use.
21. | Policy MOB-1.1.3. Locate higher density development along transit corridors and | Complies
near multimodal stations.
22. | Policy MOB-1.1.5. Improve amenities within public spaces, streets, alleys and parks | Complies
to include the following improvements: seating; art; architectural elements (at street
level); lighting; bicycle parking; street trees; improved pedestrian crossing with bulb-
outs, small curb radii, on-street parking along sidewalks, pedestrian paths and bicycle
paths to encourage walking and cycling with the intent of enhancing the feeling of
safety.
23. | Policy MOB-1.1.8. Protect residential areas from parking impacts of nearby | Complies
nonresidential uses and businesses and discourage parking facilities that intrude,
impact and increase traffic into adjacent residential areas.
24. | Policy MOB-2.8.1. The City shall continue implementation and further strengthen the | Complies
City’s existing land development regulations requiring the placement of landscaping
within rights-of-way to complete the following:
e Promote expansion of the City’s existing tree canopy.
e Provide screening of potentially objectionable uses.
e Serve as visual and sound buffers.
e Provide a comfortable environment for pedestrian walking (walkability) and other
activities.
e Improve the visual attractiveness of the wurban and residential areas
(neighborhoods).

Staff Comments: Staff’s determination that this application is “consistent” with the CP Goals, Objectives
and Policies, except for Policy DES-1.1.5 with regards to the proposal’s bulk and massing, access to light
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and air, area of yards, open space and vegetation. The proposal does not comply with Zoning Code’s
building setback/stepback requirements for a mixed use project, which are intended to reduce the
project’s impact on adjacent properties and protect the general health and welfare of surrounding
tenants and rights of adjacent property owners. The Applicant’s plans do address the City objectives for
encouraging mixed use development in the Industrial Section.

Public Notification and Comments

The Applicant completed the mandatory neighborhood meeting on 10.28.14 with notification to all
property owners within 1,500 feet of the boundary as well as within the North Industrial MXOD. A copy
of the meeting invitation and attendance list has been provided to the Planning Division, which is on file
and available for public review.

Since this item was continued “time certain” from the 10.08.14 Board meeting to the Board’s 11.12.14
meeting, additional public notification was not required. For the 10.08.14 meeting, a courtesy
notification was provided to all property owners within 1,500 feet of the boundary of the entire mixed
use overlay district as well as within the boundaries. The notice indicated the following: applications
filed; public hearing dates/time/location; where the application files can be reviewed and provides for
an opportunity to submit comments. Approximately 939 notices were mailed. A copy of the legal
advertisement and courtesy notice are provided in Attachment B. A map of the notice radius is as
follows:

City of Coral Gables Planning Division Page 24



Staff Report and
4311 Ponce

Mixed Use Site Plan

Recommendation

Review November 12, 2014
Courtesy Notification Radius Map
AT -
W] [l N_Emom L ) ~
g . e N
B B ViScAVAAY \
PALMARITO CT i ZBL
1 17 138 1'_41'_ ThR ) :m \
FLUVAAY < el ) 146 ’?9 y \
!51- : WGCPSI_ *'5‘0 KNDIARY ,_\ CANDIARY . \
CANDIA AV L A& Sbey % s —
B RARARASAREE A1 B S SR JERRMA > T 2 \
3 15_'4‘% ?ELARUE*‘\. I : ‘B.E ' 2 b3 T H (e = |
S A 2 : AR o
i : BIRD RD - o
oE : e SiEEln= Si=SriS SISERmEE (|-
2 4 £ < a2 ui O (S)
: F ELE 2l S e wE l
Fy | SanNANTONIDAY 2 _”2. Bt el :1 "
o AREE [ oL
=1 ‘. ‘ ; B 5 l
Ty v 4
3 ALTARAAY CORAL GABLES i O
l SENIOR ‘g 8 7 o |
HIGH SCHOOL g
(i LORENZO AV ;
1? o
] y 4 11 sy & 13
{5 1.8 A wzbvesm s % . .1 & v ’
: %\ 2 R /
h ‘20 JERDNlMODR - 15 GRECOAY a
i 28 /
St R B y . "..7\%0 & A 2
. ILABELLAAY AR * ‘0‘:’017 » .0‘0\’@0 i .m.“ /
e ALMNM QO i &mem ‘g : E /
TN Ftme g B
2 L \.‘ o y = & Al CB 2
- L . — C — FLORIDAAY. ] /
i GADAGUAAY AR R R A ~o ac 1t B -l
34 el "'"-.____.-- 3
&' JUt L S GRAND AV ‘_-'_—-GRAND AV
The following has been completed to solicit input and provide notice of the Application
Public Notice
Type Date
Applicant’s neighborhood meeting 10.28.14
Courtesy notification to properties within 1,500 ft. of the entire MXOD and within MXOD | 09.26.14
Posting of property 09.26.14
Legal advertisement 09.26.14
Posted agenda on City web page/City Hall 10.03.14
Posted Staff report on City web page 10.03.14
Legal advertisement 10.31.14
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Staff Recommendation

The Planning Division based upon the complete Findings of Fact contained within this Report
recommends denial of the following:

A Resolution of the City Commission of Coral Gables, Florida requesting mixed use site plan
review pursuant to Zoning Code Article 4, “Zoning Districts”, Division 2, “Overlay and Special
Purpose Districts”, Section 4-201, “Mixed Use District (MXD)” for the mixed use project referred
to as “4311 Ponce” on the property legally described as Lots 36-43, Block 5, Industrial Section
(4225 and 4311 Ponce de Leon Boulevard), Coral Gables, Florida; including required conditions;
providing for an effective date.

Summary of Recommendation for Denial

The basis for denial of this Application is that the proposed mixed use project does not comply with the
requirements of the Zoning Code. The Zoning Code requires a building setback/stepback for a mixed use
project which is not provided. The building setback/stepback is intended to reduce the project’s impact
on adjacent properties and protect the general health and welfare of surrounding tenants and rights of
adjacent property owners. The Applicant has chosen not to revise the proposed project, so the plans and
application package provided with this Staff report is the same as those submitted and presented at the
Board’s 10.08.14 public hearing.

Specifically, the proposed project does not comply with the following:
1. Application does not comply with Zoning Code requirements for building setbacks/stepbacks.

Application must comply with one (1) of the following in order to meet the requirements of the
Zoning Code for setbacks/stepbacks for mixed use projects:

a. Comply with Zoning Code Section 4-201.E.14 by providing the minimum ten (10) foot
front setback for the entire building along the front property line (Ponce de Leon Blvd).
A minimum front setback of ten (10) feet is required for buildings over forty-five (45)
feet in height; or
b. Comply with Zoning Code Section 4-201.E.15 for setback reductions. Applicant may
provide zero (0) foot setbacks on all sides if vertical building stepbacks of a minimum of
ten (10) feet are provided at a maximum height of forty-five (45) feet on all building
facades.
Currently, the project proposes a zero (0) foot front setback and 93’-7” building height, and does
not provide a stepback on all building facades.

Attachments

A. 10.08.14 Planning and Zoning Board meeting minutes.

B. 10.08.14 Staff report including previously provided attachments and Applicant’s submittal package
dated 08.21.14.

C. PowerPoint presentation.
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Please visit the City’s webpage at www.coralgables.com to view all Application plans and materials,
notices, applicable public comments, minutes, etc. The complete Application and all background
information also is on file and available for examination during business hours at the Planning Division,
427 Biltmore Way, Suite 201, Coral Gables, Florida, 33134.

Respectfully submitted,

p—
r
Ramon Trias

Director of Planning and Zoning
City of Coral Gables, Florida
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COMMISSIONER QUESADA: -- and if it's oka

Page 161 Page 163 |
1 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Yes. 1 with the Chair --
2 MR. GARCIA-SERRA: Thank you very much, and | 2 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Please, :
3 gve a good night. Appreciate it. 3 COMMISSIONER QUESADA: I'm glad you bring |
4 (R. BEHAR: Thank you. 4 tha\up, and I will bring it up at our
5 FLANAGAN: Unrelated to this 5 ComMNgission meeting on Tuesday so that we can
6 applicalign, but it deals with the park, 6 discuss¥, because sometimes you have
7 unfortunalyly, Mr. Kinney is not here. 1 7 different dgpartments working together and
8 noticed, proBgbly going back about a year, the 8 before you Ryow it, you've got a million signs
9 parking stalls d%gng the west side and the 9 and some donNnake sense and some do, so
10 south side of the Park were public parking, 10 sometimes it's gold, you know, to call us out
11 These are the only (o residential developments 11 on that. So we'll takg a look at that.
12 in the neighborhood, y§t out of the blue, signs 12 I also want to mentdn one more thing. You
13 went up that said the on-Nreet parking along 13 may not realize it, but whalways read the
14 the park is residential perm¥{ parking only, 14 minutes of all your meeting before our
15 beginning at 5:00 p.m. 15 Commission meetings, when'\ye're voting on big
16 Now, the position, I guess I culd call 16 issues, and I wanted to come todgy to get a
17 Kevin Kinney, but it would be int&gsting to 17 little bit more perspective. It's a Ile bit
18 know, as this area redevelops and bedgmes more 18 different, reading it on a piece of papgr, than
19 intense, there are only two apartment b{dings 19 actually being here.
20 there, those are the only two residences. Wey 20 Thank you so much for all the thought\ynd
21 both accommodate all their on-site parking fgw, 21 energy that you guys put into the meetings.
22 and this project will continue to accommodate 22 You probably think I'm just, you know, givin
23 all the necessary parking. I question why it 23 you some fluff right now, but I understand how
24 is that the City put up residential parking 24 difficult it is after a long day and maybe not
25 signs from 5:00 p.m. for that park, on the west 25 being able to see your kids tonight because
Page 162 Page 164
1 side and the south side. On the north side, 1 they're 20Mmgo sleep by the time you get
2 that abuts or is adjacent to the Publix, those 2 home, my experiéfwafgnight. So thank you so
3 t left as metered spaces. There's no public 3 much for the service and K&®mQQ questioning
1 ing on the west side, but by the school and 4 everyone and making our City a be(f®ralgce.
5 this development right now, it's only 5 Thank you.
6 residenNparking after 5:00 p.m., which I found ‘9 imofe bbb bt b o b b ,
7 have occurred. ls CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Thank you for coming,
8 't bringing it up because 8 Okay, let's go ahead and move on to our
9 uesada was here. We're talking 9 final item, and that is a Resolution of the
10 about this area, seen these signs 10 City Commission of Coral Gables, Florida,
11 sprouting across th&City constantly, and a lot 11 requesting mixed use site plan review, pursuant
12 of areas that say residwgtial parking only. We 12 to Zoning Code Article 4, "Zoning Districts,"
13 seem to also have becorNg sign happy about No 13 Division 2, "Overlay and Special Purpose
14 Parking, No Left, No Stan¥jng, No Loitering. 14 Districts," Section 4-201, "Mixed Use
15 You go by Gables High Schdgl and the canal, 15 District," for the mixed use project referred
16 we've got signs on the north sidg of the rock 16 to as 4311 Ponce, on the property legally
17 wall, in the middle of the rock , on the 17 described as Lots 36-43, Block 5, Industrial
18 south side of the rock wall, and it's 18 Section, 4225 and 4311 Ponce de Leon Boulevard,
19 pollution. But that wasn't intended to 19 Coral Gables, Florida; including required
20 conversation tonight. 20 codifications; providing for an effective date.
21 COMMISSIONER QUESADA: Ifit's 273 At this point, if the applicant can please
22 procedurally improper for me to speak at thi 22 make their presentation.
23 meeting -- 23 MR. BELLO: Mr. Chairman, a point of order.
24 MR. LEEN: No, it's not. 24 I see that the Staff is not able to give us a
25 recommendation.
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1 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: On this item. 1 MR. LEEN: -- you would recommend
2 MR. BELLO: Is it -- Should we continue 2 continuance. But | would recommend that you
3 with the hearing, or can we make a motion fora | 3 hear him and that you also hear from Staff.
4 continuance? 4 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Okay, the reason I'm
5 MR. LEEN: Well, procedurally, Mr. Chair -- | 5 saying that is because we're five of nine
6 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Yes. 6 o'clock.
7 MR. LEEN: -- a motion for continuance can 7 Could I ask the applicant, your
8 be made at any time. | would say that we have 8 presentation is about how long, please?
9 told Mr. Mateu, who has waited through this 9 MR. MATEU: It probably wouldn't be as long
10 proceeding, that he would be able to present 10 as the marijuana one.
11 his perspective on this matter. Staff is 11 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Well, the reason I'm
12 recommending continuance because of certain 12 saying it is because we're supposed to stop at
13 prerequisites that Staff has opined is not 13 nine o'clock, unless there's a vote to
14 here. One of them, | think, is clear, which is 14 continue, and it would be for a time certain,
15 a community meeting, which will have to be had. | 15 and that's why I'm just trying get -- I'm just
16 So, ultimately, my recommendation to you 16  trying to get an idea.
17 legally would be, you have to continue this 17 MR. MATEU: | understand. I just -- The
18 matter, as well. But | would suggest that you 18  problem that we have is that --
19 hear from the applicant, because there's 19 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Well, can you state
20 certain areas where he and Staff don't agree, 20  your name and address, please?
21 and you may be able to give some guidance so 21 MR. MATEU: Okay. My name is Roney Mateu.
22 that when it comes back to you after this 22 | am president of Mateu Architecture, 8887
23 community meeting is heard, we don't have the |23 Southwest 131 Street, Miami, Florida.
24 same issue come up again, and then another 24 We asked the City Attorney about presenting
25 recommendation of continuance. That wouldbe |25  today, because one of the things that we are
Page 166 Page 168
1 my recommendation to you, as your counsel. 1 concerned about is the time that this whole
2 MS. ALBERRO MENENDEZ: Canlaskyou,is | 2 process has taken. As you all very well know,
3 there a rush? Because it's not only the issues 3 money is -- time is money. This whole
4 with Staff, but there's also traffic concerns 4 presentation process, as it has been created at
5 that haven't been addressed. It seems to be 5 the City of Coral Gables, especially in the MXD
6 like an incomplete application. 6 District, is a very time-consuming one, and we
7 MR. LEEN: There's an underlying issue 7 also wanted to air some concerns about how this
8 related to step-backs and setbacks that would 8 particular project has been handled by Staff,
9 probably be useful to receive your guidance, if 9 particularly in the Planning and Zoning
10  you're willing to provide it. 10  Department, which we feel have added to the
11 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: But -- 11 reasons, like Ms. Menendez mentioned, where's
12 MR. LEEN: Even if you hear it in an 12 the Staff -- | mean, the traffic report. Well,
13  abbreviated way. 13  there is a traffic report and there is a
14 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: But at this point, the [ 14  response to the traffic report, and there was a
15 only thing we can do is hear the applicant make 15 reason why the traffic report was not as early
16 his presentation, but we can't go any further 16  as it could have been, because things were
17 than that, really. 17 delayed. And we can get into all of that if
18 MR. LEEN: Well, I don't believe you can 18 you wanted me to, but | was going to just gloss
19 recommend approval at this point. 19 over that, but the two reports that have been
20 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Right. 20  given to us from Staff, after we submitted
21 MR. LEEN: You could either recommend 21 these books, we responded to.
22 continuance or denial. I don't think that 22 Now, maybe it didn't get back to you, but
23 anyone is asking you to recommend denial, 23 wedid, in the time that we got them. So --
24 though, so -- 24 MS. ALBERRO MENENDEZ: Can I just ask you,
25 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: No, right. 25 though, what would you want to achieve tonight,
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1 outside of perhaps telling us what Staff has 1 and if so, to what time?
2 done wrong? 2 MR. BELLIN: I'll make a motion to extend
3 MR. MATEU: Well, it's not that | wanted to 3 it to 9:30.
4 say just what Staff has done wrong. What | was 4 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Is there a second?
5 hoping for is that we would be heard and that 5 MR. PEREZ: I'll second.
6 this body could say, for example -- | would 6 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: A motion and a second.
7 have said, Mr. Attorney, and I'm not an 7 Any comments?
8 attorney, nor do | have one in this group here 8 Call the roll. Now, before you do that --
9 tonight, but what I would have thought that 9 Well, we have a motion and second.
10 could have happened is that there may be -- 10 My question is, can we go to 9:15 and then
11 this body could have also had the option to 11 we're allowed to extend again? Because we've
12 say, "Approved, but it doesn't go to the 12 done that in the past.
13 Commission until you have had your City 13 MR. LEEN: You can include that in the
14 meeting," for example, because | also pointed 14 motion. It could be that you could decide at
15 out, if I may, that the process of approvals of 15  9:15 whether you wanted to continue it to 9:30.
16 an MXD project that has a mixed use -- because 16 I wouldn't putitas part of the motion.
17 this whole thing of going -- even in coming 17 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: We just need to see
18 here and going to the Commission, is due 18  where it goes and how it's going.
19 that -- because we have a residential piece in 19 MR. LEEN: You can always end by unanimous
20 here. If we didn't have the residential piece, 20 consent.
21 we wouldn't need to be here. 21 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: | understand.
22 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Let me just stop you | 22 MR. LEEN: So at 9:15, you could end.
23 one second, only because of timing, and 23 MR. BELLIN: I'll make a motion --
24 legally. 24 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Butyou're --
25 MR. MATEU: Yes. 25 MR. BELLIN: -- we go to 9:15, with the
Page 170 Page 172
1 MR. LEEN: Mr. Chair, I'd recommend that 1 option to extend another 15 minutes.
2 you hear him, you give him 15 or 20 minutes. 2 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Then we'll take it up
3 We did reach an agreement with him to resolve, 3 after 9:15 -- you know, as we get closer to
4 basically, a dispute that was going on, that 4 9:15.
5 said that he could come and that he would be 5 MR. PEREZ: I'll second.
6 heard, that there would be a recommendation of 6 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: We have a motion,
7 continuance. You're not bound to what I'm -- 7 9:15, and a second.
8 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: | understand. 8 Call the roll, please.
9 MR. LEEN: -- telling you, but I would 9 MR. BOLYARD: Maria Menendez?
10 recommend it. 10 MS. ALBERRO MENENDEZ: Yes.
11 MR. BELLIN: Craig, I'd like to make a 11 MR. BOLYARD: Alberto Perez?
12 motion. Let's go to 9:30, and I think that 12 MR. PEREZ: Yes.
13 there are some issues that don't really need to 13 MR. BOLYARD: Marshall Bellin?
14 be brought up. | don't care about the parking 14 MR. BELLIN: Yes.
15 at this point. But there are some issues with 15 MR. BOLYARD: Anthony Bello?
16 respect to the approach to the design that | 16 MR. BELLO: Yes.
17 think need to be heard, and I really would like 17 MR. BOLYARD: Jeffrey Flanagan?
18 to hear Staff's rationale, as well as Roney's, 18 MR. FLANAGAN: Yes.
19 S0 we can sort of get an idea of where they're 19 MR. BOLYARD: Julio Grabiel?
20 both coming from. 20 MR. GRABIEL: Yes.
21 MR. LEEN: Well, it's not up to me. It's 21 MR. BOLYARD: Eibi Aizenstat?
22 up to the Board. | would think that that's 22 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Yes.
23 worth having. 23 Go ahead, please.
24 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: How does the Board | 24 MR. MATEU: Thank you. So I also -- again,
25 feel? Is there a motion to extend the time, 25 I would like that one of the options that's
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1 available to you is approval with the condition 1 MR. MATEU: Okay.

2 that the public presentation on the side of the 2 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: -- as opposed to

3 owners be held prior to going to the 3 questions and answers --

4 Commission, because that's really the only 4 MR. MATEU: Thank you. I will. By way of

5 thing that has not happened yet. 5 history --

6 But | want to say this. This process of 6 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Please.

7 approvals in the MXD, when you have a 7 MR. MATEU: -- | was the architect of a

8 residential component in it -- because if we 8 building that was designed on this same site,

9 did not have a residential component in this 9 back in the year 2006/2007. Same exact zoning,
10 building, we wouldn't be here. We could build 10 MXD. We had the same kinds of components, that
11 by right. But that process that makes us do 11 that were residential, commercial and office.

12 all of these meetings, every one of the 12 The only difference in that design and this

13 meetings, the DR -- Development Review 13 design was that the lot that we were working

14 Committee, the Board of Architects, this 14 with at the time was 150-foot frontage on

15 meeting, and the next meeting, which is the 15 Ponce, versus this one, which is 200.

16 Commission meeting, all of these are public 16 The project that was designed at the time

17 hearings. They're noticed, they're publicized, 17  wasthisone. This is Ponce, San Lorenzo, and

18 and 1, as an architect who's been practicing 18 this project had a retail component on the

19 for the last 34 years, am not quite sure what 19 bottom, parking and offices, with residential

20 this fifth meeting accomplishes, when all of 20  units along San Lorenzo.

21 these meetings that we're having are all public 21 This project went through the whole process

22 meetings. 22 and it in fact went and got a building permit.

23 MR. BELLIN: But Roney, let's boil it down |23 It suffered from the recession. It did not get

24 so we don't waste a lot of time. 24 built. But it went through and was permitted.

25 MR. MATEU: Okay. So -- 25 I have here the zoning analysis that was done
Page 174 Page 176

1 MR. BELLIN: You have a residential 1 on this project at the time, and some of the

2 component. You can't have a residential 2 folks that are still in the Planning and Zoning

3 component in the C zoning unless you put an MXD 3 Division, Mr. Carlson and others, participated

4 on it. So that's the reason for the MXD. 4 in the analysis of this project and this

5 MR. MATEU: | don't have a problem with 5 creation of this analysis of this report. |

6 that. What I'm making a statement is that 6 say that because one of the issues that is a

7 there's five public hearings. 7 problem here today is the interpretation of --

8 MS. ALBERRO MENENDEZ: What's the fifthone | 8 at the DRC, which is when we first heard of

9 you're talking about, the one with the 9 this dispute that has been brought up, is in
10 neighbors? What's the fifth one that you're -- 10 Page --

11 You mentioned a fifth. 11 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Do we have a copy of
12 MR. MATEU: The one with the neighbors, the 12 that, to follow you?

13 one that has to come. 13 MR. MATEU: You have the -- on Tab 21 --

14 MS. ALBERRO MENENDEZ: The one with the 14 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Okay.

15 neighbors. But that benefits you, from my 15 MR. MATEU: -- of the book that we

16 experience, because that -- 16 prepared --

17 MR. MATEU: No, no, listen, I'm just saying 17 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Okay.

18 that if that's the one reason that we're -- 18 MR. MATEU: -- behind the handwritten notes
19 that Staff is asking for -- 19 is a DRC zoning review that was prepared by

20 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Can I suggest 20 Mr. Ramon Trias and his Staff, where on Page 4,
21 something? | would suggest that you make your 21 Section 4-201, E-14, and Section 4-201, E-15,

22 presentation -- 22 which is the basis --

23 MR. MATEU: Yes. 23 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: I'm trying to follow
24 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: --sowe can 24 you. | have everything handwritten that's in

25 understand your project -- 25 here.
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1 MR. MATEU: No, the next -- 1 MR. MATEU: When we designed the first
2 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: | don't see Page 4, so 2 building, we had an analysis done, a zoning

3 where-- 3 analysis done at the time, by the Zoning

4 MR. MATEU: I'm sorry, after the 4 Department, and at the time they also used an
5 handwritten notes, there's a report, the DRC 5 outside consultant, and the commentary and the
6 report. 6 design direction that we were given was based
7 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: One, two -- Ours goes 7 on the analysis, and specifically on Section

8  two pages and the next ones are handwritten, 8 E-14, where it talks about the setbacks of the

9  also. 9 building, and it specifically says front, which
10 MR. MATEU: No, keep going. There'sa DRC 10 is the front setback, which in this case is on
11 report. 11 Ponce de Leon Boulevard, is up to 45 feet in
12 MS. ALBERRO MENENDEZ: By who? By who, I'm |12 height; there's no setback. If over 45 feet in
13 sorry? 13 height, there's 10 feet setback. Side,
14 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Where it says 14 interior side, there's no setback. Side
15  Memorandum? 15 street, 15 foot. Rear, abutting a dedicated
16 MS. ALBERRO MENENDEZ: Oh, that. 16 alley or street, none. And it talks about
17 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Is that what you're 17 balconies; cantilevered open balcony may
18 talking about? Only because there's no number 18 project into the setbacks a maximum of six
19  onhere, I'msorry. | just want to follow with 19 feet.
20 it 20 The comments from the Staff on the original
21 MS. ALBERRO MENENDEZ: Oh, okay. I'm 21 design says front complies, 10-foot setback
22 sorry. I've gotit. 22 provided above the parking garage. In other
23 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Onours, it doesn't 23 words, that building goes up 45 feet at zero,
24 have a number, so that's why I've got to see 24 then it steps back 10 feet, and it goes up
25 it 25 continuous.

Page 178 Page 180

1 MR. MATEU: Okay. Well, the pages aren't 1 The side street at San Lorenzo is a 15-foot

2 numbered after that. 2 setback. The interior side is zero, which is

3 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Okay. 3 the north side of the building, and the rear

4 MR. MATEU: Page 4 -- 4 alley complies, zero. Okay?

5 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Thank you. 5 We designed this building in a similar

6 MR. MATEU: -- Section 4-201, E-14 and 6 exact setback fashion, where our building on

7 Section 4-201, E-15 are basically the issues 7 the front is at zero setback up to 45 feet,

8 that we have a debate about. 1 don't know if 8 then it steps back, and then the office floors

9 you have been copied properly there. 9 and the apartments are farther back, stepped
10 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: | can't find that, and |10 back 10 feet, and then it goes up. On the
11 I'm sorry. 11 side, it's 15 feet setback. On the alley, it's
12 MS. ALBERRO MENENDEZ: It's here. 12 zero, and on the interior property line, it's
13 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: | justwanttogetto |13 Zero.
14 where youare. 14 Our building, compared to the old design --
15 MS. ALBERRO MENENDEZ: Keep going. 15 The old design took advantage of Mediterranean
16 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Okay. It'soutorder |16 bonuses, FAR expansion and all kinds of things
17 a little bit, that's why. Two -- 17 that we were asking for, and we got all of
18 MR. MATEU: There it is, I'm sorry. 18 those bonuses and we were able to increase the
19 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: One, two -- Okay. | |19 FAR and all of these things on the original
20  just-- Like I said, I'd like for us to follow 20 building.
21 you, what you're looking at. 21 On this building, we are asking for
22 MR. MATEU: Right, right, right. Everybody 22 nothing. We're asking for no bonuses. We're
23 else have it? 23 not asking for any reductions of any setbacks.
24 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Yes, thank you. Go |24 We're asking for absolutely zero. We're asking
25 ahead, please. 25 for no Mediterranean anything.
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1 Section 15 says setback reductions -- In 1 So, after the DRC, I asked him if he
2 the original analysis of the first building, it 2 prepared this and | asked him if the City
3 says setback reductions is not applicable, 3 Architect, which would be the person in charge
4 because Section 15, in our interpretation of 4 of the Board of Architects, prepared this, and
5 the Code and in the way it was interpreted on 5 he said no, he did.
6 the original design, was that unless you were 6 So | went after the meeting and | went and
7 asking for certain setback reductions, Section 7 asked the City Architect if he, in fact, had
8 15 does not come into play. And it says it 8 anything to do with these "Does not comply,”
9 very clearly on the bottom of Section 14. 9 "Does not comply,” "Does not comply,"” to which
10 Applicants and property owners desiring to 10 he said, "I didn't have anything to do with
11 develop pursuant to these regulations may not 11  that. Infact, | was told not to be at this
12 seek a variance for relief or reduction in 12 Development Review Committee meeting,” and he
13 building setbacks. Reductions are only 13  was asked not to be there.
14 permitted subject to the below-listed 14 So Mr. Trias played Architect, Zoning
15 regulation. 15 Director, Planning Director, and in my review
16 I think that's pretty clear. So that if | 16 of the job description of the City Architect,
17 want to build up my building above 45 feet, for |17  the City Architect has to be at the Design
18 example, at Ponce, with zero setback, and keep |18 Review Committee. It's one of his job
19 going up, | would then be subject to Section 19 description duties. The Planning and Zoning
20 15, which says that a step-back is required on 20 Director does not have to be there.
21 all sides of the building. But that's not what 21  Specifically, it does not say he has to be
22 we asked for. We didn't require it. We didn't 22  there. So--
23 ask for anything. We are not asking for any 23 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: If | may, is there a
24 reductions of any setback whatsoever. 24 motion to extend the additional 15 minutes,
25 In Mr. Trias's analysis at the DRC, which 25 please, to give Mr. Mateu his time?
Page 182 Page 184
1 he chaired, and he wrote this analysis, he 1 MR. BELLIN: I'll make the motion, but --
2 writes on Section 14, 1500 square feet of 2 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Is there a second?
3 publicly accessible street level open space and 3 MR. PEREZ: I'll second.
4 landscape area are provided along San Lorenzo 4 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Call the roll, please.
5 Avenue to comply with front setback reduction 5 MR. BOLYARD: Alberto Perez?
6 on Ponce de Leon Boulevard." This is a 6 MR. PEREZ: Yes.
7 statement that he made up, because we didn't 7 MR. BOLYARD: Marshall Bellin?
8 ask for it, and therefore, it is partly a 8 MR. BELLIN: Yes.
9 reason, | believe, to justify his decision that 9 MR. BOLYARD: Anthony Bello?
10 Section 15 applies. What he is telling us, 10 MR. BELLO: Yes.
11  that we do not comply with the Code, because he |11 MR. BOLYARD: Jeffrey Flanagan?
12 believes that this building above the 45 feet 12 MR. FLANAGAN: Yes.
13 needs to be like a wedding cake, where all 13 MR. BOLYARD: Julio Grabiel?
14 sides need to be set back 10 feet. 14 MR. GRABIEL: Yes.
15 He further, then, goes through this whole 15 MR. BOLYARD: Maria Menendez?
16 report, and I'll point out to you, Page 14, for 16 MS. ALBERRO MENENDEZ: Yes.
17 example, Section 5-602, A, where the reference 17 MR. BOLYARD: Eibi Aizenstat?
18 and the provision of the Code says, "The Board 18 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Yes.
19  of Architects shall determine if an application 19 I'm sorry, it's just a formality.
20  satisfies the following design review 20 MR. MATEU: | understand.
21  standards." Now, this is at the DRC. He 21 MR. LEEN: Mr. Chair --
22 writes, "Does not comply," "Does not comply," 22 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Yes.
23 "Does not comply.”" He goes on down the list, 23 MR. LEEN: Mr. Mateu, if | may, just
24 "Does not comply," "Does not comply,” "Does not | 24 briefly, because of the statements being made,
25 comply,” "Does not comply.” 25 you will have to give Mr. Trias a chance to
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1 respond. 1 you not able to do that?

2 MR. MATEU: Absolutely. 2 MR. MATEU: Yes. | -- We have no objection

3 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Of course. 3 to having the neighborhood meeting.

4 MR. LEEN: Also, just to -- you know, 4 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: That's the last step?

5 ultimately, and | don't mean to make your 5 You've done everything else?

6 argument for you in any way, but ultimately, 6 MR. MATEU: Yes.

7 the issue here is, there's a change in 7 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Okay, go ahead,

8 interpretation. | mean, that's basically what 8 continue.

9 it is, and the question is, will we ultimately 9 MR. MATEU: We were -- It was pointed out
10 go with the first one or the second one? 10 to us that the meeting had not taken place, and
11 Staff, in their professional judgment, has 11 itis in our court. | don't --

12 given the second. Mr. Mateu believes -- he 12 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Okay.

13 relied on the first, has indicated he relies on 13 MR. MATEU: -- withdraw responsibility, but

14 the first, that's really what's being 14 it was pointed out to us eight days prior to

15 presented, but | don't -- 15  this meeting --

16 You know, also remember to please present 16 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: | understand.

17 your item, too, because -- 17 MR. MATEU: -- when other things were being

18 MR. MATEU: Yes. 18 delayed and postponed, et cetera, and that was

19 MR. LEEN: -- | want them to see, you 19 like, this is a good reason why not to go here.

20 know -- 20 So --

21 MR. MATEU: Right. 21 MS. ALBERRO MENENDEZ: Can | ask a

22 MR. LEEN: Remember that. 22 question? I'm sorry to interrupt you, but who

23 MR. MATEU: So that -- but | wanted to 23 did the original zoning review for the first

24 point that out, because | felt that Mr. Trias 24 project?

25 stepped over his area of expertise, where he 25 MR. MATEU: It was under the direction of
Page 186 Page 188

1 played architect, planner, et cetera, and made 1 Martha Salazar-Blanco, but this was written by

2 decisions that | do not believe were in his 2 Ricardo Herran.

3 area of responsibility as Planning and Zoning 3 MS. ALBERRO MENENDEZ: Okay. Now, when you

4 Director, and therefore set a tone which | 4 brought up this issue. 1'm just -- It's hard

5 believe was inappropriate for this project, 5  for me to understand, having worked here prior,

6 which prompted me to write a letter, which is 6 why you didn't have a -- why Staff wasn't

7 included in this packet, responding to his 7 directed to have a second review from another

8 comments, and then prompted me to meet with the | 8 person that's an expert in zoning, that would

9 City Attorney and the City Manager, the Acting 9  have either agreed with Ramon or agreed with
10 City Manager, et cetera, which then the City 10  yourself or had perhaps another opinion. It's
11 Architect was asked to prepare his analysis of 11 just hard for me to understand why you're here
12 this project, and it is in the back here, and 12 infront of us today, discussing what I
13  you can see the disparity of the commentary. 13 consider to be an administrative matter.

14 So -- 14 MR. MATEU: Well, let me go back, and
15 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Letmeaskyoua |15  again, the discussion that was always had at
16 question, if I may. Couldn't you bring it 16 all of the pre-application -- We had three or
17 before the Board, even if the recommendation is 17 four pre-application, pre-submittal meetings
18  todeny it by City Staff, and present your 18  with Staff. We had a meeting recently with the
19 project, but complying with all the steps? Are 19  City Attorney, to see if we could iron these
20 you not able to comply, let's say, with the 20  things out. The commentary that we received
21 neighborhood meeting, because Mr. Trias said 21 wasoriginally, the back, at the alley, at the
22 no? Does that stop you, or are you able to 22 street, had to step in. That's the only thing
23 comply with all the steps, let the Planning 23 thatwe ever heard, okay?

24 Department, if their decision is a no or to 24 Then, at a meeting that we had with the
25 deny, but still present everything to us? Are 25  owner, the City Attorney and Staff, Mr. Trias
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1 and Mr. Bolyard, a couple of weeks ago, at that 1 Salazar -- We've been told by the applicant, he
2 meeting, it started off with, "The back needs 2 said the name, but that this was one that
3 to be stepped in, that needs to be stepped in," 3 Martha Salazar-Blanco --
4 and then during the middle of the meeting, it 4 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: We have a written,
5 became -- the statement was made, "The back is | 5 signed interpretation letter?
6 not the problem anymore, it's the front. The 6 MR. LEEN: We have a written interpretation
7 front doesn't meet the setback," and they are 7 letter.
8 referring -- they were referring to this wall 8 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Just a question.
9 and this eyebrow across the front, which is not 9 Okay.
10 actually the building; that is another -- 10 MR. LEEN: Yes.
11 because that is not the building. That is an 11 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Okay.
12 architectural feature. It's an architectural 12 MR. LEEN: And he's saying that he has
13 element that has gone already to the Board of 13 relied on it. 1 don't think, ultimately, you
14 Architects and has been approved. But at that 14 have to -- When you read this, if there is a
15 time, that was the issue that was being 15  sethack relief that's been provided here, the
16 discussed, at the meeting. 16  step-back is on all four sides. | think you
17 MR. LEEN: Mr. Chair, just for purposes of 17  would agree, it says on all facades. | think
18 the record, | view that as an architectural 18 the issue here you're raising is --
19 element. | believe that Ramon views thatasan |19 MR. MATEU: I'm sorry, forgive me. I'm
20 architectural element, as well. | don't think 20 sorry, | don't believe that it even applies,
21 that that ultimately would prevent this 21 because | think --
22 building from going forward. 22 MR. LEEN: If it applies.
23 I think the issue that's come up, just to 23 MR. MATEU: | think we read --
24 get to the heart of it, is that under Staff's 24 MR. LEEN: If it applies.
25 interpretation, which, looking at the Code, 25 MR. MATEU: -- Section 14, and we comply
Page 190 Page 192
1 which requires a step-back on all sides, if 1 with Section 14. We do not -- Section 15 does
2 there's any setback relief here, it would 2 not apply.
3 require it on all sides. The problem is, this 3 MR. LEEN: You deny the setback relief,
4 building cannot be approved under that 4 that's what you're saying?
5 interpretation. 5 MR. MATEU: We do not -- We're not seeking
6 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Okay. 6 any setback relief.
7 MR. LEEN: There is a prior interpretation, 7 MR. LEEN: That's the opinion that needs to
8 which I've been told is from Martha 8 be resolved, basically.
9 Salazar-Blanco, and I've read it, and under 9 MS. ALBERRO MENENDEZ: Is there anybody
10 that interpretation, this building could be 10 else in the City that could review itin on a
11 improved -- could be approved. 11 zoning basis to be able to determine whether --
12 Ultimately, it's going to come to you and 12 It's Ramon or Ricardo, you said?
13  then to the Commission, whether to apply the 13 MR. MATEU: Well, he was the zoning
14  prior interpretation or not. It would be under 14 technician. It would be under Martha's --
15 a reliance estoppel theory, which I'm still 15 MS. ALBERRO MENENDEZ: Yeah.
16 analyzing at this point, but I wanted to get 16 MR. LEEN: Ultimately, | would hear from --
17  yourthoughts on it. It would be under an 17 My recommendation is to hear from Ramon
18 estoppel theory, basically, that he had a prior 18 regarding why he thinks there's setback relief.
19 interpretation, he's gone forward with this 19 Ultimately, either you or the Board of
20 design, through this process. It's here before 20 Adjustment, and then ultimately the City
21 younow. Do we apply this prior 21 Commission, would make that decision.
22 interpretation, this one last time? 22 MR. MATEU: And --
23 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Isitan 23 MS. ALBERRO MENENDEZ: But it's the Board
24 interpretation letter from the head of Zoning? 24 of Adjustment that rules on administrative --
25 MR. LEEN: Well, my understanding is Martha | 25 MR. LEEN: Appeals.
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Page 195

1 MS. ALBERRO MENENDEZ: -- appeals. So 1 And | don't want to make this personal. |
2 that's why I'm trying to figure out what we can 2 mean, my name has been mentioned many times by
3 accomplish for you today, you know, because we 3 Mr. Mateu in a context that | don't agree with,
4 don't have most of what's required of this 4 and this is not about me. This is simply about
5 application. So I'm just trying to figure this 5 the Code and the fact that several people have
6 out. It seems as though we're being put in the 6 looked at it and they all share the same
7 middle of a dispute, and I just think that 7 opinion, and Mr. Mateu requested to be here
8 there's other solutions that administratively 8 before you, to be able to make his point, and |
9 can be taken. 9 agreed to it. In fact, | signed that agenda so
10 MR. LEEN: That could be taken. 10 he could be here and say exactly what he said
11 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Possibly one solution,| 11 to you.
12 though, could be for Mr. Mateu to complete his 12 So | think that you all are in agreement
13 process, come back to our Board with Staff's 13 pretty much that there are some things that are
14 recommendation, whether it's approval or 14 missing. | think that Mr. Mateu is a very
15 denial. We look at it independently, and at 15 capable architect and he'll be ready next time,
16 that time, we can make a finding ourselves. 16 I'm sure, and that's the recommendation that |
17 But I think what's going on is, at this stage, 17 would propose to you.
18 without having your process completed, | myself 18 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Would anybody like to
19 at least don't feel comfortable making any 19 make a recommendation for a continuance to the
20 findings or any recommendations. 20 next Board meeting?
21 MS. ALBERRO MENENDEZ: Right. 21 MR. BELLIN: Eibi?
22 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: I'm not saying you're | 22 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Yes, please.
23 right, I'm not saying you're wrong. 23 MR. BELLIN: It's a matter of
24 MR. MATEU: | understand. 24 interpretation. Somebody's got to interpret
25 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: My suggestion, and |25 it. And the fact that the interpretation was
Page 194 Page 196
1 this is only my suggestion, is to complete your 1 made five years ago doesn't mean it was right.
2 process in a timely fashion, as fast as you 2 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: | agree with that.
3 can, and | would ask the Board if, in our next 3 MR. BELLIN: Okay, so we can't rely on
4 meeting, if you could actually come up, be the 4 that.
5 first item, if you have everything completed, 5 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Right, but I think at
6 and make your actual presentation, along 6 this point, it's up to him whether he wants to
7 with -- like you heard today. The applicant 7 go before the Board of Adjustments or he wants
8 makes their presentation, Staff makes their 8 to come to us.
9 presentation, any comments, close the floor, we 9 MR. BELLIN: I think he needs to come back
10 go ahead and have a discussion, and hopefully 10  tous.
11 we can reach some kind of agreement between 11 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: | agree with you. But
12 this Board. That's just a suggestion. 12 what I'm saying is, my suggestion would be for
13 Now, if you don't mind, I'd like to hear 13 Mr. Mateu to complete the process, because you
14 Mr. Ramon Trias. 14 cannot -- | couldn't hear -- | couldn't hear a
15 MR. TRIAS: Mr. Chairman, I think that -- 15 case or make a determination and it would not
16 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Thank you. 16 be correct if he doesn't complete the process,
17 MR. TRIAS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 1 17 when we require everybody else to do it.
18 think your recommendation is very appropriate. |18 Now, whatever you're missing, if you can
19 As far as Ms. Menendez's comment, I've 19 get that done for the next meeting, | would ask
20 asked all of my Staff to review this issue. In 20 the City Staff to actually put you as the first
21 fact, |1 have avoided personally getting too 21 item on the agenda, at the next presentation,
22 involved in it. | had one person from Zoning, 22 if the Board members agree, | would, for a
23 two people from Planning -- well, actually, 23 continuance.
24 three people from Planning, and then | asked 24 MR. TRIAS: Mr. Chairman, just from a
25 Mr. Leen, also, for his opinion on this issue. 25 procedural point of view, there's also a
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1 process to appeal a decision by Staff. So he 1 Ramon and his Staff, now, just to get a -- from
2 could do that, too. 2 a very simplistic perspective, just to see
3 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Yes, but | think, from| 3 where the variance lies.
4 what I'm hearing from Mr. Mateu, | think he'd 4 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: It's a great
5 like to go forward -- 5 suggestion, but | have to assume that Staff is
6 MR. MATEU: Yes. 6 going to do that report, because they have to
7 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: -- and make his 7 back up what their recommendation is or where
8 presentation, but we also need Staff to make 8 they're coming from.
9 their presentation, and right now we don't have 9 MR. TRIAS: Yeah, and just to give you a
10 a presentation from Staff. So, if it is that 10 preview of that, the Code was being changed at
11 last fifth step, you know, Staff is here to 11 that time, so we can probably give you some
12 help you. That is really their role, is to go 12 context of why, perhaps, some of these things
13 ahead -- That is their role. Their role, 13 happened.
14 Staff's role, is to help you along in the 14 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: We have a motion and
15 process, and | have to assume that. 15 we have a second, so --
16 Is there any comments? 16 MR. FLANAGAN: Did somebody from the
17 MR. GRABIEL: One comment, which I actually |17 audience want to speak? Oh, we don't want to
18 would like to apply to everything that comes in 18 do that.
19 front of the Board. | see, always, floor 19 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: No, we have a motion
20 plans, elevations, but | don't see any 20  andsecond. Let's go ahead and call the roll.
21 sections. We're talking about an issue now, 21 Now, | will ask -- I'm sorry. | will ask for
22 which is how the building sits on the sidewalk 22 it to be placed first on the next item. |
23 and how it steps -- sets back or not. 1 would 23 don't know if | need to make it part of the
24 like Staff to consider that all projects coming 24 continuance, but 1 would ask Staff.
25 to us include sections through the buildings, 25 MR. WU: We take that direction.
Page 198 Page 200
1 through the neighborhood, so that questions 1 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Thank you.
2 that come up of how does the building sit next 2 Call the roll, please.
3 to the house next door or to the rear or to 3 MR. BOLYARD: Julio Grabiel?
4 whatever -- and | think for you to be able to 4 MR. GRABIEL.: Yes.
5 explain to this Board how the building fits and 5 MR. BOLYARD: Maria Menendez?
6 what is your points, as far as the setback is 6 MS. ALBERRO MENENDEZ: Yes.
7 concerned, it would be very useful. 7 MR. BOLYARD: Alberto Perez?
8 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: We're approaching the | 8 MR. PEREZ: Yes.
9 time. Is there a motion? 9 MR. BOLYARD: Marshall Bellin?
10 MR. FLANAGAN: I'll move to continue the 10 MR. BELLIN: Yes.
11 item to the next regularly scheduled meeting. 11 MR. BOLYARD: Anthony Bello?
12 MR. GRABIEL: Second. 12 MR. BELLO: Yes.
13 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: We haveafirstanda |13 MR. BOLYARD: Jeffrey Flanagan?
14 second. Any comments? 14 MR. FLANAGAN: Yes.
15 MR. PEREZ: | just have one quick comment, 15 MR. BOLYARD: Eibi Aizenstat?
16 based on the City Attorney's. 16 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Yes.
17 So, based on what Martha and her Staff had 17 Now, Mr. Mateu, it is up to you, if you
18 recommended for approval, way back when, 18 want to go before the Board of Adjustments or
19 whenever it was, '06, '08, what | would like to 19 you want to come here, but | just want to give
20  see, and | assume that it would be part of 20 you that opportunity, and thank you for
21  Staff's presentation, is what has changed from 21 bringing it to our attention.
22 the time that they approved it, back in '06 or 22 MR. MATEU: Thank you. Can | ask -- Can |
23 '08, and what has changed until now, and where 23 say one more thing?
24 is there a difference in interpretation, based 24 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Yes.
25 on Martha and her Staff, way back when, and 25 MR. MATEU: | think the issue for us, for
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1 me as an architect, is Section 14 and Section 1 CERTIFICATE
2 15, and | would prefer that someone other than 2
3 Staff make the determination of whether this 3 STATE OF FLORIDA:
4 applies or not, because persons on Staff now 4 SS.
5 were on Staff at the time, and they had no 5 COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE:
6 issue with it a}t the tir.ne,.and all of a sudden, S |, JOAN L. BAILEY, Registered Diplomate
; they have an issue with it now._ h Id 8 Reporter, Florida Professional Reporter, and a Notary
_ CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT. What I would suggest g pypic for the State of Florida at Large, do hereby
9 is, talk to the City Attorney. _ 10 certify that | was authorized to and did
10 MR. LEEN: They are our professional Staff, 11 stenographically report the foregoing proceedings and
11 Mr. Mateu. The option is, you can appeal to 12 that the transcript is a true and complete record of my
12 the Board of Adjustment, and the Board of 13 stenographic notes.
13 Adjustment can look at the matter. 1'm also 14 I hereby certify that all public speakers were
14 looking at the matter, and I'm also going to 15 duly sworn by me.
15 look at whether there could be an estoppel 16
16 theory that could be applied here, that would 17 DATED this 14th day of October, 2014.
17 allow this to be applied by either you or the 13
18 City Commission. | will look at that. We will
19 be -- You know, our goal is to treat you g? SIGNED COPY ON FILE
20 fairly, sir, I just want to assure you of that, JOAN L BAILEY RDR.EPR
21 but that is our professional Staff and we could 29 ’ ’
22 need to stand behind them in making their 23
23 professional judgments, even sometimes when the Notary Commission Number EE 083192.
24 applicant doesn't agree. It doesn't mean we 24 My Notary Commission expires 6/14/15.
25 won't look at your objections or that there's a 25
Page 202
1 right to take an appeal.
2 MR. MATEU: Thank you.
3 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: It will be a good
4 point for you make your presentation at that
5 time. Thank you for taking the time.
6 Is there a motion to adjourn?
7 MR. BELLIN: So moved.
8 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: Our next meeting is --
9 I'm sorry, before we do that, our next meeting
10 is set for when? Hold on. We didn't adjourn.
11 MR. BOLYARD: November 12th.
12 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: November 12th.
13 There's a motion. Second?
14 MR. BELLO: Second.
15 CHAIRMAN AIZENSTAT: All adjourned.
16 (Thereupon, the hearing was adjourned at
17 9:31p.m.)
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
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Staff Report and Recommendation
4311 Ponce - Mixed Use Site Plan Review October 8, 2014

Avenue to the south. A mid-rise commercial office building which faces onto San Lorenzo Avenue is
located across SW 39™ Avenue to the east. There are one (1) story commercial buildings and surface
parking currently on the site. The property has “Commercial Mid-Rise Intensity” land use and Commercial
District (C) zoning designations, which are appropriate designations for the proposed mixed use project.

The project consists of an eight (8) story/93’-7” building containing a total of 55,178 sq. ft., consisting of
11,457 sq. ft. of retail on the ground floor, 24,133 sq. ft. of commercial office space on the 5" and 6"
floors, and eight (8) two story, two bedroom residential units on the 7" and 8" floors. There are 145
parking spaces proposed on three (3) garage levels above the ground floor, including eight (8) mechanical
lifts. A total of 144 parking spaces are required, as indicated within the application package.

Resolution No. 2008-38 (adopted on 03.11.08) approved a mixed use project on this property also known
as “4311 Ponce”. The current site is slightly larger, with the addition of a 5,000 square foot parcel (Lots 36
& 37) adjoining the site to the north. The previously approved project consisted of a seven (7) story / 83’-
6” high building with a penthouse (to 95’-6” height) containing 46,150 square feet of primarily commercial
office space with ground floor retail, four (4) live/work residential units and three (3) floors of parking.
There were 182 parking spaces provided (24 spaces more than required by Code), with 83 of those spaces
being mechanical lifts. Conditions of approval were required for the project and are listed in the adopting
resolution. A copy of that resolution is included with the application package (see Attachment A). The
previously approved mixed use project was not constructed, and the proposed project has now been
submitted for public hearing review.
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Staff Report and Recommendation
4311 Ponce - Mixed Use Site Plan Review October 8, 2014

The property is bounded by Ponce de Leon Boulevard (west), SW 39™ Avenue (east) and San Lorenzo
Avenue (south), as shown on the following location map and aerial photo:

Block, Lot and Section Location Map
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Aerial

Site Data and Project Timeline

Site Data and Surrounding Uses

The following tables provide the subject property’s designations and surrounding land uses:

Existing Property Designations

Land Use Map designation Commercial Mid-Rise Intensity

Zoning Map designation Commercial District (C)

Mixed Use Overlay District (MXOD) Yes - North Industrial MXOD

Mediterranean Architectural District Yes - Mandatory Mediterranean Architecture Style
Coral Gables Redevelopment Infill District Yes
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4311 Ponce - Mixed Use Site Plan Review

Surrounding Land Uses

October 8, 2014

Location Existing Land Uses CP Designations Zoning Designations
North 1 story commercial building Commercial Mid-Rise Commercial District (C)
Intensity

South The Village of Merrick Park Industrial Industrial District (1)

East Mid-rise commercial office Industrial Industrial District (1)
building and City of Miami
West The Village of Merrick Park Commercial Mid-Rise Commercial District (C) &
Intensity & Industrial Industrial District (1)

The Applicant proposes no changes to the
illustrated in the following maps:

Existing Land Use Map

City Review Timeline

property’s existing land use and zoning designations, as

The proposal has undergone the following City reviews:

Existing Zoning Map

Type of Review Date Result of Review
Development Review Committee 04.25.14 Comments provided to Applicant
Board of Architects 06.12.14 Preliminary approval and approval of
Mediterranean architectural bonuses
Planning and Zoning Board 10.08.14 | TBD
City Commission (Resolution — MXD site plan) 11.18.14 | TBD

City of Coral Gables Planning Division
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Proposed Mixed Use Project

Legislative History

A mixed use project also referred to as “4311 Ponce” was previously approved on this property. That
project consisted of a seven (7) story / 83’-6” high building with a penthouse (to 95’-6” height)
containing 46,150 square feet of primarily commercial office space with ground floor retail, four (4)
live/work residential units and three (3) floors of parking. There were 182 parking spaces provided (24
spaces more than required by Code), with 83 of those spaces being mechanical lifts. The following
resolution was approved for that project (copy of resolution provided in Attachment A):

1. Resolution No. 2008-38 (adopted 03.11.08) — Approved mixed use site plan with conditions,
which are listed in the adopting resolution.

Proposal — Mixed Use Project
The Application package submitted by the Applicant (see Attachment A) includes the following:

1) Cover letter;

2) Application;

3) Survey of property;

4) Aerial and site photos;

5) Architectural plans and elevations;

6) Landscape plan;

7) Utility relocation plan;

8) Lighting plan;

9) Sign master plan;

10) Concurrency impact statement;

11) Public school preliminary concurrency analysis;
12) Background — Resolution No. 2008-38;
13) Historical Significance Letter; and,

14) Traffic study executive summary.

Mediterranean Architectural Style
Mediterranean architectural style is required for mixed use projects located within a Mixed Use Overlay
District (MXOD). The proposed project received preliminary approval which included Mediterranean

architectural style approval from the Board of Architects on 06.12.14.

A summary of the project is provided in the Applicant’s Zoning Data Sheet submitted with the Applicant
and is presented in the following tables.
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4311 Ponce - Mixed Use Site Plan Review October 8, 2014

Site Plan Information:

Type Permitted Proposed
Total site area - 20,035 sq. ft. (0.46 acres)
3.5 FAR x total site area 70,123 sq. ft. -
Total square footage of building 55,178 sq. ft.
Retail square footage 11,457 sq. ft.
Office square footage 24,133 sq. ft.
Building height Up to 100°-0” 93’-7”
Number of floors No limitation 8 floors
Residential unit total No density limitations (units/ 8 units
acre) within a designated MXOD

Residential unit mix:

One bedroom N/A

Two bedroom 8 units

Three bedroom N/A

Parking:
Off-street (onsite) parking
Uses Required Proposed

Residential units 16 spaces 16 spaces
Retail use 46 spaces 46 spaces
Office use 82 spaces 82 spaces
Total on-site project parking 144 spaces 145 spaces
Additional parking provided 1 space

There are currently two (2) on-street parking spaces adjacent to the property along San Lorenzo Avenue.
The Parking Director has determined there will be a loss of one (1) on-street parking space. As a result,
the Applicant, property owner(s), its successors or assigns, shall be required to reimburse the City for the
costs associated with the loss of on-street parking in accordance with City requirements.

Development Review Committee Zoning Review

A zoning review was prepared by the Planning and Zoning Division based on the project application
submittal for the Development Review Committee (DRC) and is provided as Attachment B.

Setbacks/Stepbacks:
The proposed Application does not comply with the Zoning Code requirements for building

setbacks/stepbacks. The Application must comply with one (1) of the following in order to meet the
requirements of the Zoning Code for setbacks/stepbacks for mixed use projects:

1. Provide the minimum ten (10) foot front setback for the entire building along the front property
line (Ponce de Leon Blvd). A minimum front setback of ten (10) feet is required for buildings over
forty-five (45) feet in height.

City of Coral Gables Planning Division Page 7
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2. Comply with Zoning Code Section 4-201.E.15 for setback reductions. Applicant may provide zero
(0) foot setbacks on all sides if vertical building stepbacks of a minimum of ten (10) feet are
provided at a maximum height of forty-five (45) feet on all building facades.

Currently, the project proposes a zero (0) foot front setback with a height of 93’-7”. The minimum
ten (10) feet stepback at a maximum height of forty-five (45) feet on all building facades has not
been provided.

Setbacks:
Type Required* Proposed
Front setback (Ponce de Leon Boulevard) Ten (10) feet Zero (0) feet
Side street setback (San Lorenzo Avenue) Fifteen (15) feet Fifteen (15) feet
Interior side setback (north) None Zero (0) feet
Rear setback (SW 39%" Avenue) None Zero (0) feet

* Setback reductions may be awarded for MXD projects approved for Mediterranean style design bonuses. Setback reductions
are only permitted for MXD projects subject to providing vertical building stepbacks.

Stepbacks:
Type Required* Proposed

Front (Ponce de Leon Boulevard) 0’-0” up to 45’ and Complies for

10”-0’ over 45’ habitable space
only

Side street (San Lorenzo Avenue) 0’-0” up to 45’ and None — does not
10”-0’ over 45’ comply

Interior side (north) 0’-0” up to 45’ and None — does not
10”-0" over 45’ comply

Rear (SW 39t Avenue) 0’-0" up to 45’ and None — does not
10”-0" over 45’ comply

* Vertical building stepbacks are required for MXD buildings when setback reductions are requested.

Landscaping:
Location Required Provided
Landscape open space (on-site) Must comply with ZC Section | Must comply at time of final
5-1104 A1thru 1l plan review
Landscape open space (rights-of-way) Must meet City Streetscape Must comply at time of final
Master Plan requirements plan review

The Applicant’s proposed ground floor plan, landscape plan, and building elevations are provided on the
following pages.

City of Coral Gables Planning Division Page 8
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Landscape Plan
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West (Ponce de Leon Boulevard) Building Elevation
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South (San Lorenzo Avenue) Building Elevation
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East (SW 39" Avenue) Building Elevation
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North (LeJeune Road) Building Elevation
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Staff Report and Recommendation
4311 Ponce - Mixed Use Site Plan Review October 8, 2014

Findings of Fact

This section of the report presents City Staff’s evaluation of the Applications and Findings of Facts. The
City’s responsibility is to review the Applications for consistency with the City’s Comprehensive Plan (CP)
Goals, Objectives and Policies and compliance with the Zoning Code and City Code.

Findings of Fact - Mixed Use Site Plan
Mixed Use District (MXD) Purpose and Objectives

The current Zoning Code and Comprehensive Plan mixed use provisions were adopted in 2004 and
updated/revised as a part of the Zoning Code and Comprehensive Plan rewrite. The Zoning Code and
Comprehensive Plan provides for a designated North and South Industrial Mixed Use Overlay District
(MXOD) geographic area. The MXOD was created to encourage mixed use development that specifically
provided for residential development which was previously not a permitted use within the City’s
Industrial District. The regulations are voluntary and property owners who choose to develop under
these regulations are required to undergo conditional use site plan review.

Zoning Code, Division 2, Overlay and Special Purpose Districts, Section 4-201, “Mixed Use District -
Purpose” provides for the following:

“1. Provide the method by which tracts of land may be developed as a planned unified project
rather than on a lot-by-lot basis as provided for in the City’s other regulations.

2. Provide for residential uses at higher densities in exchange for public realm improvements.

3. Provide maximum design freedom by permitting property owners an opportunity to more
fully utilize the physical characteristics of the site through modified development regulations
and the planned mixing of uses.

4. Require that property within the District will be developed through a unified design
providing continuity among the various elements causing a better environment.

5. Create a diversity of uses within walking distance, including but not limited to: residential,
offices, workplaces, neighborhood commercial, and public open spaces.

6. By organizing appropriate building densities, public transit will be further strengthened as
an alternative to the use of private vehicles.

7. Provide a strong emphasis on aesthetics and architectural design through the use of the
regulations and the planned mixing of uses to establish identity, diversity and focus to
promote a pedestrian friendly environment.”

Staff comments: The compliance of the Applicant’s plans with the mixed-use requirements and
performance standards set out in Zoning Code Section 4-201 (D) through (M) has been evaluated and is
provided in the DRC Zoning Review prepared by the Planning and Zoning Division provided as
Attachment B. That analysis determined that the proposal does not satisfy the Code’s minimum
requirements for a mixed use project. The proposed project does not meet the requirements for
building setbacks/stepbacks.
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Conditional Use Review Criteria

Zoning Code, Division 4, Conditional Uses, Section 3-404, General Procedures for Conditional Uses
summarizes the procedures for the review of a Conditional Use application:

“1. Provide a report that summarizes the application, including whether the application
complies with each of the standards for granting conditional use approval in Section 3-408.

2. Provide written recommended findings of fact regarding the standards for granting
conditional use approval in Section 3-408.

3. Provide a recommendation as to whether the application should be approved, approved
with conditions, or denied.

4. Provide the report and recommendation, with a copy to the applicant, to the Planning and
Zoning Board for review.

5. Schedule the application for hearing before the Planning and Zoning Board upon completion
of the Board of Architect’s review.

6. Provide notice of the hearing of a conditional use application before the Planning and Zoning
Board in accordance with the provisions of Article 3, Division 3 of these regulations.

7. Schedule and provide notice before the City Commission of a conditional use application in
accordance with the provisions of Article 3, Division 3 of these regulations.”

Zoning Code, Division 4, Conditional Uses, Section 3-406, “Planning and Zoning Board Recommendation”
states that the Planning and Zoning Board shall review applications for conditional use (site plan review)
and provide a recommendation to the City Commission whether they should grant approval, grant
approval subject to specific conditions or deny the application. The Zoning Code specifically states “the
Planning Department, Planning and Zoning Board and City Commission may recommend such conditions
to an approval that are necessary to ensure compliance with the standards set out in Zoning Code,
Division 4, Conditional Uses, Section 3-408, “ Standards for Review.“

Planning Staff’s review of the criteria set out in Section 3-408, “Standards for Review” is as follows
(italics indicate Zoning Code verbatim text):

A. “The proposed conditional use is consistent with and furthers the goals, objectives and policies of the
Comprehensive Land Use Plan and furthers the purposes of these regulations and other City
ordinances and actions designed to implement the Plan.”

Staff comments: As concluded in this report, this Application is “consistent” with the CP’s Goals,
Objectives and Policies, except for Policy DES-1.1.5 which addresses bulk and massing of the
proposed development. The Industrial District encompasses a large area that is served by numerous
residential, commercial, retail and office uses. The area is served by the Coral Gables Trolley and
regional Miami-Dade Metrorail station.

B. “The available use to which the property may be put is appropriate to the property that is subject to
the proposed conditional use and compatible with existing and planned uses in the area”.

Staff comments: The subject property is located within the MXOD North Industrial District which
allows for the voluntary development of this property as a mixed use project with residential units.
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The project is similar to existing mixed use projects in the area and those which are being planned
and under construction. The utilization of the site as a mixed use project is consistent with the
property’s existing “Commercial Mid-Rise Intensity” land use and Commercial District (C) zoning
designations.

C. “The proposed conditional use does not conflict with the needs and character of the neighborhood
and the City”.

Staff comments: The subject property is surrounded by properties with commercial and industrial
land use designations, and between the “Village of Merrick Park” and an existing mid-rise
commercial office building. Leleune Road, Bird Road and Ponce de Leon Boulevard serve as arterial
transportation corridors and physical boundary for the Industrial District. The redevelopment of this
property as a mixed use project provides additional multi-family residential units to residents of the
City, and the creation of a pedestrian oriented urban environment in the North Industrial MXOD. The
ground floor pedestrian uses included in the project shall enhance the redevelopment of the
Industrial District.

D. “The proposed conditional use will not adversely or unreasonably affect the use of other property in
the area.”

Staff comments: The existing Village of Merrick Park is adjacent to this site to the west and south,
and an existing mid-rise commercial office building is located to the east of the project. These
developments include residential, retail and office uses, which are similar to the proposed mixed use
project. The Applicant’s proposal is consistent with the underlying CP designation. The proposed
project does not comply with Zoning Code’s required building setback/stepback for a mixed use
development, which is intended to reduce the project’s impact on adjacent properties and protect
the general health and welfare of surrounding tenants and rights of adjacent property owners.
Conditions of approval are recommended that mitigate potential negative impacts created during
construction, and after the project has been completed. These include conditions that require the
provision of a construction staging and service plan during construction, address parking and parking
circulation, and the provision of public realm/landscaping improvements, streetscape improvements.

E. “The proposed use is compatible with the nature, condition and development of adjacent uses,
buildings and structures and will not adversely affect the adjacent uses, buildings or structures”.

Staff comments: The planned redevelopment of this property as a mixed-use project does not
comply with the intent of the MXOD provisions, as it does not provide the building setback/stepback
which is intended to reduce the project’s impact on adjacent properties. The height of the project is
93’-8”, which is similar in height to other developments located near this property.

F. “The parcel proposed for development is adequate in size and shape to accommodate all
development features.”

Staff comments: The subject property is larger than the minimum 10,000 square foot size for a mixed
use project within an approved MXOD. The Planning and Zoning Division’s DRC Zoning Review
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indicates the project does not meet all Zoning Code requirements and design criteria (see
Attachment B).

G. “The nature of the proposed development is not detrimental to the health, safety and general welfare
of the community.”

Staff comments: Commercial and industrial zoned properties surround the project site, and the
height of the project is consistent with the property’s underlying “Commercial Mid-Rise Intensity”
land use designation. The proposed project does not comply with Zoning Code’s required building
setback/stepback for a mixed use development, which is intended to reduce the project’s impact on
adjacent properties and protect the general health and welfare of surrounding tenants and rights of
adjacent property owners.

H. “The design of the proposed driveways, circulation patterns and parking is well defined to promote
vehicular and pedestrian circulation.”

Staff comments: All vehicular parking for the project is accessed from a single curb cut located on San
Lorenzo Avenue, away from the primary pedestrian street frontage along Ponce de Leon Boulevard.
All service access is located along the rear of the building, and is physically separated from
pedestrian circulation around the perimeter of the project. Conditions of approval are recommended
to assure that adequate service access is provided during the construction of the project.

I. “The proposed conditional use satisfies the concurrency standards of Article 3, Division 13 and will
not adversely burden public facilities, including the traffic-carrying capacities of streets, in an
unreasonable or disproportionate manner”.

Staff comments: The proposed project was reviewed by the Zoning Division for concurrency, and the
Concurrency Impact Statement (CIS) issued by the Zoning Division for the project indicates that there
is adequate infrastructure available to support the project. The CIS is included within the Applicant’s
submittal package provided as Attachment A.

Traffic Study

The proposed project has been reviewed by the Public Works traffic consultant, who identified the
following issues regarding the submitted Traffic Study that have not yet been resolved:

1. Page 1, Section 1.1: Discuss the existing structure that currently exist and how long it has been
vacant.

2. Page 5: Please specify the type of parking for all streets. Parallel? Angle? Also, mention
somewhere in this section about the driveway that is currently open on Ponce de Leon Blvd to
access the site. Please state that it will be closed as shown on the site plan.

3. Page 6, Section 2.2: Specify the peak hour period that was used for the study. What hours?

a. Generally, when calculating a peak hour factor it is done in a peak hour not a peak period
average. However, it is understood that this methodology is described in the City’s
comprehensive plan and the consultant is following the City’s guideline. Please make sure
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that all legends and write up in the report discloses this information. You use the terminology
“peak hour” but it should be “peak period average”. That should be clear in the report. Please
modify.
Page 6: Traffic Counts were collected while school was out (August 12-13). The traffic data may
not be demonstrating accurate peak conditions. It is up to the City to accept the counts as
documented.
Page 6, Section 2.2: The factor that was used for the TMC’s is the seasonal factor. Since these are
turning movement counts, the PSCF should have been applied which is 1.02. Please modify and
update all documents accordingly.
Exhibit 2, page 7: The stop sign should be rotated to face the west leg and the thru movement at
San Lorenzo is incorrect. You can only make a right or left at that leg of the intersection.
Exhibit 3, page 8: The traffic counts are not matching the Appendix. The NBT in the PM should be
424, the SBT should be 487 and the NBR should be 57. Please modify exhibit.
Exhibit 5, page 11: The LOS for the SB AM should be B not A.
Page 13, Section 4.1: For the signal timings for future conditions were the timings optimized or
left as existing?
Exhibit 7, page 14: Please confirm that these counts are correct and that they used the correct
existing TMC's since the traffic counts in Exhibit 3 were incorrect.
Page 16: Please talk about the internal capture, as shown in Exhibit 9.
Exhibit 9, page 17:

a. Please state why there were no counts in the AM for specialty retail. | know the Trip
generation does not have a model for the AM but you should mention that somewhere in the
report.

b. For the land use 230, you are showing that a rate was used but the Appendix output is
showing that an equation was used. Please make sure your AM and PM trips are correct and
modify the table to show the equation not rate.

Exhibit 13, page 21: The traffic counts in the synchro outputs (future) do not match what is

shown in the exhibit. Please modify. Also, for future reports, please attach in the Appendix a

table showing the future traffic counts with the factors that were applied.

Proposed Landscaping

The proposed project has been reviewed by the Public Service Director, who identified the following
issues regarding the proposed landscaping that have not yet been resolved:

Since the existing driveway is being removed, the existing curb cut and driveway apron needs to
be removed, replaced with a vertical curb, and landscaped with irrigation to match the existing
streetscape.

Planting bulb outs may be required at the alleyway and parking garage entrance on San Lorenzo
Ave.

Some form of landscape needs to be incorporated on the street level in the alleyway. i.e.
Creeping Fig growing on the walls, trellis structures with vines, etc.

Are the overhead wires in the alley way being relocated underground?

The balconies on levels five and six, particularly the east facing ones, need to have planters and
irrigation incorporated into them since they face the blank wall of the adjacent building.

City of Coral Gables Planning Division Page 19



Staff Report and Recommendation
4311 Ponce - Mixed Use Site Plan Review October 8, 2014

6. Consider screening the exposed parking on level four from the view of level five above.

7. The Residential Outdoor Plaza on level seven is confusing as to its purpose and functionality.
What is the intended program/use for this vast covered area? More landscape should be
considered to help define the space and enhance the functionality for the residents.

Concurrency Management

This project has been reviewed for compliance with the City’s Concurrency Management program. The
Concurrency Impact Statement (CIS) for the project indicates that there is adequate infrastructure
available to support the project. The CIS is included within the Applicant’s submittal package provided
as Attachment A.

Public School Concurrency Review

Pursuant to the Educational Element of the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Article 3, Division 13 of the
Zoning Code, and State of Florida growth management statute requirements, public school concurrency
review is required prior to final Board of Architects review for all applications for development approval in
order to identify and address the impacts of new residential development on the levels of service for public
school facilities. For a residential development to secure a building permit, adequate school capacity
must be available or scheduled to be under actual construction within three years of the final approval.
If capacity is not available, the developer, school district and affected local government must work
together to find a way to provide capacity before the development can proceed. A letter was received
from the Miami-Dade County Public School Board dated 08.27.14 stating the proposed project had been
reviewed and that the required Level of Service (LOS) standard had been met at all three school levels
and that school capacity has been reserved for a period of one year. A copy of that letter is included in
the submitted application package provided as Attachment A.

Art in Public Places Program

The plans submitted with the Application package indicate the proposed location for public art intended
to satisfy the City’s Art in Public Places program. The proposed art work is in the form of vertical topiary
art walls depicted on the west elevation (Ponce de Leon Blvd), south elevation (San Lorenzo Ave), and
east elevation (SW 39™ Ave) of the architectural building elevations provided in the applicant’s submittal
package (Attachment A). The Applicant must comply with all City requirements for Art in Public Places,
which will include having the proposed artist and concept reviewed by the Arts Advisory Panel and
Cultural Development Board, and obtain Board of Architects approval before being submitted to the City
Commission. This requirement has been included as a recommended condition of approval.

Consistency Evaluation of the Comprehensive Plan (CP) Goals, Objectives
and Policies

This section provides those CP Goals, Objectives and Policies applicable to the Application and the
determination of consistency:
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Ref.

No.

CP Goal, Objective and Policy

Staff
Review

1.

Goal FLU-1. Protect, strengthen, and enhance the City of Coral Gables as a vibrant
community ensuring that its neighborhoods, business opportunities, shopping,
employment centers, cultural activities, historic value, desirable housing, open
spaces, and natural resources make the City a very desirable place to work, live and

play.

Complies

Objective FLU-1.1. Preserve Coral Gables as a “placemaker” where the balance of
existing and future uses is maintained to achieve a high quality living environment by
encouraging compatible land uses, restoring and protecting the natural environment,
and providing facilities and services which meet or exceed the minimum Level of
Service (LOS) standards and meet the social and economic needs of the community
through the Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Classifications and Map (see
FLU-1: Future Land Use Map).

Complies

Objective FLU-1.2. Efforts shall continue to be made to control blighting influences,
and redevelopment shall continue to be encouraged in areas experiencing
deterioration.

Complies

Policy FLU-1.7.1. Encourage effective and proper high quality development of the
Central Business District, the Industrial District and the University of Miami
employment centers which offer potential for local employment in proximity to
protected residential neighborhoods.

Complies

Policy FLU-1.7.2. The City shall continue to enforce the Mediterranean architectural
provisions for providing incentives for infill and redevelopment that address, at a
minimum, the impact on the following issues:

e Surrounding land use compatibility.

e Historic resources.

e Neighborhood Identity.

e Public Facilities including roadways.

e Intensity/Density of the use.

e Access and parking.

e landscaping and buffering.

Complies

Policy FLU-1.9.1. Encourage balanced mixed use development in the central business
district and adjoining commercial areas to promote pedestrian activity and provide
for specific commitments to design excellence and long term economic and cultural
vitality.

Complies

Objective FLU-1.11. Maintain a pattern of overall low density residential use with
limited medium and high density residential uses in appropriate areas to preserve the
low intensity and high quality character of the residential neighborhoods.

Complies

Goal DES-1. Maintain the City as a livable city, attractive in its setting and dynamic in
its urban character.

Complies

Objective DES-1.1. Preserve and promote high quality, creative design and site
planning that is compatible with the City’s architectural heritage, surrounding
development, public spaces and open spaces.

Complies

10.

Policy DES-1.1.3. Ensure that the design of buildings and spaces in historic areas of
the City complements, is compatible with, does not attempt to imitate and does not

Complies
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ik CP Goal, Objective and Policy St?ff
No. Review

undermine the City’s historic character.

11. | Policy DES-1.1.5. Promote the development of property that achieves unified | Does not comply
civic design and proper relationship between the uses of land both within | (see following
zoning districts and surrounding districts, by regulating, limiting and | staff comments
determining the location, height, density, bulk and massing, access to light for issues)
and air, area of yards, open space, vegetation and use of buildings, signs and
other structures.

12. | Policy DES-1.1.6. Maintain the character of the residential and nonresidential | Complies
districts, and their peculiar suitability for particular uses.

13. | Policy DES-1.2.1. Continue the award of development bonuses and/or other | Complies
incentives to promote Coral Gables Mediterranean design character providing for but
not limited to the following: creative use of architecture to promote public realm
improvements and pedestrian amenities; provide a visual linkage between
contemporary architecture and the existing and new architectural fabric; encourage
landmark opportunities; and creation of public open spaces.

14. | Policy DES-1.2.2. Require that private development and public projects are designed | Complies
consistent with the City’s unique and historical Mediterranean appearance in balance
with contemporary architecture.

15. | Objective DES-1.3. Encourage high quality signage that is attractive, appropriately | Complies
located and scaled, and balances visibility with aesthetic needs.

16. | Objective HOU-1.5. Support the infill of housing in association with mixed use | Complies
development.

17. | Policy HOU-1.5.2. Encourage residential mixed use as a means of increasing housing | Complies
supply within the Downtown/Central Business District/Mixed Use Development
Overlay Area, thereby promoting increase in commercial and retail activity, increased
use of transit, reduction of auto dependency, in association with minimizing visual
and physical impacts of nearby lower density areas.

18. | Objective MOB-1.1. Provide solutions to mitigate and reduce the impacts of vehicular | Complies
traffic on the environment, and residential streets in particular with emphasis on
alternatives to the automobile including walking, bicycling, public transit and vehicle
pooling.

19. | Policy MOB-1.1.1. Promote mixed use development to provide housing and | Complies
commercial services near employment centers, thereby reducing the need to drive.

20. | Policy MOB-1.1.2. Encourage land use decisions that encourage infill, redevelopment | Complies
and reuse of vacant or underutilized parcels that support walking, bicycling and public
transit use.

21. | Policy MOB-1.1.3. Locate higher density development along transit corridors and | Complies
near multimodal stations.

22. | Policy MOB-1.1.5. Improve amenities within public spaces, streets, alleys and parks | Complies

to include the following improvements: seating; art; architectural elements (at street
level); lighting; bicycle parking; street trees; improved pedestrian crossing with bulb-
outs, small curb radii, on-street parking along sidewalks, pedestrian paths and bicycle
paths to encourage walking and cycling with the intent of enhancing the feeling of
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et CP Goal, Objective and Policy St?ff
o Review

safety.

23. | Policy MOB-1.1.8. Protect residential areas from parking impacts of nearby | Complies

nonresidential uses and businesses and discourage parking facilities that intrude,

impact and increase traffic into adjacent residential areas.

24. | Policy MOB-2.8.1. The City shall continue implementation and further strengthen the | Complies

City’s existing land development regulations requiring the placement of landscaping

within rights-of-way to complete the following:

e Promote expansion of the City’s existing tree canopy.

e Provide screening of potentially objectionable uses.

e Serve as visual and sound buffers.

Provide a comfortable environment for pedestrian walking (walkability) and other

activities.

e Improve the visual attractiveness of the wurban and residential areas
(neighborhoods).

Staff Comments: Staff’s determination that this application is “consistent” with the CP Goals, Objectives
and Policies, except for Policy DES-1.1.5 with regards to the proposals bulk and massing, access to light
and air, area of yards, open space and vegetation. The proposal does not comply with Zoning Code’s
building setback/stepback requirements for a mixed use project, which are intended to reduce the
project’s impact on adjacent properties and protect the general health and welfare of surrounding
tenants and rights of adjacent property owners. The Applicant’s plans do address the City objectives for
encouraging mixed use development in the Industrial Section.

Public Notification and Comments

The Applicant has not submitted evidence that the mandatory neighborhood meeting required by
Section 3-302(D) of the Zoning Code to be held a minimum of fourteen (14) days prior to public hearing
before the Planning and Zoning Board has been conducted. The Applicant is required to notify all
property owners within 1,500 feet of the property boundary as well as within the North Industrial MXOD
and provide a copy of the meeting invitation and attendance list to the Planning Division, which has not
been completed.

The Zoning Code requires that a courtesy notification be provided to all property owners within 1,500
feet of the boundary of the entire mixed use overlay district as well as within the boundaries. The notice
indicates the following: applications filed; public hearing dates/time/location; where the application
files can be reviewed and provides for an opportunity to submit comments. Approximately 939 notices
were mailed. A copy of the legal advertisement and courtesy notice are provided as Attachments C and
D. A map of the notice radius is as follows:
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Courtesy Notification Radius Map

The following has been completed to solicit input and provide notice of the Application:

Public Notice
Type Date
Applicant’s neighborhood meeting Incomplete
Courtesy notification to properties within 1,500 ft. of the entire MXOD and within MXOD 09.26.14
Posting of property 09.26.14
Legal advertisement 09.26.14
Posted agenda on City web page/City Hall 10.03.14
Posted Staff report on City web page 10.03.14
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Staff Recommendation

The Planning Division based upon the complete Findings of Fact contained within this Report
recommends continuance of the following:

A Resolution of the City Commission of Coral Gables, Florida requesting mixed use site plan
review pursuant to Zoning Code Article 4, “Zoning Districts”, Division 2, “Overlay and Special
Purpose Districts”, Section 4-201, “Mixed Use District (MXD)” for the mixed use project referred
to as “4311 Ponce” on the property legally described as Lots 36-43, Block 5, Industrial Section
(4225 and 4311 Ponce de Leon Boulevard), Coral Gables, Florida; including required conditions;
providing for an effective date.

Summary of Recommendation for Continuance

At the request of the Applicant and advice of the City Attorney, this item has been placed on the
Planning and Zoning Board agenda. Staff cannot fully evaluate the application and provide a
recommendation at this time due to unresolved issues regarding the submitted application. Therefore, a
continuance of this item is recommended by Staff. Staff recommends continuance of this item to the
Board’s November 12, 2014 meeting.

The remaining unresolved issues are as follows:

1. Application does not comply with Zoning Code requirements for building setbacks/stepbacks.
Application must comply with one (1) of the following in order to meet the requirements of the
Zoning Code for setbacks/stepbacks for mixed use projects:

a. Provide the minimum ten (10) foot front setback for the entire building along the front
property line (Ponce de Leon Blvd). A minimum front setback of ten (10) feet is required
for buildings over forty-five (45) feet in height; or

b. Comply with Zoning Code Section 4-201.E.15 for setback reductions. Applicant may
provide zero (0) foot setbacks on all sides if vertical building stepbacks of a minimum of
ten (10) feet are provided at a maximum height of forty-five (45) feet on all building
facades.

Currently, the project proposes a zero (0) foot front setback with a height of 93’-7”.

2. Comments have been provided by the City’s Public Works traffic consultant regarding the
submitted Traffic Study that have not yet been resolved. Those issues are itemized in this Staff
report.

3. Comments have been provided by the City’s Public Service Director regarding proposed
landscaping that have not yet been resolved. Those issues are itemized in this Staff report.

4. Zoning Code Section 3-302(D) requires all applicants filing applications requiring a public hearing
before the Planning and Zoning Board shall conduct a minimum of one (1) public information
meeting, a minimum of fourteen (14) days in advance of the Planning and Zoning Board public
hearing. The Applicant was notified of that requirement in the 04.25.14 comment memo provided
when the project was reviewed by the development Review Committee (DRC). The Applicant has
not provided evidence that the resident’s meeting has been conducted.

If revisions are incorporated by the Applicant to address the required building setbacks/stepbacks, the
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plans should be reviewed and preliminary approved by the Board of Architects prior to consideration by
the Board.

Alternative Conditions

If the Planning and Zoning Board determine on the basis of the facts of the application, testimony, and
evidence received that the application is consistent and satisfies the criteria of the CLUP, Zoning Code
and City Code, and recommends approval of the applicant’s proposed mixed use project referred to as
“4311 Ponce”, Planning Staff recommends the following conditions of approval be included:

1. Prior to scheduling for consideration by the City Commission at public hearings, the applicant shall
revise the application to meet all Zoning Code requirements, which shall include submittal for review
and preliminary approval by the Board of Architects.

2. Application/supporting documentation. Construction of the proposed project shall be in substantial
conformance with all of the following:

a. Applicant’s Planning and Zoning Board submittal package dated 08.21.14, prepared by Mateu
Architecture Incorporated.

b. Traffic Impact Study, dated August 2014, prepared by David Plummer & Associates.

All representations proffered by the Applicant’s representatives as a part of the review of the
Application at public hearings.

3. Restrictive covenant. Within thirty (30) days of City Commission approval of the Application, the
Applicant, property owner(s), its successors or assigns shall submit a restrictive covenant for City
Attorney review and approval outlining all conditions of approval as approved by the City
Commission. Failure to submit the draft restrictive covenant within the specified time frame shall
render the approval void unless said time frame for submittal of the draft restrictive covenant is
extended by the City Attorney after good cause as to why the time frame should be extended.

4. Prior to the issuance of a City Building Permit for the project, the Applicant, property owner(s), its
successors or assigns, shall satisfy the following conditions:

a. All outstanding Traffic Study issues as identified by the Public Works Department and City’s traffic
consultant shall be satisfactorily resolved, subject to review and approval by the Director of
Public Works.

b. All outstanding landscaping issues issues as identified by the Public Service Department shall be
satisfactorily resolved, subject to review and approval by the Director of Public Service.

c. On-street parking. Payment shall be provided by Applicant, its successors or assigns according to
established City requirements for the loss of one (1) on-street parking space as a result of the
project.

d. Construction information/contact. Provide written notice to all properties within five hundred
(500) feet of the “4311 Ponce” project (4311 Ponce de Leon Blvd), providing a specific
liaison/contact person for the project including the contact name, contact telephone number and
email, to allow communication between adjacent neighbors or interested parties of construction
activities, project status, potential concerns, etc.

e. Comply with all City requirements for Art in Public Places, which will include having the proposed
artist and concept for the redesign of the existing plaza as a civic space with public art to be
reviewed by the Arts Advisory Panel and Cultural Development Board, and Board of Architects
approval before being submitted to the City Commission. The Applicant’s compliance with all
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August 15, 2014

Planning and Zoning Board

City of Coral Gables

427 Biltmore Way, 2" Floor
Coral Gables, Florida 33134

Re: PLANNING DIVISION APPLICATION — STATEMENT OF USE FOR:

MIXED USE DEVELOPMENT PROJECT
4225 AND 4311 PONCE DE LEON BOULEVARD
CORAL GABLES, FLORIDA

Dear Members of the Planning and Zoning Board:

On behalf of 4225 Properties, LLC and 4311 Ponce De Leon, LLC, Owners of the above referenced project, please accept this
letter as our request for your review of the proposed design and construction of a new Mixed-Use project located at the SE
corner of Ponce De Leon Blvd. and San Lorenzo Avenue, at 4311 Ponce De Leon Blvd., Coral Gables, Florida.

The 20,000 s.ft. site is currently zoned under the Commercial District (C), within the North Industrial Mixed-Use District
Overlay, and under the Future Land Use Map, it is labeled Commercial Mid-Rise Intensity (70 Feet; 3.0 FAR), within the MXD
Mixed-Use Overlay District.

There are currently two small structures, one each of both 4225 Ponce and 4311 Ponce, and Historical Significance letter
findings as required, are included in this submittal.

The proposed development project consists ground level Retail Space, three levels of Parking, two levels of Office Space and
a Roof Terrace that includes 8 Residential, 2-story, 2-Bedroom Apartments. All required parking is provided on site.

The proposed development has been designed to meet the Coral Gables Building and Zoning Code and is allowed by Right,
without the need or request of any Mediterranean Bonuses that may be available for the development of the site. Nevertheless,
the project fully complies with all the requirements of Article 4, Section 4-201, and in particular, all of the requirements as
outlined in Table 1, Reference 1-17. The proposed development is below the FAR allowed, below the height allowable, exceeds
the parking requirements per uses, exceeds minimum retail frontage requirements and meets all other minimum and maximum
limitations per code. The Project was APPROVED by the City of Coral Gables Board of Architects on June 12, 2014.

The 4311 Ponce Mixed-Use Development Project design, in an unique and dual purpose solution, proposes to create a series of
unique “vertical topiary” screens, that wrap around the structure along the primary corner site, as our “Art in Public Places”
proposal, while simultaneously, meeting the necessity of “visually covering” and screening parking structures from primary streets,
as required by the code, in the City of Coral Gables. A landscape artist, Jefré, approved by the City's Art in Public Places
Committee, has been commissioned to work with the Architect in the design of the “vertical topiary” screens.

We believe that the 4311 Ponce Mixed-Use Development Project will be a positive and exciting contributor to the urban fabric
of Coral Gables, adding a new, unique and vibrant addition to the quality and diversity of life that Coral Gables has to offer.

We look forward to meeting and discussing our project with you at our scheduled date of presentation.

Sincerely,

Roney J. Mateu, FAIA
MATEU Architecture, Inc.
RIM/rm
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LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

LOTS 36 THROUGH 43, BLOCK 5 OF REVISED PLAT OF
CORAL GABLES INDUSTRIAL SECTION, ACCORDING TO
THE PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 28,
PAGE 22, OF THE PUBLIC RECODS OF MIAMI-DADE

COUNTY, FLORIDA.
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Jose M. Martinez, PE. #56018
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Miami, Florida 33173 FAX (305) 271-0090

TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS SUBMITTED
HEREWITH COMPLY WITH EXISTING INTERPRETATIONS AND PROVISIONS OF THE
APPLICABLE BUILDING CODES. THIS DRAWING IS THE SOLE PROPERTY OF

"JMM CONSULTING ENGINEERS LLC' AND IS AN INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE NOT TO BE
REPRODUCED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN PERMISSION

OF UMM CONSULTING ENGINEERS, LLC.
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ARTICLE 5 - DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS

to Board of
Architect
review and
approval.
Wall mounted One (1) per 1. 0.75square Fifty Twenty- four (24) | 1. Ninety-seven | Twelve (12)inch | 1. Buikding sign or one (1)
signs for street right-of feet per lineal {50 %) percent inches. (97) feet maximum curvilinear building name is sign
buildings 45.1 to | way frontage footof primary | of lineal building maximum projection from is permitted. Only one (1) sign of
97.0 feet” street frontage | frontage. 2. Minimum wall surface the above option permitted
not to exceed thirty-five 2. Building sign content/ text may include
@ one hundred- (35) feet, upto two (2) rames, terants, ete.
*Fk fifty (150) s.f. 3. No off premises sponsors or
2. 0.25 square advertising signs permitted.
feet per lineal 4. Sign shall be proportionate to the
foot of side facade on which it is located,
street respecting the integrity of the
frontage. architecture of the building.
Window sign. Ten (10%) Six (6) inch 1. Permitted only on primary and
percent maximum. side street level frontages.
maximum of 2. Window signage above the first
street level total floor is prohibited.
window area or 3. The following text shall be exempt
twenty (20) sq. from the sign area calculations:
ft., maximum, enter; exit and simiar decals as
whichever is indicated below, and, property
less, address of building.

4. Maximum of one and a half (1 )
square feet of decal signs is
permitted to include the following:
entrance; exit; credit card

@ advertising or other decals as

wkk approved by the Building and
Zoning Department.  Physical
property address signs shall be
subject to these limitations.

5. Window signs must be applied to
the window in professional manner

6. The name of the establishment may
only be pemnitted once. Onre (1)
addtional establishment name is
pemmitted subject to design review
approval. The additional name shall
be the same text, Ilettering
style/height, color, ete for both signs.

*Height is measured from the established grade.
**Including all appendages of sign.
#6+ FUTURE USE AND LOCATION. DESIGN TO COMPLY WITH REQUIREMENTS OF
ARTICLE OF THE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS AND TABLES ABOVE
SIGN AREA SIGN LENGTH [ LETTERING HGHT.
PROPOSED SIGNAGE TYPE OF SIGN LOCATION MAX. PROVIDED | MAX. |PROVIDED| MAX. [PROVIDED
s ”» il ”»
L 60 , | 60 ® SAN LORENZO AVE.|18 S.F. | 18 S.F. | 12 FT.| 12 FT. | 18 IN. | 18 IN.
R_u\ @W@@% <:F§@ TENANT SIGNAGE
- - (STREET LEVEL)
—
s ” tl »
LS S e () ®
© YDECOR | HOUSE [TENANT SiGNAGE | PONCE DE LEON |18 SF. | 18 SF. | 65 FT.| 12 FT. | 18 IN.| 18 IN.
- (STREET LEVEL)
”
/ @ SAN LORENZO AVE
,nw%@ PARKING GARAGE “[100 S.F.{ .5 S.F. [ 12 FT.| 7 IN. 10 IN. | 10 IN.
—
(ENTRANCE/EXIT ID)

4311 PONCE

4311 PONCE DE LEON BOULEVARD
CORAL GABLES, FLORIDA 33146

08.21.2014

Parking garage One (1) building One-hundred Twelve (12) feet. | Ten (10) inches Within ten (10} Twelve (12) inch | 1. Sign text indicating “Entrance”

entrance/exit name or (100) square feet of top of maximum and “Exit * for parking garages

identification business name feet garage opening projection from shall be subject to the following:

signs in perone (1) entrance/exit. wall surface. a. Maximum lettering height: Ten
@ association with | entrance/exit, (10) inches.

principal b. Maximum sign length: Ten (10}

building. feet.

2. Sign shall be proportionate to the
facade on which it is located,
respecting the integrity of the

i of the building.
Projection sign One (1) per Three (3) square Six (8) inches. Ten (10) feet 1. Eight (8) feet | 1. One sign is permitted per sireet
(Street level). street level feet. maximum, max. level tenant.
tenant. Tenants projection 2. Temants occupying a corner at
on comers of from external two (2) ro.w.’s shall be permitted
r.o.w. shall be bidg. wall if one (1) additional sign.
permitted one (1) awning / 3. Internal or external llumination of
perr.o.w. canopy sign leftering and sign is
exists; or permitted
2. Four(4)feet | 4. Sign content/text shall only
maximum include tenant name and/or logo.
@ projection 5. Wood signs are permitted.
N from ext. 6. Decorative treatments and three-
bidg. wall
with no
awning/
canopy.
3. Five (5) feet
maximum
encroachme
nt into ro.w.
to outer
edge of
sign is
permitted.
Tenant signage One (1) per Eighteen (18) Fifty Twelve (12) Eighteen (18) 3. Twelve(12) 4. Tenmant signage is prohibted if
(street level). street level square feet per (50 %) percent inches or an feet maximum. inch maximum awning or canopy signage is
tenant per street | tenant. of lineal tenant increase in size projection from provided.
right-of-way frontage. to eighteen (18) wall surface. 5. Street level tenant names signs
@ frontage. inches if sign is 4, The maximum are permitted for those uses
e design sign as projection may located at street level,
provided herein. be exceeded 6. Permitted text shall only include
for design tenant name andfor logo.
signs, subject

MATEUARCHITECTURE

C.C.G. SIGN STANDARDS

N/A




NOILYATT13 HLION

9v1E€ VAIYO14 'ST19VD TWH0D
ddvA31NOE NO3T3d 3ONOd LLEY

NOILYA313 HLNOS

NILYIN

V1d 40014 ANNOYD

NV1d H31SVIN NOIS

| @ N IIO-IL = IIZS/I’ |

NOILVATT3 LSV3

=t | | B
E- II-II-II } i“m |= ””m |

|momomomom [||_a_||]|_|_|:||_|_| o

NOILVATT3 LSTIM
T
=

Y1

)AL




























Superintendent of Schools
Alberto M. Carvalho

August 27, 2014

VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL

Mr. Roney J. Mateu, FAIA
Mateau Architecture

8887 SW 131st Street
Miami, Florida 33176

RJM@Mateuarchitecture.com

RE PUBLIC SCHOOL CONCURRENCY DETERMINATION
4311 PONCE - DR-14-04-2406

LOCATED AT 4225 & 4311 PONCE DE LEON BOULEVARD
SP0314082501186 —~ FOLIO NOS. 0341200171240, 0341200171230

Dear Applicant

Miami-Dade County School Board
Perla Tabares Hantman, Chair

Dr. Lawrence S. Feldman, Vice Chair
Dr. Dorothy Bendross-Mindingall
Susie V. Castillo

Carlos L. Curbelo

Dr. Wilbert “Tee" Holloway

Dr. Martin Karp

Dr. Marta Pérez

Raquel A. Regalado

Pursuant to State Statutes and the Interlocal Agreement for Public School Facility Planning, the
above-referenced application was reviewed for compliance with Public School Concurrency.
Accordingly, the School District's Concurrency Determination revealed the applicable Level of
Service (LOS) standards of 100% Florida Inventory of School Housing (FISH) have not been

impacted by the proposed development of eight (8) residential units.

Therefore, the application has complied with the requirements of public school concurrency and no
further action is required at this time. If in the future, there is an increase in the number of residential
units in this property, a new public school concurrency determination must be obtained prior to City

of Coral Gables issuing any Development Order (D.O.)

Should you have any questions, please feel free to  ntact me at 305-995-4501

Sin
van M. Rodrig
Director |
IMR:ir
L-121
Enclosure

cc: Ms. Ana Rijo-Conde, AICP
Mr. Michael A. Levine
Ms. Vivian G. Villaamil
City of Coral Gables
School Concurrency Master File

Ana Rijo-Conde, Deputy Chief Facilities & Eco-Sustainability Officer « Planning, Design & Sustainability
School Board Administration Building < 1450 N.E. 2nd Ave. « Suite 525 « Miami, FL 33132
305-995-7285 » 305-995-4760 (FAX) « arijo@dadeschools.net



Miami-Dade County Public Schools

Concurrency Management System
School Concurrency Determination

MDCPS Application Number: SP0314082501186 Local Government (LG): Coral Gables
Date Application Received: 8/25/2014 2:17:28 PM LG Application Number: DR-14-04-2406
Type of Application: Site Plan Sub Type: Redevelopment
Applicant's Name: 4311 PONCE

Address/Location: 4225 & 4311 Ponce De Leon Blvd.

Master Folio Number: 0341200171240

Additional Folio Number(s): 0341200171230, 0341200171230,

PROPOSED # OF UNITS

joo

SINGLE-FAMILY DETACHED UNITS: 0
SINGLE-FAMILY ATTACHED UNITS: 0
MULTIFAMILY UNITS:

loo

CONCURRENCY SERVICE AREA SCHOOLS

CSA Facility Name Net Available Seats Seats LOS Source
Id Y Capacity Required Taken Met Type

FRANCES S TUCKER

5561 ELEMENTARY Current CSA
6741 PONCE DE LEON MIDDLE 96 0 0 YES Current CSA
7071 CORAL GABLES SENIOR -452 0 0 YES Current CSA

ADJACENT SERVICE AREA SCHOOLS

*An Impact reduction of 21.13% included for charter and magnet schools (Schools of Choice).

MDCPS has conducted a public school concurrency review for this application and has determined that it DOES
MEET (Concurrency Met) all applicable LOS Standards for a Final Development order as adopted in the local
Government's Educational Element and incorporated in the Interlocal Agreement for Public School Facility
Planning in Miami-Dade County.

Master Concurrency MA0314082501186 Tot_al .Number of 8
Number: = Units: =
Issue Date: 8/25/2014 8:01:05 PM Expiration Date: 8/25/2015 8:01:05 PM
Capacity Reserved: Elementary:0 / Middle:0 / Senior: 0
MDCPS Administrator MDCPS Authorized Signature

1450 NE 2 Avenue, Room 525, Miami, Florida 33132 / 305-995-7634 / 305-995-4760 fax /
concurrency@dadeschools.net




City of Coral Gables

Building & Zoning Department

Application Type:*®
Application Sub-type:
Name:*
number:*
E-mall address: *
address:*

name:*
number:®

Public School Concurrency

PLANMING

431\ FONCE
305~ 739~ 3304

RIM & MATBIARCHITECTURE LOH
4225 & 431\ FONCE DE LEOK BD

Address:*® -

Local Government Telephone Number:

Master Parcel/Folio Number:*{No dashes)

Prevous-Usp:. - . ae o L

OS4LOOF124AC
034120 O\F1n3ac
v s VAl ACDES
OFF\CE:
N/A

Name (Piease circle one)

e B e
before me this
P,

) C g

a6

#‘W‘,’f—ﬁ%miw Q-D(\-)Gc},mgr—r su

# EE 069302
April 25, 2015



A
4.5 The City of Coral Gables

Historical Resources Department

March 25, 2014

4225 Properties, LLC.
133 Sevilla Avenue
Coral Gables, FL. 33134

Re: 4225 Ponce de Leon Boulevard, Lots 36 and 37, Block 5, Coral Gables Industrial Section
PB 28-22

Dear Sirs:

Section 3-1107(g) of the Coral Gables Zoning Code states that “All demolition permits for non-
designated buildings and/or structures must be approved by the Historic Preservation Officer or
designee. The approval is valid for six (6) months from issuance and shall thereafter expire and
the approval is deemed void unless the demolition permit has been issued by the Development
Services Department. The Historic Preservation Officer may require review by the Historic
Preservation Board if the building and/or structure to be demolished is eligible for designation as
a local historic landmark or as a contributing building, structure or property within an existing
local historic landmark district. This determination of eligibility is preliminary in nature and the
final public hearing before the Historic Preservation Board on Local Historic Designation shall be
within sixty (60) days from the Historic Preservation Officer determination of “eligibility.”
Consideration by the Board may be deferred by mutual agreement by the property owner and the
Historic Preservation Officer. The Historic Preservation Officer may require the filing of a
written application on the forms prepared by the Department and may request additional
background information to assist the Board in its consideration of eligibility. Independent
analysis by a consultant selected by the City may be required to assist in the review of the
application. All fees associated with the analysis shall be the responsibility of the applicant. The
types of reviews that could be conducted may include but are not limited to the following:
property appraisals; archeological assessments; and historic assessments.”

Therefore, please be advised that after careful research and study of our records and the

information you presented the following information has been determined:

4225 Ponce de Leon Boulevard, Lots 36 and 37, Block 5, Coral Gables Industrial
Section PB 28-22, does not mcct the minimum eligibility criteria for designation as a
local historic landmark. Therefore, the Historical Resources staff ¥ill pot require
review by the Historic Preservation Board if an application is made for a demolition
permit.

PO. Bax 141549 CoraL GaLES, FLorioa 331 14-1549 Prone (305) 460-5093 Fax (305) 460-5097



Please note that, pursuant to Section 2-705(b)(15) of the Coral Gables Zoning Code, this
determination does not constitute a development order and is valid for a period of six (6) months.
In the case where the Historic Preservation Officer or designee determines that the property does
not meet the minimum eligibility criteria for designation, a permit for the demolition of the
property must be issued within the six-month period.

Upon expiration of the six-month period, you will be required to file a new application. Any
change from the foregoing may be made upon a demonstration of a change in the material facts
upon which this determination was made.

If you have any further questions concerning this matter, please do not hesitate to contact this
office.

Sincerely,
Dona M. Spain .

Historic Preservation Officer

cc:  Roney J. Mateu, 8887 SW 131 Street Miami, FL 33176
Craig Leen, City Attomey
Bridgette Thomton, Deputy City Attorey
Jane Tompkins, Development Services Director
Charles Wu, Assistant Development Services Director
Ramon Trias, Planning & Zoning Director
William Miner, Building Director
Virginia Goizueta, Plans Processor Lead
Historical Significance Request Property File
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The 4311 Ponce project will be located at 4311 Ponce de Leon Boulevard in Coral Gables,
Florida. The site is located within the Gables Re-development Infill District (GRID), the city’s

traffic concurrency exception area. The project proposes a new building with 24,133 SF of office
space, 11,457 SF of retail space, and 8 residential units. Access to and from the site will be
provided on a two-way driveway located on San Lorenzo Avenue. This traffic study is consistent
with the methodology previously discussed with and agreed to by the city of Coral Gables Public

Works Department. Project buildout is anticipated in 2016.

An assessment of the traffic impacts associated thighproposed project was performed in
accordance with the requirements of the city of Coral Gables. The analysis shows that the project
would not adversely impact the roadway links and intersections that were analyzed within the

study area.
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1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Project Background

The 4311 Ponce project will be located at 4311 Ponce de Leon Boulevard in Coral Gables, Florida
(See Exhibit 1). The site is located within the Gables Re-development Infill District (GRID), the
city’s traffic concurrency exception area. The project proposes a new building with 24,133 SF of
office space, 11,457 SF of retail space, and 8 residential units. The project proposes an onsite
parking garage providing 145 parking spaces. The provided spaces meet the city’s requirement.
Access to and from the proposed parking garage will be provided on a two-way driveway located
on San Lorenzo Avenue. See Appendix A for site plan. This traffic study is consistent with the
methodology previously discussed with and agreed to by the city of Coral Gables Public Works
Department. Project buildout is anticipated in 2016.

1.2 Study Objective

The purpose of the study is to provide a traffic study that meets the requirements of the city of
Coral Gables for the project. This study includes vehicular flow, trip generation, roadway and

intersection analyses.
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1.3 Study Area and Methodology

The analysis undertaken follows the study methodology previously discussed with and approved by
the city of Coral Gables Public Works Department (See Appendix B). A synopsis of the

methodology is as follows:

» Traffic Counts (Intersections) — Two-hour turning movement counts were collected for the
AM (7-9 AM) and PM (4-6 PM) hours on a typical weekday at the following intersection:

o Ponce de Leon Boulevard / San Lorenzo Avenue (S)
S= Signalized

U=Un-signalized

» Traffic Counts (Segments) - 48-hour machine counts, summarized at 15-minute intervals,
were taken during a typical weekday (Tuesday through Thursday only) at the following
roadway segments:

o0 Ponce de Leon Boulevard between San Lorenzo Avenue and Greco Avenue
0 San Lorenzo Avenue between Ponce de Leon Boulevard and Ruiz Avenue

» Signal Location and Timing — Existing signal phasing and timing for the signalized
intersection were obtained from Miami-Dade County.

» Trip Generation — project trips were estimated using trip generation information published
by the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Magli&dition.

» Trip Distribution / Trip Assignment — Net new external project traffic were assigned to the
adjacent street network using the appropriate cardinal distribution froivlitimai-Dade
Long Range Transportation Plan Update, published by theMetropolitan Planning
Organization. Normal traffic patterns were considered when assigning project trips.

* Background Traffic - Available Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) and Miami-
Dade County (MDC) counts were consulted to determine a growth factor consistent with
historical annual growth in the area. The growth factor were applied to the existing traffic
volumes to establish background traffic.

* Future Transportation Projects — The 2013 TIP and the 2035 LRTP were reviewed and
considered in the analysis at project build-out.

Page 3



4311 Ponce
Traffic Sudy

* Committed Developments — No committed developments were identified in the vicinity of
the project.

» Intersection analysis was done using Highway Capacity Software (HCS) based on the 2010
Highway Capacity ManualHCM) or the Synchro software. Operation analysis at
driveways providing access to/from the site was conducted.

* Link / Segment capacity will be estimated using generalized vehicular capacities from the
latest FDOT LOS Manual.
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2.0 DATA COLLECTION

Data collection for this study included roadway characteristics, intersection traffic counts, signal
timing, and seasonal adjustment factors. The data collection effort is described in the following

sections.

2.1 Roadway Characteristics

Ponce de Leon Boulevard

Ponce de Leon Boulevard is a minor arterial that provides north/south access throughout the city of
Coral Gables Central Business District (CBD). Within the study area, Ponce de Leon Boulevard is a
two-way, four-lane, divided roadway. On-street, metered, parking is provided on the east and west
side of the roadway north of San Lorenzo Avenue. The city of Coral Gables operates and maintains
Ponce de Leon Boulevard. The posted speed limit is 35 mph.

San Lorenzo Avenue
San Lorenzo Avenue within the project area is a local roadway that provides east/west access

between Le Jeune Road and Ruiz Avenue. Between Ponce de Leon Boulevard and Ruiz Avenue,
San Lorenzo Avenue is a two-way, two-lane, undivided roadway with on-street parking on both
sides of the roadway. Between Le Jeune Road and Ponce de Leon Boulevard, San Lorenzo Avenue
is a two-way, two-lane, undivided roadway with on-street parking on portions of the roadway. The
intersection of San Lorenzo Avenue and Ponce de Leon Boulevard is offset to the north. The city of
Coral Gables operates and maintains San Lorenzo Avenue. The speed limit is not posted within the

study limits.
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2.2 Traffic Counts

Forty-eight hour traffic machine counts were collected on Augudttidugh August 13 2014 at

Ponce de Leon Boulevard, and San Lorenzo Avenue. Vehicle turning movement counts were taken
on August 12, 2014 at the study intersections during the AM and PM peak periods. The counts
were adjusted to reflect average annual daily traffic conditions using the latest weekly volume
adjustment factors were obtained from FDOT. A weekly volume adjustment factor of 1.01 (Miami-
Dade County South) corresponding to the dates of the counts was used. Traffic counts and FDOT

season factors are provided in Appendix C.

2.3 Intersection Data

Signal timing data was obtained from Miami-Dade County for the signalized intersections analyzed
in this study. This information was used for the signal phasing and timing required for the
intersection capacity analysis. A field survey was also conducted to obtain the intersection lane
configurations to be used in the intersection analysis. Exhibit 2 shows the existing lane
configurations at the analyzed intersections. Existing volumes for the morning and afternoon peak
hour at the segments and intersections analyzed are shown in Exhibit 3. The signal timings are also
provided in Appendix C.
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2.4 Walking / Other Modes of Transportation

Pedestrian activity is an essential element within the CBD of Coral Gables. The Coral Gables
Trolley service (which traverses the Ponce de Leon Boulevard corridor) provides frequent service to
the area and connects with the Douglas Road Metrorail Station. The project site is located in an area

where pedestrian activity is common between existing site and surrounding properties.

2.5 Roadway Capacity Analysis

The FDOTSs generalized service volume tables provide the maximum volume for a specific Level of
Service (LOS). LOS is a qualitative assessment of a road’s operating conditions and is represented
by the letters A through F, where A is free flow (best condition) and F is the most congested

condition.

The proposed project is located within the city of Coral Gables Redevelopment and Infill District
(GRID), which is a Transportation Concurrency Area established by the city to promote
development within its boundaries. In essence, this ordinance establishes that roadways within the
geographical area of the GRID are exempt from the citywide traffic LOS Standards.

Exhibit 4 shows roadway link analysis for the study area segments based on the FDOT generalized
peak hour directional service volume tables. All roadways currently operate within the city’'s LOS
standards (LOS E).
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Exhibit 4

Existing Roadway Capacity Analysis

Weekday AM and PM Peak Hour Conditions

M eet
Roadway Direction | 7 Of | AM Pesk | PM Peak | LOS | o1 | | g
Lanes | Volume Volume Std Std?
Ponce de Leon Boulevard between San NB 2LD 323 387 E+2Q 1836  Yes
Lorenzo Avenue and Greco Avenue SB 2LD 398 573 E+20 1835 Ve
San Lorenzo Avenue between Ponce de EB 1Ly 11 29 E 640 Yes
Leon Boulevard and Ruiz Avenue WB 1LU 18 56 E 640 Yes

" Ponce de Leon Blvd: Class Il Arterial 2 Lanes - 10% Non_State Signalized Roadway, +20% Roadway LOS
E+20 (1700 vph *0.9*1.20 = 1836 vplgan Lorenzo Avenue: Class Il Arterial 1 Lanes -20% for No

Exclusive Right/Left Turns (800 vph * 0.8 = 640 vph)
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2.6 Intersection Capacity Analysis

The Synchro software was used to perform intersection capacity analysis at the analyzed
intersections Synchrois a macroscopic analysis and optimization software application that
implements the Intersection Capacity Utilization method for determining intersection capacity.
Synchro also supports the Highway Capacity Manual’'s methodology for signalized / un-signalized
intersections. Exhibit 5 shows the resulting LOS for existing conditions during morning and
afternoon peak hours. All the intersections operate within the city’'s LOS standards (LOS E).

Analysis worksheets are included in Appendix D.

Exhibit 5
Existing I nter section Capacity Analysis
Weekday AM and PM Peak Hour Conditions

AM
I nter section Signalized/ . . PM Peak LOS
. . Direction Peak
Unsignalized LOS Standard
LOS
NB A A E + 20
Ponce de Leon Boulevard / s SB A B E + 20
San Lorenzo Avenue EB B C E
Overall B A N/A

Source: David Plummer & Associates
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3.0 PLANNED AND PROGRAMED
ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS

The 2014 Miami-Dade County Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) and the2035 Long

Range Transportation Program were reviewed to identify any programmed or planned projects

within the limits of the study area established. These documents show no officially programmed or

planned capacity improvement projects within the study area.
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4.0 FUTURE TRAFFIC CONDITIONS

4.1 Background Traffic and Committed Developments

Average Daily Traffic counts published by the Miami-Dade Public Works Department and the
FDOT were reviewed to determine historic growth in the area. Historic growth rate documentation
is included in Appendix C. This analysis indicated that traffic has a low growth rate of 0.2% in the

past years. However, a conservative 0.5% annual growth rate was used for this study.

4.2 Future without Project Roadway Capacity Analysis

Future without project conditions was obtained by adding background traffic to existing traffic
volumes. Exhibit 6 shows the future without project AM and PM peak hour traffic at each roadway

segment. Exhibit 7 shows the projected roadway volumes for future without project traffic.

Exhibit 6
Future without Project Roadway Capacity Analysis
Weekday AM and PM Peak Hour Conditions

M eet

Roadway Direction | #Of | AM Pesk | PMPeak | LOS | o || 5g

Lanes Volume Volume Std Std?
Ponce de Leon Boulevard between NB 2LD 326 390 E+20 1836 Yes

San Lorenzo Avenue and Greco

Avenue SB 2LD 401 578 E+20 1836 Ye$
San Lorenzo Avenue between Ponc¢e EB 1L 11 29 E 640 Yes
de Leon Boulevard and Ruiz Avenue WB 1LU 18 57 E 640 Yes

Ponce de Leon Blvd: Class Il Arterial 2 Lanes - 10% Non_State Signalized Roadway, +20% Roadway LOS E+20
(1700 vph *0.9*1.20 = 1836 vph$an Lorenzo Avenue: Class Il Arterial 1 Lanes -20% for No Exclusive Right/Left
Turns (800 vph * 0.8 = 640 vph)
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4.3 Future Without Project Intersection Capacity Analysis

Future without project conditions was obtained by adding background traffic to existing traffic.

Exhibit 7 also shows the projected turning movements for future without project traffic.

Exhibit 8 shows the resulting LOS for morning and afternoon peak conditions for future without

project. Capacity worksheets are included in Appendix D.

Exhibit 8
Future without Project Intersection Capacity Analysis
Weekday AM and PM Peak Hour Conditions

AM
| nter section Signalized/ . . PM Peak LOS
. . Direction Peak
Unsignalized LOS Standard
LOS
NB A A E + 20
Ponce de Leon Boulevard / s SB B B E + 20
San Lorenzo Avenue EB B C E
Overall B A N/A

Source: David Plummer & Associates
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4.4 Project Trip Generation

Trip generation for the proposed project and the existing use was estimated using the Institute of
Transportation Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Man@#é Edition. This manual provides gross

trip generation rates and/or equations by land use type. These rates and equations estimate vehicle

trip ends at a free-standing site’s driveways. See Appendix E for project trip generation worksheets.

The project site is located in an area where pedestrian activity is common between the existing site
and surrounding properties. The project site is also in an area served by the Coral Gables trolley
which can connect to bus routes from Miami-Dade Transit and the Douglas Road Metrorail Station.
A 5% adjustment was applied to the trip generation of the proposed uses to account for other modes
of transportation. The project trip generation summary is provided in Exhibit 9.
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Exhibit 9
Project Trip Generation Summary

—

AM Peak Hour Vehicle PM Peak Hour
Proposed_lTE Land Use Size/Units Trips Vehicle Trips
esignation
g In Out | Total | In Out | Total
33 5 38 6 30 36
Ef_zrr‘;ri}s(gﬁ;i%)'s“”ding 24133SH 156 trips pate — A9 trips
€ = 1000 SF GFA € = 1000 SF GFA
88% In  12% Out 17% In 83% O\
0 0 0 14 17 31
Specialty Retall :
(Land Use 826) 11,457 SF - Rate = _Zrlerips
1000 SF GFA
--In --Out 44%In  56% Out
1 6 7 5 3 8
Residential Condominium 3 DU Pate — 0.44 trips Rate — 0.52 trips
(Land Use 230) ate = —ro— ate = ——
17% In 83% Out 67% In  33% Out
Subtotal Gross Trips 34 11 45 25 50 75
Transit/Pedestrian Trips 5% -2 -0 -2 -1 -3 -4
0% (AM) - - -
Internal Capture 5.6% (PM) 0 0 0 1 3 4
Net External Trips (Proposed) 32 11 43 22 45 67

! Based on ITE Trip Generation Manphlinth Edition,

2 Based on ITE Trip Generation Manual User's Guide and Handliptnth Edition
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4.5 Project Trip Assighment

Project traffic was distributed and assigned to the study area using the Cardinal Distribution for
TAZ 1081 shown in Exhibit 10. The Cardinal Distribution gives a generalized distribution of trips
from a TAZ to other parts of Miami-Dade County. The distribution can be summarized as followed:
36.46% to the north, 17.90% to the south, 16.42% to the east, and 29.22% to the west. For
estimating trip distribution for the project traffic, consideration was given to conditions such as the
roadway network accessed by the project traffic, roadways available to travel in the desired

direction, and attractiveness of traveling on a specific roadway. Project trip distribution for the
proposed project is shown in Exhibit 11.

Exhibit 10
Cardinal Distribution (TAZ 1081)
Direction Distribution
NNE 21.22%
ENE 12.10%
ESE 4.32%
SSE 2.82%
SSW 15.08%
WSwW 19.02%
WNW 10.20%
NNW 15.24%
Total 100.00%

Source: Miami-Dade Long Range Transportation Plan

Page 18






4311 Ponce
Traffic Sudy

4.6 Future With Project Roadway Capacity Analysis

Trip assignments in the previous sections and traffic projections for the project were combined to

obtain the total traffic on the analyzed roadway segments. Exhibit 12 shows roadway capacity for

the future with project during the AM and PM peak hour for each roadway segment. All the

segments under study meet the city’s LOS standards (LOS E). Exhibit 13 shows the projected AM

and PM roadway volumes.

Exhibit 12

Futurewith Project Roadway Capacity Analysis
Weekday AM and PM Peak Hour Conditions

M eet
Roadway Direction | 7O A PEAC ) B FELS ) LOE | o |
Lanes Volume Volume Std Std?
Ponce de Leon Boulevard between NB 2LD 360 436 E+20 1836 Yes
San Lorenzo Avenue and Greco
Avenue SB 2LD 416 592 E+20 1836 Yes$
San Lorenzo Avenue between Ponc¢e EB 1Ly 42 65 E 640 ves
de Leon Boulevard and Ruiz Avenue WB 1LU 30 87 E 640 Ves

Ponce de Leon Blvd: Class Il Arterial 2 Lanes - 10% Non_State Signalized Roadway, +20% Roadway LOS E+20

(1700 vph * 0.9*1.20 = 1836 vphBan Lorenzo Avenue: Class Il Arterial 1 Lanes -20% for No Exclusive Right/Left

Turns (800 vph * 0.8 = 640 vph)
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4.7 Future With Project Intersection Capacity Analysis

The trip assignments in the previous section, traffic projections for the project and background

growth were combined to obtain future traffic with project at the analyzed intersections. Exhibit 14

shows the resulting LOS for the morning and afternoon peak conditions for future with project.

Capacity worksheets are included in Appendix D. Exhibit 13 also shows the projected turning

movement volumes for future with project. All intersections analyzed are projected to operate

within the city’s LOS standard during the morning and afternoon peak periods.

Exhibit 14

Futurewith Project I ntersection Capacity Analysis

Weekday AM and PM Peak Hour Conditions

AM
i Signalized/ PM Peak LOS
[uETEEslie g' . Direction Peak
Unsignalized LOS Standard
LOS
NB A A E + 20
Ponce de Leon Boulevard / S SB B B E + 20
San Lorenzo Avenue EB B C E
Overall B A N/A
Project Driveway / San Lorenzd U SB A A N/A
Avenue EB A A E

Source: David Plummer & Associates
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6.0 CONCLUSIONS

An assessment of the traffic impacts associated thiéh proposed project was performed in
accordance with the requirements of the city of Coral Gables. The analysis shows that the project
would not adversely impact the roadway links and intersections that were analyzed within the study

area.

4311 Ponce Report _Aug 2014
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CITY OF CORAL GABLES, FLORIDA
RESOLUTION NO. 2008-38

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF CORAL
GABLES APPROVING A MIXED USE (MXD) SITE PLAN FOR
THE PROPOSED MIXED USE PROJECT REFERRED TO AS “4311]
PONCE”, LOCATED ON PROPERTY LEGALLY DESCRIBED
AS LOTS 3843, BLOCK 5, INDUSTRIAL SECTION (4311
PONCE DE LEON BOULEVARD), CORAL GABLES, FLORIDA;
AS SET FORTH IN APPLICATION NO. 01-08-043-P; SUBJECT TO
CERTAIN CONDITIONS.

WHEREAS, Application No. 01-08-043-P was submitted for approval for a mixed
use site plan review on Lots 38-43, Block 5, Industrial Section (4311 Ponce de Leon Boulevard),
Coral Gables, Florida, to permit the construction of a mixed-use project known as
“4311 Ponce”; and

WHEREAS, after notice of public hearing duly published and notifications of all
property owners of record within the North and South MXD Industrial Districts and within one
thousand five hundred (1,500) foot radius from the Districts, a public hearing was held before
the Planning and Zoning Board of the City of Coral Gables on February 13, 2008, at which hearing all
interested persons were afforded the opportunity to be heard; and

WHEREAS, at the February 13, 2008 Planning and Zoning Board meeting, the
Board recommended approval of the proposed MXD project (vote: 5-0) with conditions; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the MXD zoning regulations all proposed MXD site plan
applications are subject to a public hearing for City Commission review and approval via Resolution;
and

WHEREAS, after notice of public hearing was duly published, a public hearing was
held before the City Commission on March 11, 2008, at which hearing all interested persons were
afforded the opportunity to be heard; and ' '

WHEREAS, the City Commission on March 11, 2008, approved the request
(Vote: 3-2) subject to conditions;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF CORAL
GABLES, FLORIDA: :

SECTION 1. The foregoing “Whereas” clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as
being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution upon adoption hereof.

Infurtherance of the Comprehensive Land Use Plan Goals, Objectives and Policies, Zoning Code and
other applicable City provisions the “4311 Ponce” MXD project shall be approved subject to all of the
following conditions:

1. Application/supporting documentation. Construction of the proposed project shall be in
conformance with the following:
a. Site plans, building elevations and building program prepared by Mateu Architecture
Inc., dated 01.04.08. '
b. Landscape plans prepared by Mariano Corral Landscape Architect, dated 01.04.08.
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¢. Traffic impact study prepared by David Plummer & Associates, dated January 2008.

d. All representations and exhibits as prepared and provided to the Planning Department
as a part of the application submittal package dated 01.04.08, and proffered by the
applicant’s representatives as a part of the review of the application at public
hearings.

9 Restrictive Covenant. ~ Within 30 days of approval of the adoption of the site plan, the
. property owner, its SUCCESSOrs OI assigns shall submit a restrictive covenant for City

Attomey review and approval outlining all conditions of approval required by the City

Commission. Failure to submit the draft restrictive covenant within the specified time frame

shall render the approval void unless said time frame for submittal of the draft restrictive

covenant is extended by the City Attorney after good cause as to why the time frame should be
extended. :

3. Prior to the issuance of a building permit for the project, the property owner, its successors
or assigns, shall satisfy the following conditions:

a. Retail customer parking. Thirty (30) floor level parking spaces (non-mechanical lift) shall be
designated and reserved on the second floor of the building for use by retail customers, and
shall remain unrestricted by the mechanical lifts above for the use of retail parking patrons
during all hours that retail businesses are open. Each space shall include signage
indicating “Retail customer parking”.

b. Parking garage gates. No vehicle gates or similar devices shall be installed that prohibit
public access and use of required commercial office or retail parking spaces during all hours
that commercial businesses are open.

c. Parkingspaces.  The sale or leasing of parking spaces to any person, business or entity
that is not a tenant or resident of the building shall be prohibited.

d. Pedestrian crosswalk signal. The applicant shall prepare and provide to the Public Works
Director a traffic signal timing analysis for the Ponee de Leon / Bird Road signal
identifying modifications required for pedestrian crossingtimes as recommended by the
Traffic Study.

e. Required landscaping. Minimum ten (10%) percent on-site landscaping shall be provided
and confirmed by the Building and Zoning Department at the time the Final Zoning Analysis
is prepared.

f  Gym facilities. The roof top gym facility and lap pool shall be for the exclusive use of
building tenants, residents and guests, and shall not be made available for use by the general
public. )

4. Prior to the issuance of the final Certificate of Occupancy (CO), the property owner, its SUCCessors
or assigns shall complete the following:

a. Public realm improvements. Install all landscaping and public realm improvements and
streetscape improvements on-site and within the public ROW adjacent to project site as
shown on the Site Landscape Plan and Site Hardscape Plan (sheets LP-1 & LH-1),
subject to review and approval by Directors of Public Works and Public Service
Departments.

SECTION 2. That the applicant shall further be required to comply with all
applicable zoning regulations and any changes to the application herein granted shall require a

recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Board and approval by the City Commission.

SECTION 3. That this resolution shall become effective upon the date of its passage
and adoption herein.
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PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS ELEVENTH DAY OF MARCH., A.D.,
2008.

{Moved: Anderson / Seconded: Withers)

(Yeas: Kerdyk, Withers, Anderson)

(Nays: Cabrera, Slesnick)

(Majority (3-2) Vote)

(Agenda Item: E-4)

APPROVED:

D D. SLESNICK 11
MAYOR

" CITY CLERK

APPROVED AS TO FORM
AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY:

M. HERNANDEZ
A RNEY
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TO:

FROM:

CITY OF CORAL GABLES
- MEMORANDUM -

Development Review Committee (DRC)  DATE:  April 25, 2014
meeting minutes and record

Ramon Trias, SUBJECT: _
DRC Chairman Comments regarding DRC 04.25.14
meeting "4311 Ponce” agenda item

The Planning and Zoning Division has reviewed the 4311 Ponce” (4311 Ponce de Leon
Boulevard) application package submitted for DRC review. The Planning and Zoning Division
has the following comments:

1.

Planning Division Application. The following application request must be submitted to the
Planning and Zoning Division regarding the proposad "4311 Ponce” project:

a. Mixed Use Site Plan review.

Mandatory Mediterranean Architecture within MXD Owerlay District. As per Zoning Code
Section 4-201(D)(6) Mediterranean Architecture is mandatory for MXD overlay districts.
The proposal is for a mixed use project on property located within the North industrial
Mixed Use Overlay District and therefore must comply with the requirements for
Mediterranean architecture. The benefits of utiizing the MXD Overlay provisions
include: allows for residential uses; increased density, height and intensity; reduced
setback requirements; etc. The applicant has the option to develop the property as-of-
right in accordance with the provisions of the undertying C; Commercial Use zoning
designation which would require a reduction in height, additional setbacks and removal
of residential uses to comply. Applicant must comply with Mediterranean architecturs
requirements in order to develop property as a mixed use project.

As required by Zoning Code Section 5603, please provide a description of the architectural
style of the buikding and explain how it is harmonious with the immediate neighborhood.

The following additional information is required to be submitted with the Planning
Division Application:

a. Lighting Plan. Provide a lighting plan that identifies all street lighting locations
and types of fixtures (include height of light fitures/poles); extemal ilumination
and lighting of buildings;

b. Pedestrian Amenities pedoﬁnan
amenities (i.e. benches, iners, water features, etc.).

c. Signege Plan. Provide Signage Plan indicating size and focation of all proposed
exterior signage. ProvndeUndergrmndUﬁllhesPtatvswternernndicatmgmatal
utilities will be installed underground.

Application comments and issues. The following are comments and issues identified that
the proposed project is submitted to the

uired. A minimum ten (10) foot stepback is
(45) feet on all facades.



Planning Division Review — “4311 Ponce”
April 25, 2014
Page 2

mum of one (1) ten (10) foot bicycle rack to

Statement prepared by the Zoning Division
cture available for the proposed project shail

b. A School Concurrency Dstermin
Miami-Dade County School
Planning Division Application.
submitted with applications for
additional residential units.
7. Public Hearing Reviews. Mixed Use Site Plan review is a conditional use approval and
requires a public hearing review before the Planning and Zoning Board and is adopted

8. uires all applicants filing
and Zoning Board shall
minimum of fourteen (14)
days in advance of the Planning and
9. DRC Zoning Review. A zoning review
concermns at the DRC level in order to
necessary to allow further review of the

Once a complete itted, it will be distributed to City
Departments for lanning and Zoning Division’s
comments will be with the comments provided by

other City Departments. After all City comments have be  addressed and the application
submittal has been determined to be sufficient by Planning Staff, then the public hearing
application can be scheduled for a Planning and Zoning Board meeting. Planning Staff is
available to meet and assist with the submittal of the public hearing application and to answer
any questions the applicant may have regarding the submittal requirements.

Attachment:
A. DRC Zoning Review: 4311 Ponce.

or
Director

William Miner, Building Director

Emesto Pino, Acting Public Works Director

Troy Springmyer, Acting Public Service Director

Manuel Lopez, Building Official

Kevin Kinney, Parking Director

Cynthia Birdsill, Economic Sustainability Director

Dona Spain, Historical Resources Director

Edward Hudak, Police Department

Robert Lowman, Fire Department

Carlos Mindreau, City Architect

Elizabeth Gonzslez, Zoning Technician Lead

Sebrina Brown, Concurrency Administrator
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Aprll 24, 2014

DRC CONCURRENCY REVIEW

DR #:_14-04-2400
APPLICANT: MATEV

PROJECT NAME: 4311 PONCEDELEQNLLC
JOB ADDRESS: 4311 PONCE DE LEON BLVD
REVIEWER: SEBRINA BROWN PHONE#: (305) 460-5236

E-MAIL ADD: SBROWN®@CORALGABLESCOM

COMMENTS:

» SUBMIT A
ADMINISTRATOR).
¢ PLANNING & ZONING AND CITY COMMISSION APPROVAL REQUIRED

e SUBMIT ARCHITECTURAL PLANS TO THE

CORAL GABLES
DEVEL OPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT, TO BEGIN THE PERMITTING

THE PLANNING & ZONING DIVISION (CONCURRENCY

PROCESSING.
* SUBMIT A TO
THE SANITARY

SEWER DIVISION, LOCATED AT 2800 SW.  AVENUE (305) 460-5002.

OBTAIN AN ALLOCATION
DIVISION, LOCATED AT |
(305) 669-7701.

* PROVIDE COPY OF SERVICE AGREEMENT OR BILLING RECEIPT FROM
11805 CORAL WAY AND 3575 LE

JEUNE ROAD.



TAKE PLANS TO THE MIAMI-DADE ROAD IMPACT FEE OFFICE FOR

PAYMENT OF ROAD IMPACT FEES, LOCATED AT 11805 CORAL WAY.

APPLICANT MUST APPLY FOR A CERTIFICATE OF USE — PROCESSING FEE
$114.19. (NOTE: AFTER A BUILDING PERMIT HAS BEEN ISSUED, MUST

TAKE CU APPLICATION TO (DERM) FOR APPROVAL), CONTACT
CONCURRENCY ADMINISTRATOR WHEN READY TO PROCEED WITH THIS

PROCESS.

APPLY FOR A CONCURRENCY IMPACT STATEMENT AFTER BOARD OF

ARCHITECT’S FINAL APPROVAL HAS BEEN OBTAINED — CONTACT
CONCURRENCY ADMINISTRATOR WHEN READY TO PROCEED WITH THIS
PROCESS. PROCESSING FEE - $190.31.

CONCURRENCY FEES APPLICABLE AT $761.25 PER UNIT AND $0.30 CENTS
PER GROSS SQUARE FOR THE REMAINING OF THE BUILDING, INCLUDING
THE PARKING GARAGE AREA. (NOTE: FEES DUE AT TIME OF ISSUANCE OF

THE BUILDING PERMIT).
MUST PROVIDE MINIMUM PARKING SPACES REQUIRED.

A NAGEMENT APPROVAL REQUIRED - CONTACT CARLOS
SOTORRIO OF WASTE MGMT. AT (305) 547-6022.

FURTHER REVIEW REQUIRED.



CITY OF CORAL GABLES

- MEMORANDUM -
TO: RAMON TRIAS DATE: APRIL 15,2014
PLANNING & ZONING DIRECTOR
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE

(DRC) CHAIRMAN

FROM: DONAM. SPAIN SUBJECT: DEVELOPMENT REVIEW
HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER COMMITTEE REVIEW
4311 PONCE DE LEON BLVD.
MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT
DR-14-04-2405

The Historical Resources Department has reviewed the “Mixed-use Development — 126
residential units, 38,000 sf commercial at 4311 Ponce de Leon Blvd.” application package
submitted for DRC review and has the following comment:

Historic significance determinations for the buildings located at 4225 Ponce de Leon Boulevard
and 4311 Ponce de Leon Blvd. were made on March 25, 2014. The properties were determined
not to be historically significant. This determination is valid for a period of six (6) months. Ifa
permit for the demolition of the property is not issued within the six-month period, a new historic
significance application is required.




DRC Zoning Review: 4311 Ponce
Prepared by Planning Division — 04.21.2014
Review based on pians dated 04.04.2014

Existing designations and site data:

Propertv address 4225 & 4311 Ponce de .eon Boulevard
Property leqal description K Section
Tola sie (sa. ft}
naQ property uses uses.
Existing Comprehensive Plan Future Commercial Mid-Rise Intenaity.
Land Use Map designation(s)
Proposed Plan Future No change.
Land Use Map designation(s)
loning desianation{s) : Commercial.
No change.
to utiizre Located within Zoning District;
to
Yes; Architecture required for projects utilizing
MXD Overlay District provisions
Infilt District (GRID) (Traffic
Restrictive Covenast ~ Restrictive Covenant required in Lieu of a Unity of Title.
*As per Appraiser
site area *
Fbo!' area ratio (FAR) parmitted — Not applicable. Mediterranean bonus required for MXD
Maximum 3.0 FAR (w)iho'.lt projects located within MXD Overlay.
Meditemansan bonus
Floor area rafio (FAR) permitted —
Maximum 3.5 FAR (with 70,123 4. ft.
bonus)
area ratio 2.75 138 6.
Buiding (fest) pormitted 1 1
Buiiding height (feet) proposed ~47°
per Appraiser

Nuta:Thereviewpmvidodherahionotacomprdwnsivemalysismdisintendedonlytoi‘dem'
concems at the Development Review Committee (DRC) level in order to hfonntheapplicamofan'f;
dxangesﬁdmaybemytoaibwﬂxﬂnrmﬁewofmaapplicaﬁonm proceed.



DRC Zoning Review: 4311 Ponce

Zobing Code Review:
Uses Conditional uses
the Planning and Board and City
Sec. Vacation of approval Works.
Sec. 4-201 A 7.6 MXD development permitted within Complies.
(C) Commerdial and (1) industrial
Sec. 4-201.B Permitted L
Sec. 4-201.C Conditional Uses Conditional uses reqtire
Sec 4-201.D.3 Minimum site area for an MXD Complies.
project/building within North and
South Industrial MXDs as defined on
the Official Zoning Map.
Greatar than forty-five (45) feet in
height shall provide a minimum of
one-hundred (100) feet of primary
street frontage and a minimum site
area of ten-thousand (10,000)
_square feet.
Sec. 4-201.0.4 Lot coverage. No minimum or Complies.
mepdmium. )
Sec. 4-201.D.5 Mixed use percentages. Provide Complies,
min. 8% total sq. ., or entire ground
floor, whichever is greater, as ground
floor uses.
Sec. not
Mandatory for MXD overiay districts
Sec. 4201 1
Sec. 4-201.E2 Encroachments for balconies, Subject to applicable regulations.
awnings, etc. Subject to applicable
Sec. 4-201.E.3 area ratio, o with Complies.
Seac. 4-201.E.4 Floors. No minimum or maximum Yamnn
Sec. 4-201.E.86 The Floor-to-floor to be approved
floor-to-floor shal be Building
&s reguiated per the
o Code.
Sec. 4-201.E8 The maxdimum



DRC Zoning Review: 4311 Ponce

4-201

4-201

10

4201.E11

3, Division 4,
Uses, for habitable
space for the following underlying
zoning designations and uses may

of architecthurat elements,
etc. The maximum allowabie

towers, elevator housings or similar

non-habitable structures for the

following undertying zoning
designations and uses may be
grantad as follows:

« Commercial Limited District Up to
and inchuding fifteen (15) feet.

« Industrial and Commercial
Districts: Up to and including
twenty-five (25) feet.

- Manufacturing uses: Up to and

ten feet.
usaes.

(habitable space) of forty-five (45)
feet within one hundred (100) feet of

the
buildings per site.
or
of fifty
linear ground floor frontage

shall include retail sales and service,
office, or restaurant or public realm
land area (i.e. plazas, courtyards,
open space, efc.) uses. Primary
street means a major strest of
considerable continuity which serves
or is intended 1o serve as a majof
traffic artery connecting large areas
of the

Minimum of forty (~ percent.of
the linear ground fioor building

100 feet
District)

Proposed building height: 92.33 fest

phes.

Page 3



DRC Zoning Review: 4311 Ponce

Sec. 4-201.E.12
Sec. 4-201.E.13

4-201.E.14

service, office, or restaurant or public
realm land ares (i.e. plazas,
courtyards, open space, eic.) uees.
Sacondary street means a minor

strest used 1o access abutting
properfies which camias raffic (o the
frontage on alleys. No Complios.
MiNIMuUM or required.
0 a maximum of one Complies.

and twenty-five (125) units per acre

except for properties in the Central No density imitation within North industrial Mived
Business District (CBD) and the Usa Disricts.
North and South indusital Mowd

Use Districts. There shall be no

density imitations in the CBD and

the North and South Industrial Mixed

{buitdings). Complies.

Front: Up to forty-five (45) feet in

height None. I over forty-five 1,500 aq. 1t of publicly accessible strest level

(45) feet in height Ten (10) fest. open space and landscape aee providad aiong
Side: Interior side: None. Side San Lorenzo Ave to comply wilh front selbacik

stroet Fiflsen (15) feet reduction on Ponce de Leon Bivd.
Rear: Abutting a dedicatad alley or

strost None. No

dedicated slley or street Ten (10)

foet,
Baiconies. Cantileverad open

baiconies may project into the

requined satback araas a

' ) Vertical building
stepback is required. A minimum
b'mt:aeduqodbh il o e oot o & o
may ight of foet A
height of forty-five (45) on all facacing
ahmunmaopmm_
A minirnurn of ity (50%) percant of

. deopenm Types of
open space shall be in the form of
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Sec. 4-201.E.16

Sec. 4-201.E.17

Sec. 4-201.F.1

pedestrian pass-
throughs open atriums
adjacent/contiguous to the
adjacent rights-of-way.

* Minimum aree. Minimum square
footage of allowabie open space
(i.e., plazas) shall be five hundred
(50Q) square feet.

* Inciude both hard and softscape
landscape improvements and
pedestrian amenities,

« Vertical volume. As a minimum
include a vertical voluma of space
equal from strest lsvel to the first
floor height or a minimum of
thirteen (13) fest, Additional
height may be recommended.

* Restaurant seating. This area
may be ussd for outdoor
restaurant seating subject to
approval as provided for in these
regulations.

Vertical building stepbacks. A
vertical building stepback of a
minimum of ten (10) feet shall be
provided at a maximum hsight of
forty-five (45) feet on ail facades.
Additionsl vertical building stepbacks
may be required by the City Architect
and the entire Board of Architects to
further reduce the potential impacts

Sethacks adjoining residential uses.
Residential districts. All property
fines abutting a residential land use
or district shall be 8 minimum of
fifteen (15) teet. No reductions in
setbacks may be requested or
oranted.

StrestAot frontage. No minimum or
maximum.

Arcades,
loggias or covered areas may
accommodate up to eighty (80%)

review criteria listed herein.
Encroachment of the entire length or
one hundred (100%) percent may be
requested subject to review and
approval at the time of site plan
consideration. Limitations of
encroachments on comers of
buiidings may be required to control
view corridors and around floof

Not applicable.

Complies.

Complies



DRC Zoning Review: 4311 Ponce

buitding bulk and massina.
Sec. 4-201.F.2 Architectural relief and Does not comply
Architectural refief and elements
{i.e., windows, comice lines, etc.)
shall be provided on all sides of

Sec. 4-201.F 3 Eukﬁngswport services. All ‘ To be determined.
associated support service areas Determination requires fuil-size set of plans for

4-201.F .4 Facades in excess of one hundred Does not comply
and fifty (160) feet in length, shall
incorporate design features with the
use of, but not fimited to the following
items:
(a) Breaks, stepbacks or variations in
bulk/massing at a minimum of
one hundrad (100) foot intervals.
(b) Use of architectural relief and
slements.

located

on all streets/iights-of-way subject to Determination requires submittal of lighting plan.
the following:
« Light fixduras/poies up to thirty-five

(35) fost in height.
» Subject to all other applicable City

code provisions.

Sec. 4-201.F .6 Lighting (building). Exdernal To

flumination and lighting of bulldings
shall require Planning Department Daterminalion requires submitial of lighting plan.

Sec. 4-201.F.7 Lighting (tandscaping). Lighting in
is sncouraged Detarmiration requires submittal of Siahting plan.
Sec. 4-201F.8 Ommago.mmof by Code Enforcement.

Owerhead doors. Overhead Not applicable.

Sec. 4-201.F.10 Paver treatments. Paver " To be reviewed and approved by Public
shail be inciuded in the following and Public Works.
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Sec. 4-201.F.11

| Sec. 4-201.F.12

Sec. 4-201.F.13

Sec. 4-201.F.14

Sec. 4-201.F.15

locations:

» Driveway entrances.

« Crosswalks.

+ Sidewalks. Minimum of twenty-
five (25%) percent of paving
surface

Parking garages. Parking garages
shall include exterior architectural
treatments compatible with buiidings
or structures which accupy the same
development and/or street.

access
buildings, except accessory
buildings, shall have their main
pedestrian entrance or entrances
orented towards the front property

Pedestrian amenities. Pedestrian
amenities shall be provided on both

private property and/or public open

spaces including but not imiled to
the following. benches, information
kiosks, lighting, bike racks, refuse
comntainers, sidewalk pavement
treatments, statuary, street
crosswalk paver treatments, wall
mounted fountaing, water fountains
and other similar water features. All
pedestrian amenities shall be
permanently secured to the ground
surface.
Above amenities shall be consistent
in design and form with the
applicable City Public Realm Design
Marnual.
features for

building frontages (street level only).
On any front property line or primary
streat, where an adjoining pedastrian
sidewalk is located, the following
design features shall be mcluded:

= Display windows or retail display

ares;
» Landscaping, andfor,
= Architectural building design

teatures.
The intent is to create pedestrian
and shopper interest, preciude
inappropriate or inharmonious
design, preclude blank walls of
building faces, and prohibit windows

Pedestrian pass-throughs shali be
provided for each two hurxired and
fifty (250) linear feet or fraction

Does not comply.

Complies.

Provide Pedestrian Amenities Plan indicating
compliance.

Complies.

Page 7
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Sec. 4-201.F.16

4-20 F.A

Sec. 4-201.G.1

H.2

4-201.H.3

|

" on the primary strest. The pass

through shall be subject to the
following:
*  Minimum of ten (10) feet In width.
+ Include pedestrian amenities as
defined herein.
In lieu of providing one (1) pass
through of ten (10) feet every two
hundred and fifty (250) feet of
building frontage, two (2) pass-
throughs can be combined to provide
one (1), twenty (20) foot wide pass-
through

Porte-cocheres. Porte-cocheres are
prohibited on front proparty line or
primary stroet.

Rooftop screening. All mechanical,
elecirical, celiular antennas and
other similar roof top buiiding support
services shall be entirely screened
from public view subjact to the
discretion and approval from the
Board of Architects for design and
scresning material. Landscaping
may be used as a screening materiai
at the discretion of the Board of
Architects.

Landscape open space requirernsants
aro satisfied pursuant to the rights-
of-way pianting requiraments listed
in Article 5. Division 11.

Bicycle storage. To encourage the
use of bicycles, etc., a minimum of

' ona (1) ten (10) foot bicycle rack for
" aach two hundred and fifty (250)
parking apaces or fraction thereof
shall be provided. The location shall
be convenient to users and shall be
subjact to review as a part of the site
plan review,

Boats and recreational vehicles, or
similar accessory vehicles. These
vehicles shall be parked and/or
stored within an enclosed garage,
area or structure.

Raised inch

curbing shall be on all
straets abutting this use. Curb cuts
and ramps for handicapped access
shall aiso be provided at ail street
intersections and points of

areas.

Complies.

Complies.

See review provided under Article 5, Division 11
below.

Doss not comply.
Required parking: 144 spaces (see Sheet 6.1).

Provide a minimum of one (1) ten (10) foot
bicycle rack to comply with bicycle storage
requirement

To be regulated by Code Enforcement.

To and by

Complies.

Page 8
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Sec, 4-201.H.6

Sec. 4201 H.7

Sec. 4-201.H.8

shall conform to the requirements as
set forth in Article 5, Division 14,

All loading/unioading areas and/or
facilities shall be within fully enclosed
areas with overhead doors.
Overhead doors shall remain closed
when not in use and after hours.
Nonresidential uses. Off-street
parking requirements shall be
calculated utllizing a blended parking
of ona (1) space per two hundrad
and fifty (250) gross square feet.

Restaurams shall require one (1)
space per one hundred (100) gross
feet.
On-street parking. On-street parking
must be provided on both sides of
the strest on all primary streets,
unlees encroachments for
arcades/loggias are requested.
Evaluation as to the amount of on-
street parking provided shall be
evaluated on a case-by-case basis.

On-street parking shall not be
included as satisfying the required
parking requirements.

On-street parking is encouraged on
alleys.

Removal of on-street pariking shall
be subject to compensation to the
City based upon established City
provisions.

garages.
parking that is located and fronting
on a primary street is prohibited.
Ground floor parking is permitted on
secondary streets and ghall be fully
enclosed within the structure and
shall be surrounded by retall uses.
Ground floor parking Is permitted on
afley frontages.

Parking facilities shall accommodate
pedestrian access to all adjacent
and

Parking space limitations. Restricting
and/or assignment of off-street
parking spaces for individual tenant
or users with the uss of signage,

pavement markings, etc., are
_permitted.

To be approved by Parking, Public Service and
Public Works.
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| Residential uses. Off-sireet parking
requirsments shall conform to the
requirements as set forth in Article 5,
Divislon 14,
Surface parking areas. Surface
parking lots and/or similar vehicle
Use areas are prohibited to front on
_primary streets.

parking areas. valet parking
is desired, the valet parking drop-off
areas shall be provided on private
property. Tandem andfor stacking of
are

4-201.H.9

Sec. 4.201.H.10

Sec. 4-201.H.11

1acc0rdancg Artics
7.

General. In accordance Article
5, Division 19,

Sec. 4-201.4.1

Ls [ R,

1 and alleys. Property
may request the vacation and/or
abandoryment of a public right-of-way
subject to the criteria and procadure in
access to

K2 Driveways,

surounding circulation. Valet access
points are exempt from these

provisions.

Complies,

Complias.

Valet must be located
on private property and is prohibited from parking
in any proposed tandem parking spaces.

Provide Signage Plan indicating size and location
of all proposed exterior siinaae.
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Sec. 4-201.L.1

Sec, 4-201.L.2

Sec. 4-201.M.1

1o ot

pathways shall be separated from
vehioular traftio,

Sidewalks shall be located on both
sides of all streets with a minimum of
four (4) foot unobstructed clear area.
The ciear ares shall bs unobstructed
by utitity poles, fire hydrants,
benches, trash receptacies,
newspapsr standa, light poles,
planter boxes, telephone booths or
other similar temporary or permanent
structures (traffic signags shall be
exempt from the above reguiations).

Sidewalics at points of street
intsrsections or pedestrian crossing
shall be sioped In such a manner as
o accommodate handicapped
sccess with the use of two (2) curb
cuts and/or remps at sach strest

intersaction,

Underground utliities. All utilities
shall be instalied underground in
sccordance with the provisions of
Article 5, Division 22.

the provisions of Articie 5, Divisions

Configuration of land. The parcel
propossd for development shall be a
contiguous unified parcel with
sufficient width and depth to

A ) may, as a
condition of require that
sregs for easements be set
aside, dedicated and/or
the instaliation of public
purpases which includs,
bs iimited to water,

Provide Underground Utilities Plan/Statement
indicating that all utilities will ba Inatailed
underaround.

To be

approval of the Site Plan Review.

Compilies.

by Cty

11
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Sec. 4201.M.3

Sec. 4-201.M.4

Sec. 4-201.M.5
Sec. 4-201.M.8

Sec. 4-302.B
Sec. 4-302.C
Sec. 4-302.D

public access, ingress, egress, open

space, recreation and other public

purposes which be deemed
the

“Encroachments into public rights-of-

way. Any encroachments,

construction and penetration into the

rights-of-way shall be subject to the
following:

» The property owners shall be
responsible for all maintenance of
all encroachmments and/or property
of all surrounding public rights-of-
way, including but not limited to
the following: landscaping (hard
and softscape); banches; trash
receptacies; irrigation; kiosks;
plazas; open spaces; recreational
facilities; private streets, stc.
subject to all the provisions for
which the development was
approved as may be amended.

« The property owners shall be
responsible for liability insurance,
local taxes, and the maintenance
of the encroachment and/or
property.

Live work units.

+ Each live work unit, including the
garage (if applicable), shall be
separated by walls from other live
work unifs or other uses in the
buiiding, and shall have the ability
to construct separate entrances to
each use inthe

Public realm improvements (see

Sec. 4-201.M.5 for provisions).

of density and floor area
ratio within the site pian. The density
and floor area ratio may be
transferred throughout the
oonbgucus unified parcel.

Pemliﬁed uses.

Conditional uses.

Performance standards.

Tobe approved

Not applicable.

To be reviewsd and approved by Public Works.
Comples.

To be reviewed and approved by Zoning when

obtaining certificate of use
Conditional usas require review and approvel by
the PZ8B and CC.

Performance Standards for mbed-use
developments in overlay district. See review
provided under “Section 4-201. Mixed Lse
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Sec. 4-302.D.7. Additional standards for mixed-use development.

Sec. 4-302.D.7.a

Sec. 4-302 D7D

Sec. 4302D.7.¢

uses. In encourage
the creative mix of uses, all mixed-
use developments shall have at least

g
portions of the building may be uses
permitted in the underlying zoning

Floor area multiple
uses are incorporated into a
development of four (4) or more
stories in height, the fioor area ratio
{FAR) for sach uss shall be
highest of the individual FAR shall be
to the
Ground floor treatment. Ground floor
treatment for all Mixed-Use
development shall be pedestrian
onented, and shall detail the percent
glazing to solids, pedestrian-oriented
tandscaping and other features when
submitting to the Board of Architects
and Plannina and Zoning Board.
Standards.

Purposse and applicability

A. The purpose of thesse design
review standards is to:

1. Provide standards and criteria
for review of applications for
deveiopment approval within
the City:

2. Promots innovative design with
regard to the aesthetics,
appearancss, safety, and
function of the buiit
environment in relation to the
sits, adjacent structure and
surmounding community;

3. Promote orderly and
harmonious development of
the City;

4. Enhance the desirability of
residences or investment in the

City,

5. Encowurage the attainment of
the most desirable use of land
and improvements;

6. Enhance the desirability of
Eving conditions upon the
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areas;

7. Promots visual environments
which are of high aesthetic
quality and variety and which,
at the same time, are
considerate of aach other;

8. Establish identity, diversity and
focus to promots a pedestrian
friendly environment, and

9. Encourage the utilization of a
variety of architectural
attributes and sirest jevel
amenities to creste & sense of
plecs, including the spatial
relgtionship of buildings and
the characteristics created to
ensurs attractive and
functional areas.

B. The standards in this Division
shall ba applicable to applications
for development approval within
all zoning districts, except as
otherwiss orovided hersin.

LR The Board of Architects shall
determine if an application satisfies
the following design review
standards:

1. Whether the color, design,
fmishes, fenestration, texiure,
selection of architectural
elements of exterior surfaces of
the structure are compatible and
the relationships of these items
in comparison to building base,
middie and top with the hierarchy
of importance being the base,
top and middle.

2. Whether the planning and siting
of the various function and
structures on-site provides the
following:

a. Creates an intrinsic sense of
ordsr between bulidings,

b. Provides a desirable
environment for occupants,
visitors and the general
community.

3. Whether adjacent axisting
historic features, natural features
and street level pedestrian view
corridors are appropriately

Does not comply

Does not comply

Page 14



DRC Zoning Review: 4311 Ponce

4. Whether the amount and Does not comply.
arangement of open/green
space [including urban open
space (i.e. plazas) or
unimproved areas (i.8. open
lawns, etc.)] are appropriate to
the design, function and location
in relationship to the function of
the structures and surmounding
propertios.

5. Whether sufficient buffering Complies.
{inciuding hard and softscape) is
provided when nor-compatible
usas abut or adjoin one ancther.

6. Whether the proposed lighting Does not comply
provides for the safe movement
of persons and vehicles,
provides sacurity, and minimizes
glare and reflection on adjacent
properties.
7. Whether access to the property Does not comply.
and circulation is safe and
convenient for pedestrians,
cyclists and vehiclas, and is
designed to interfere as litte as
poasible with traffic flow on these
roads and to permit vehicles a
prompt and safe ingress/egress

to the site.

8. Whether waste disposal faciiities Complies.
adversaly affect adjacent
properties.

9. Whether the spplication provides Does not comply.

improvements, public open
space, pedestrian amenities

10. Whether the propased Does not comply.
application is in conformity with

as in fiot comply.
603(1) all buiidings hereinafter
constructed or reconstructed, shail
be designed in a specific
architectural style such as but not
timited to Colonial, Venetian,
Mediterranean, Italian, French,
Bahamian or other identifiable

Page 15



DRC Zoning Review: 4311 Ponce

altered or to shall
confonm to the architectural design of
the existing building provided,
however, that if the architectural
style of the building is being altered
then the building shall be designed in
a specific architectural style such as
but not limited to Colonial, Venetian,
Mediterranean, Italian, French,
Bahamian or ather identifiable
architectural style. The Architect
shall Include a page or pages in the
plan which defines the architectural
style with text and photographs and
provide a statement on how the
proposad building complies with the
style. 1t shall be the duty and
responsibility of the Board of
Architects to determine in each and
every case whether or not the
submitted plans comply with the type
and scale of architecture set forth
hereinabove and require from the
designing architect such changeas as
would bring the design into
conformity. The Board of Architects
shali require such changes in the
design of the structure so as to

n
excellence in the community. In
considering the design of the
building, the Board of Architects shall
consider and render a decision as to
the adequacy of the following
elements in the design concept.

Awnings and canopies.

Colors.

Decorative lighting (height,

iocation and stylse).

Doors.

Height of building.

impact on adjacent properties of

continuous two (2) story walls

that are in excess of forty (40%)

percent of the site depth.

7. Locsation of exposed piping,
conduits and rainwater leaders.

8. Location of structurse on site.

9. Pianters.

10. Roofs including matsrials, color,
slope and overhang.

11. Shutters.

12. Site circulation in régard to

pedestrian travel, parking,

Pos woa



DRG Zoning Review: 4311 Ponce

Sec. 5-603.B

Sec. 5603.C

landscaping.

13. Teocture of surface.

14. Trin.

15. Walls, height, location, materials,
and design,

16. Window boxes.

The architectural style for a given
location, unless specified o the
contrary, shall be in harmony with
the architecture of its particudar
neiahborhood.

Saction 5-804. Coral Gables Meditarranean Style

5604.A.2

Reference

Zoning district applicabfity. These
regulations are available for new
construction, additions, restorations
and/or rencvations of existing
buiidings using all types of
architecture styies as described
herein provided such property i8
located within the Multi-Famiy-2
(MF2), Multi-Famlly Special Area
{(MFSA), Commercial (C),
Commerdial Limited (CL), or
Industrial (1) zoning districts, sxcept
as otherwise provided harein, ]

Architectural elaments on buitding
facades.

Similar exterior architecthural relief
slements shall be provided on all
sides of all buildings. No blank wails
shall be permitted untess required
pursuant 1o applicable City, State
and Federa! requirements (i.e., Fire
and Life Safety Code, &tc).

Parking garages shall inchude
exterior architectural treatmerits
compatible with buildings or
structures that occupy the same
property and/or street.

Architeciural refief at street
level,

On any building facades fronting
strests, whers an adjoining
pedestrian sidewalk is locatad, one
{1} or more of the followina desian

comply.

Complies.

Does not comply.

Does not comply.

Does not comply.

Page 17



DRC Zoning Review: 4311 Ponce

Refarsnce #3

Refarence #4

Reference #5

features shall be included at the
street lavel:
a. Digplay windows or retail display

area;
b. Landscaping; and/or
c. Architectural relief elements or
omamentation,
Architectural elements located on the
top of bulldings.

Exclusion from height. The following
shalt be excluded from computation
of building height in C, A and M-Use
Districts:

&. Alr-conditioning equipment room.
b. Elevator shafts.
¢. Elevator mechanicsl equipment
TOOmS.
d. Parapsts.
Roof structures used only for
omamental and/or aesthetic
purposes not exceeding a combinad
area of iwenty-five (25%) percent of
tha floor area immediately below.,
Such axciusion shall be subject to
the provisions that no such structure
shall exceed a haight of more than
twanty-five (25) feet above the roof,
except for commercial buildings in
the Central Business District (CBD)
where no such struchire shall
axceed one-third (1/3) of the
allowable total buitding height.

Bicycle storage.

To encourage the use of bicycles,
bicycie storage facilities (racks) shall
be provided. A minimum of five (5}
bicycle storage spaces shall be
provided for each two hundred and
fity (250) parking spaces or fraction

Facades in axcess of one hundred
and fifty (150) feet in length shalt
incorporate vertical breaks,
stepbacks or variations In
bulk/massing at a minimum of one

coverage.

No minimum or maximum building ot
is

Drive through facilities.
Drive through facilities including but

Does not comply

Does not comply. |

Does not comply.
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DRC Zoning Review: 4311 Ponce

Reforence #8

Reference #9

#10

#11

not limited to banking

restaurants, pharmacies, dry
cleaners, etc. are prohibited access
toffrom Ponce de Leon Boulevard
from S.W. 8th Street to Bird Road,
Miracle Mile from Dougias Avenue to
LaJeuna Road, and Alhambra Circle
from Dougias Avenue to LeJeunse

Open SPaCcs area.

Each property shall provide the

following minimum landscape open

area (percentage based upon total

fot arsa):

8. Five (5%) percent for
nonresidential properties;

b. Ten (10%) percent for mixed use
propecties; and

c. Twenty-five (25%) percent for
residential i

properties.
Thea total area shall be based upon
the total lot area. This landscape
area can be provided at street lovel,
within the public right-of-way,
glevated areas, planter boxes,

street.

Strest lighting shall be provided and
located on all streetsfrights-of-way.
The type of fodure shall be the
approved City of Coral Gables light
focuse and locationfspacing, etc.
shall be the subject to review and
approval by the Departmeit of Public

garages.

Ground floor parking as apartof a
multi-use buliding shall not fronton a
primary street. ADA parking is
permittad on the ground floor.
Ground fioor parking is permiited on
/side strests and shall be
fully enclosed within the structure
and/or shall be surrounded by retail
uses and/or residential units. Ground

flcor parking is permitted on alley
frontages.

Parking facilities shall strive to
accommodate padestrian access to

Page 19
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Reference #12

Referencs #13

Reference

511

RO ey ey

13

8CCESS ;
Bouvverd from S.W. 3t Shest 2
Bird Road, Miracie Mile romn
DwghsAmbanm

with tema 1 thru § of Zoning Code
5.

tams 1 thru 3 of Zoning Codin

s

2t Sme of I plan

Foden e sy by Pebic
and Pudiic: Wiowics.
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Sec. 5-1402.8

Sec. 5-1409.B

Sec. 5-1410.A

b. Angled parking spaces: 8%
feet by 18 foet.

¢. Disabled parking spaces shall
be dimensionad in accordance
with Chapter 11 of the Florida
Building Code.

2. Whesl stops and curbing.
Precast concrete whesi stops or
curbing shall be provided for &l
angled parking spaces that abut a
sidewaik such that cars are
curbed at 18 M feet. The balance
of the required depth of the
parking spaces betwsen the
whesl stop or curb and the
sidewalk shall be clear of
obstructions.

3. Required algle widths. Minimum
requined aisle widths for two-way
aisles: 22 feat.

Dimensions of loading spaces.

Loading spaces shall be at lsast 10

fest wida by 25 feet long, and shall

provide at least 14 feet of vertical
dearanca. :

Geneyal,

1. All triangles of visibllity that are
required by this Section shall be
kept clear of visual obstructions
betwesan a height of 2% feet and 8
feel above the established grade.

2. Visibility triangles for driveways
and interssctions that are not
inchuded in this section shall be
provided in accordance with the
standards set out in the Miami-
Dade County Code.

Calculation of parking requirements.

(List parking requiremaents for each
usa as specified in Zoning
Coda Section 5-1409. Amount of
required narking)
Tandem spaces. Tandem spaces
are permitted as required parking,
providad each set of tandem parking
spaces are assigned to an indlvidual
unit within the building.
Vertical parking lifts may utilize the
following meximum percemages to
satisfy required parking spaces,
calculated at two (2) parking spaces
per iift, within a building:

Determination requires full-size set of plans for
review.

Determination requires fuil-size set of pians for

review.

Determination requires fuli-size set of plans for
review. Applicant's parking calculations are

provided on Sheet 6.1.
must be
or
Complies,
Each lift must be controlied exclusively by one (1)
tenant/unit.

Page 21






May 11, 2014

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE (DRC)
405 Biltmore Way
City of Coral Gables, Florida

RE: RESPONSE TO COMMENTS REGARDING DRC 04.25.14 MEETING “4311 PONCE” AGENDA ITEM.

Dear Members of the Development Review Committee:

Please accept this document as our response to what we feel are numerous inconsistencies, errors, incorrect statements and
misrepresentations made during the above referenced DRC meeting, which took place on April 25, 2014. As such, | am also
requesting that this document be made a part of the official record of the DRC Hearing, as this project proceeds through the
approval process of the MXD Overlay District requirements.

While we are currently reviewing and responding to the comments and suggestions from the various departments that make
up the DRC Committee, including setting up appointments for meetings, etc., the responses herein are particular to and focus
on addressing only statements made verbally and in written form by Mr. Ramon Trias, who at this DRC meeting, acted as
“Chairman”, “Planning and Zoning Director” and “City Architect’, after telling the City Architect (who is required to be a member
of the DRC Committee) that he would NOT be allowed to attend the meeting, an action we find highly disturbing and suspect.

For purposes of clarity, our response will follow the same order of the “MEMORANDUM” prepared by Mr. Trias to the
Development Review Committee (DRC) dated April 25, 2014, We respond as follows:

1.  MEMORANDUM Cover Page, ltem No. 5:
This comment is incorrect in its entirety and non-applicable to this project. This would ONLY be applicable if the
applicant was requesting setback reductions for the project, which we are clearly NOT requesting, therefore this is a
“NOT APPLICABLE” response instead of a “DOES NOT COMPLY” response as Mr. Trias has stated here and
later in his analysis.

2. DRC Zoning Review: 4311 Ponce Cover Page: Category, Floor Area Ratio (FAR) permitted:
The response states that “Mediterranean bonus required for MXD projects located within MXD Overlay", is incorrect.
Under Article 4, Section 4-201 Mixed Use Districts (MXD), Table 1 D. Performance Standards, Item 6. states that
Mediterranean Architecture is *Mandatory for MXD overlay districts only", but says nothing regarding “bonuses”.
For the record, our project is seeking NO Mediterranean Bonuses of any kind.

3. DRC Zoning Review: 4311 Ponce, Page 2: Sec.4-201.D.6
The response says “Does Not Comply”. The reviewer, at the DRC meeting, when asked why he responded in this
manner, refused to respond to the question. As the Architect, we can unequivocally state that our design meet all of
the requirements as stated in the City of Coral Gables “Mediterranean Style Design Handbook”, and in particular,
page 2 of that documents, where it states "How to obtain Mediterranean Bonuses”, listing first, 14 items as
“Standards” that must be met, along with “Level 1" and “Level 2" “Bonuses” available for projects in order to increase
height, bulk and or other design advantages available in Coral Gables. Level 1 Bonuses contain 12 qualifications
that are available for inclusion in any design proposal. Page 3 of that document further states that “MXD Districts
shall satisfy a minimum of eight (8) qualifications”. Our proposed design meets 11 of the 12 qualifications.

4, DRC Zoning Review: 4311 Ponce, Page 4: Sec. 4-201.E.15
The response says “Does Not Comply”. The reviewer, again is incorrect in his statement, as the correct statement
should be “Does Not Apply”, as we are NOT requesting any reductions of setbacks and are subject ONLY to Sec.
4-201.E.14, which he chooses to ignore.

5. DRC Zoning Review: 4311 Ponce, Pages 6:Sec. 4-201.F.2, F.4, Page 7: Sec. 4-201.F.11
To all of the above Pages and Sections, the response says “Does Not Comply”. We reject in its entirety, the
statement made by the reviewer as it is clearly made by either someone who has a biased view or someone who did
not understand architectural drawings, as we meet all of the requirements of each and every one of the Sections
referenced in our design proposal.

M A T E U AHCEITEATJRA obes SLTHWEST 151 STREST » B0aAY F 0= DA RBIT0 s TE 307 052 sl e FAL DL EEs 3508
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Regarding the balance of the Memorandum, (starting on page 13 thru to its conclusion on page 22) it is our opinion that the
opinions and commentary, specifically regarding compliance or not with the “Development Standards” and other references
made in the report, are clearly NOT in the area of Mr. Trias review purview, but should have been only as a result of a review
by the City Architect. As such, we believe that these comments where strictly made as an attempt by the writer to circumvent
the City of Coral Gables established procedures and protocol, in order to interject his personal biases and stylistic
preferences, attempting to dictate his “preferred architectural style” in the City of Coral Gables, an action clearly not in the job
description for the Director of Planning and Zoning as described by City of Coral Gables documents.

Article 5-602. Design Review Standards, clearly states that, “The Board of Architects shall determine if an application
satisfies the design review standards”, and NOT, as Mr. Trias has attempted here, as the decision of the Director of
Planning and Zoning.

Notwithstanding the requirements of the MXD Overlay District regarding Mediterranean Architecture requirements, contrary to
what Mr. Trias states in the first page of his “DRC Zoning Review: 4311 Ponce”, Category, Mediterranean Architectural District
(citywide), is NOT a correct statement, as Mediterranean Architecture is NOT a citywide requirement (Section 5-603. 1.1.2.3).

Finally, it is our opinion that, any project being designed in the MXD Overlay District (as stated in response No. 3 above)
needs ONLY to comply with meeting 8 of the12 qualifications of Level 1 Bonuses and none of Level 2, as described in the
“Mediterranean Style Design Handbook’, especially if the design solution proposed does NOT seek any “Bonuses” to increase
height, bulk, or reduce setbacks, as our proposed project does not seek any bonuses.

Please confirm that this response will become part of the DRC record that gets submitted to any and all parties in past and
future distributions.

Respectfully submitted,

Roney J. Mateu, FAIA
RIM/rm

Cc:

Jane Tompkins, Development Services Director
Charles Wu, Assistant Development Services Director
William Miner, Building Director

Ermesto Pino, Acting Public Service Director
Troy Springmyer, Acting Public Service Director
Manuel Lopez, Building Official

Kevin Kinney, Parking Director

Cynthia Birdsill, Economic Sustainability Director
Donna Spain, Historical Resource Director
Edward Hudak, Police Department

Robert Lowman, Fire Department

Carlos Mindreau, City Architect

Elizabeth Gonzalez, Zoning Technician Lead
Sebrina Brown, Concurrency Administrator

Craig Leen, City Attorney

Frank Quesada, City Commissioner
Vince Lago, City Commissioner

Patricia Keon, City Commissioner
Carmen Olazabal, Interim City Manager
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Board of Architects — Review Comments - DRC
PROJECT:  The 4311 Ponce — Mixed-Use Development Project

Mateu Architecture, Inc.
DATE: 22 May, 2014
General Procedural Comments:

This Praject must comply with all the requirements of the Zoning Code of Coral Gables
and all applicab¥e building codes including the following:

Pubdic Works

Public Services

Planning and Zoning Board Review
Community Meeting

ity Commission Approval

Articke 5, Section 5603, Paragraph A, indicates that "the Architect shall include a page or
pages in the plan (documents) which defines the architectural style with text and
photographs and provide a statement orn how the proposed bullding complies with the
style”. A written statement to satisfy this segment of the Code shall accompany your
prefiminary submiital to the Board of Architects.

The FPrefiminary Presentation to the Board of Architects must include graphic studies
demonstrating the redationship of the Design to other buildings in the neighborhood and
partiaidarly to the inynediate and adjacent properties to demonstrate contextual relevance
of the Project to other existing structures. Article 5, Section 5-603, Paragraph C indicates
that “the architectural context of an area includes the height, scale, massing, separation
between buildings, and styfe, in regard to how bulldings and structures relate to each
other within a spedaiffed area. Architectural context allows for differences in helght, scale,
massing, and separation between building and style, when such differences contribute to



the overad harmony and character of the area”. Thés shail accompany your Prefiminary
submittal in the form of a written statement.

Article 5, Section 5-603, Paragraph D, indicates that “additions and alterations to
buidings, which have been designated by the provisions within the Zoning Ordinance as
an Histaric Landmark, shall conform to the Secretary of the Interiors Standards.

At the time of the submittal for a Prefiminary Review, the property must be Pasted for 5
aRys prior to review by the Board of Architects. The Architect shall atso submit 10
WM#MM(HXI7WUMMBMM7/MMWWM
Board prior to the presentation date. The architect shall also submit a disc with full pdf’s
of the propased Docurments to be archived for future reference if necessary.

General Design Comments

This Project is situated on the comer of Ponce de Leon Boulevard and 5an Lorenzo
Avenue with the Village of Merrick Park to the West and a large Mixed Use developrnertt
to the Bast ~ dieanly in the center of the Mixed Use Overlay District (MXD).

Section 4-201 of the Zoning Code of Coral Gables outlines the purpase of this District as
ollows:

. ?‘ohvw‘de Tor residential uses at higher densities in exchange for public resim
IMproveynents,
To provide an aportunity to fully utilize the physical characteristics of the site

®
. - distance including offices, workpi,
residential, cormmercial and public open spaces, 7 aces,
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Rems ' it iitned in the

ns o bo bearammndwmmmmm |
@m&fﬁﬂaﬁw Handbook dated mzo;ammmw by Mr. Iﬂawgd
Tiias, Director of Planning and Zoning . ms{wmwmm incicaty
that "MXD Districts shall satisfy a minimum of eight (8) quaiifications.

This Project complies with all applicable required standards as outiined in the
Mediterranean Styfe Design Handbook including:

» Architectural elements on all building facades (no blank walls, parking garage
treatments)

Architectural relfef elements at street level
Architectural efements located on the top of bufidings

Bicydle storage will be included for the prefiminary Board of Architects
presentation

Building facades incorporate variations in bulk/mass of the buitding
Building lot coverage — no minimum or maximum required

No drive through facilities permited on Porce de Leon

This project will comply with 10 percent randScape open area

Street lighting on all rights of way shall be co-ordinated with Public Works
There is no parking projected for the Ground Floor

bullding Is oriented towards the primary

e @

fevel planting areas
Window depths, where appilcable, shall maintain a misimum of 4 “reveal

and it /s



Additionally, the Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation (excerpts included
wd highlighted below,) state that duplicating the form, material, and detalling of the
structure to the extent that they compromise the historic character of the structure will
il to meet the Standards. Although this is spedifically in reference to addftions to
Historic structures is stands to reason that it would also apply to new developments
within a historic distric or community.

As slated in the definition, the treatment "rehabililation” assumes that o least some repair or alleration of
the historic building will be needed in order to provide for an efficient conternporary use, however, these
repairs and allerations must not damage or destroy malerials. features or finishes that are important in
defining the building'’s historic character. For axample, cerlain treatments--if improperly applied--may
Cause or accelerate physical detenoration of the hi

repointing or exterior masony cleaning techniques,

In ahmos! all of these situations, use of these maten

not meet the Standards Sanilay. axterior

strucitre 10 the éxtent that they compronse the

Standards.

The Secretary of the interior's Standards for Rehabititation

Considering the attached
exterior addition both in
terms of the new use and
the appearance of other
buildings in the historic
district or neighborhood.

may reference design
motifs from the histornc
Worary buidlding.
appropriately placed on secondary side slevation.
adways be C
be compitible

retationship of sokds to voids, and color.

Taking into consideration that this design complies with the majority of the Design
Guidelines as indicated in the Mediterranean Style Design Handbook and in Article 5,
Section 5-604, Table 1 and Paragraph C and further considering the basic premise of the
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation, it is my professional opinion that
this buitding would be a significant addition to the landscape in this District.

Carios A, Mindreau / (Rly Architect



11 Ponce / Mateu Architecture

2014
, 2014

Existing designations and site data:

Future

Plan Future

Use Map desianation(s)

_Existing Zoning Map desianation(s)
“Proposed Zoning Map desianation(s)

to

iterranean

Within Coral Gables Redevelopment

Infill Diatrict (GRID) (Traffic
Concurrency Exemption Zone)
Restrictive Covenant

pet

Total site area (sq. it.)

ares permitted —
Maximum 3.0 FAR (without

ares ratio -
Maximum 3.5 FAR

Fioor area ratio {(FAR) proposed

Building height (fee ) psrmitted

Bullding height (fee ) proposed
As per Miami-Dade County

Note:
conce
shang

See Review

Efigible to utilize MXD Overlay provisions.

Yes; Mediterranean Architecture projects utilizing

Restrictive Covenant required in Lieu of a Unity of Title.

we

See Previous Review 4/21/14

analysis and is intended only to identify
el in order to inform the applicant of any
application to proceed.
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DRC Zoning Review: (Project Nams)

Zoning Cods Review:

Sac, 3401 Conditional Uses
‘Sec, 3-1201 Abandonment and Vacation of Non-
Fas Interasts
_Sec, 3-2001 Art In Publlc Places
Sec. 4-201.A.7 81, MXD development permitted within
(C) Commerclal and ()) Industrial
B Districts only
Sec. 4-201.B Permitted Uses
Sec,

site area an
project/buliding within North and
South Industrial MXDs as defined on
the Official Zoning Map.

Graater than forty-five (45) feet in
height shall provide a minimum of
ons-hundred (100) feet of primary
street frontage and a minimum site
area of ten-thousand (10,000)

foet.
Sec. 4-201.D.4 Lot coverage. No minimum or
maximum
4-201.D.5 use percentages, Provide

min. 8% total sq. ft., or entire ground
floor, whichever is greater, as ground

Sec. 4-201.D.6
Mandatory for MXD overlay districts
only.
' Sec. 4-201.E.1 of over
Sec. 4-201.E.2
awnings, etc. Subject to applicable
Sec. 4-201.E.3 Floor area ratio. Up to 3.5 with
Sec. 4-201.E4

minimum
floor-to-flosr height be
&s regulated per the

Conditiona! uses require review and approval by

the Planning and Zoning Board (PZB) and City
Commission (CC).

Requires review and approval from Public Works.

Requires review by Economic Sustainability.

Complies.

See list of permitied uses.

C uses require review and approval by

PZB and CC

See Previous Review 4/21/14

See Previous Review 4/21/14

See Previous Review 4/21/14

To be reviewed and approved by the Board
Architects.

Complies [
not

Not Applicable

Not

Al

be approved by the
Building Official,



DRC Zoning Review: {Project Name)

MF-

Sec. 4-201.E.8

Sec. 4-201.E.9
.E-10

to
Division 4,

Conditional Uses, for habitable

space for the following undertying

zoning dasignations and uses may
be granted as follows:

» Commercial Limited District: Up
to and including seventy-five (75)
feet

+ Commercial District: Up to and
including one-hundred (100) feet.

* Industrial District Up to and including
one-hundred (100) feet

» Manufacturing uses: Up to and
including forty-five (45) feet.

Heights of architectural slements,

efc. The maximum allowable

heighi(s), subject to satisfying Article

3, Division 4, Conditional Uses, of

architectural elements, spires, bell

towers, elevator housings or similar
non-habitable structures for the
following underlying zoning
designations and uses may be
granted as follows:
Commercial Limited District: Up to
and including fifteen (15) feet.

« Industrial and Commercial
Districts: Up to and including
twenty-five (25) feet.

*  Manufacturing uses: Up to and
includina ten (10) feet.

Height adjoining residential uses.

Properties which are adjacent to

residential district designations shall

ba limited to a maximum height

(habitable space) of forty-five (45)

feet within one hundred (100) feet of

the adjacent right-of-way line. Ten

(10) additional feet are permitted for

roof top architectural elements, etc.

above the habitable height.

Number of buildings per site. No

minimum or maximum reauired.

Minimum of fifty (50%) percent of the

linear ground ficor building frontage

shall include retail sales and service,
office, or restaurant or public reaim
land area (i.e. plazas, courtyards,
open .space, efc.) uses. Primary
street means a major street of
considerable continuity which serves
s a major
large areas

ground floor building

Complies

Complias.

Complies

Complies



DRC Zoning Review: (Project Name)

Sec. 4-201.E.12
Sec. 4-201.E.13

Sec. 4-201.E14

service, office, or restaurant or public
realm land area (i.e. plazas,
courtyards, open space, etc.) uses.
Secondary street means a minor
street used to access abutting
properties which carries traffic to the
street
Retail frontage on alleys. No

Up to a maximum of one hundred
and twenty-five (125) units per acre
except for properties in the Central
Business District (CBD) and the
North and South Industrial Mixed
Use Districts. There shall be no
density limitations in the CBD and
the North and South Industrial Mixed
Use Districts.

Setbacks (buildings).

Front Up to forty-five (45) feet in height:
None. If over forty-five (45) feet in
height Ten (10) feet.

Side: Interior side: None. Side street:
Fifteen (15) feet

Rear. Abutting a dedicated aliey or
street: None. No abutting dedicated
alley or street Ten (10) feet

Balconies: Cantileverad open balconies
may project into the required setback
areas a maximum of six (6) feet

Applicants and property owners desiring
to develop pursuant to these
regulations may not seek a variance
for relief or reduction in building
setbacks. Reductions are only
permitted subject to the below listed
regulations.

reductions and vertical
building stepbacks.

Reduction in setbacks. Setbacks
may be reduced subject to the
following standards:

Minimum percentage of open space.
A minimum of fifty (50%) percent of
the total ground floor square footage
received from the setback reduction

plazas,
pedestrian pass-
open

Complies.

Complies

Complies

Page 4
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rights-of-way.
area, Minimum square

Vertical building stepbacks. A
vertical building stepback of a
minimum of ten (10) feet shall be

at a maximum height of
(45) feet on all fagades.
vertical building
stepbacks may be required by the
City Architect and the entire Board
of Architects to furthes reduce the
impacts of the

Sec. 4-201.E.16 Setbacks adjoining residential uses.
Residential districts. All property

Sec. 4-201.E17 frontage. No minimum or
1 Arcades and/or loggias.
loggias or covered areas may
accommodate up to eighty (80%)

percent of the entire linear length of
the building based upon the site plan
review criteria listed herein.
Encroachment of the entire length or
one hundred (100%) percent may be
requested subject to review and
approval at the time of site plan
consideration. Limitations of
encroachments on comers of
b.uﬂdings may be required to control
view corridors and ground fioor

relief

Applicable

plies
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Sec. 4-201F.3

Sec. 4-201.F .4

Sec. 4-201.F.5

Sec. 4-201.F.6

Sec. 4-201.F.7

Sec. 4-201.F.8

Sec. 4-201.F.9

(i.e., windows, comice lines, etc.)
shall be provided on all sides of
buildings and include similar
architectural features as to those
provided on the front fagade. No
blank wails shall be permitted un{ess
required pursuant to applicable Fire
and Life Safety Code requirements.

Building support s. All
mechanical electrical and other
associated support service areas
shall be located entirely within the

excess of one

and fifty (150) feet in length, shall

incarporate design features with the

use of, but not limited to the-following
tems:

(a) Breaks, stepbacks or variations in
bulk/massing at a minimum of
one hundred (100) foot intervals.

(b} Use of architectural relief and
elements.

Lighting (street). Decorative street

lighting shall be provided and located

on all streets/rights-of-way subject to
the following:

« Light fixtures/poles up to thirty-five

(35) feet in height.

« Subject to all other applicable City

code provisions,

Lighting (building). External

ilumination and lighting of buildings

shall require Planning Department
and Planning and Zoning Board
review and recommendation with
approval of the City Cormmission.

Lighting (landscaping). Lighting in

the form of uplighting of landscaping

is encouraged.

storage. of
materials, goods, and
equipment for the purpose of display
and/or sales outside the confines of
any buildings or structures is

shalt fict face or be directed
residential properties
rights-of-way abutting

in the

Complies

Complies

To Be Determined

To Be Determined

To

To be regulated by Code Enforcement.
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Bec. 4-201.F.13

£.14

8ac. 4-201.F.15

surfac
by the

"Parking ¢ . Parking garages To
Parking garages g 9arag Architects.

shall include exterior architectural

treatments compatible with buildings Complies

or structures which occupy the same

development and/or street. To be reviewed and approved by Public Service
access orientation. Complies

buildings, except accessory

bulidings, shall have their main

pedestrian entrance or entrances

oniented towards the front property

Pedestrian amenities. Pedestrian Complies
amenities shall be provided on both  Architect to provide additionai information for BOA
private property and/or public open Review
spaces including but not limited to

the following: benches, information

kiosks, lighting, bike racks, refuse

containers, sidewalk pavement

treatments, statuary, street

crosswalk paver treatments, wall

mounted fountains, water fountains

and other similar water features. All

pedestrian amenities shail be

permanently sacured {o the ground

surface

Above amenities shall be consistent
in design and form with the
applicable City Public Realm Design
Manual.
design features Compties
building frontages (street level only).
On any front property line or primary
street, where an adjoining pedestrian
sidewalk is located, the following
design features shall be included:
« Display windows or retail display
ares;
» Landscaping; and/or,
» Architectural building design
features.
The intent is to create pedestrian
and shopper interest, preclude
inappropriate or inharmonious
design, preclude blank walls of
buikding faces, and prohibit windows

fifty (250) linear feet or fraction

thereof of building frontage provided
on the primary street. The pass
through shall be subject to the
following:

* Minimum of ten (10) feet in width.

+_Include pedestrian amenities as
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Sec. 4201.F.16

4-201.F.17

Sec. 4-201.G.1

Sec. 4-201.H.1

Sec. 4-201. H.2

Sec 4-201.H.3

Sec, 4-201.H.4

defined herein.
In lisu of providing one (1) pass
through of ten (10) feet every two
hundred and fifty (250) feet of
building frontage, two (2) pass-
throughs can be combined to provide
one {1), twenty (20) foot wide pass-
throuah.
Porte-cocheres. Porte-cocheras are
prohibited on front property fine or

Rooftop screening. All

elsctrical, cellular antennas and

other similar roof top building support
services shall be entirsly screened
from public view subject to the
discretion and approval from the
Board of Architects for design and
scresning material. Landscaping
may ba used as a screaning material
at the discretion of the Board of

open space requirements
are satisfied pursuant to the rights-
of-way planting requirements listed
in 11,

Bicycle storage. To encourage the
use of bicycles, etc., a minimum of
one (1) ten (10) foot bicycle rack for
each two hundred and fifty (250)
parking spaces or fraction thereof
shall be provided. The location shall
be convenient to users and shall be
subject to review as a part of the site
plan review.

Boats and recreational vehicles, or
similar accessory vehicles. These
vehicles shall be parked and/or
stored within an enclosed garage,
area or structure,

Raised curbing. Six (6) inch raised
curbing shall ba provided on sl
streets abutting this use. Curb cuts
and ramps for handicapped access
shall also be provided at all street
intersections and points of
pedestrian crossing,

areas.
loading standards and requirements
shall conform to the requirements as
set forth in Article 5, Division 14.

and/or
enclosed

Not Applicable

To be approved by the Board of
Architects.

Complies

See review provided under Articie 5, Division 11
below,

Architect to provide additional information for
BOA Reviaw

To be regulated Code

To  reviewed and approved by

“Amn

Page 8
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MY MR

Sec. 4-201.H.7

Sec 4-201.H8

4-201H9

4-201 H.10

when not in use and after hours.
uses. Off-stroet
parking requirements shall be
calcutated utifizing a blended parking
of one (1) space per two hundred
and fifty (250) gross square feet.

Restaurants shall require one (1)
space per one hundred (100) gross

On-street parking. On-street parking
must be provided on both sides of
the street on all primary streets,
unless encroachments for

ias are requested.
Evaluation as to the amount of on-
wireet parking provided shall be
evaluated on a case-by-case basis.

On-street parking shafl not be
inciuded as satisfying the required

On-sireet parking is encouraged on
alleys,

Removal of on-street parking shall
be subject to compensation to the
City based upon established City
Drovigions.

Parking garsges. Ground ficor
parking that is located and fronting
on a primary street is prohibited.
Ground flocr parking is permitted on
secondary streets and shadl be fully
enclesad within the structure and
shall be sumounded by retail uses.
Ground floor parking is permitted on
aley frontages.

Parking facilities shall accommodate
pedestrian accsss to all adjacent
and afleys.

space
and/or assignment of off-street
or users with the use of signage,

Residential uses. Off-street parking
requirements shall conform to the

requirements as set forth in Aricle 5,

_Division 14.
areas.

parking lots and/or similar vehicle
use aressy are prohibitad 1o front on

To be approved by

Public and
Public Works.
Complies
Complies

“mrvand

Page 9
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Sec, 1.J.1

4-201.KA

Sec. 4-201.K2

Sec. K3

on

areas shall ba
property. Tandem of

\n accordance
7

General. In accordance with

ownen(s) may request the

and/or abandonment of a
right-of-way subject to the criteria
and procedure in Article 3, Division

access to
parking garages shall be from a side
street or alley. Vehicular
egressfingress, including but not
limited to driveways, service drives,
drive-throughs, etc., may be
permitted from-a primary street and
shall be evaluated as part of site
plan review based upon the project
design In relation to existing
surrounding circulation. Valet access
points are exempt from these
provisions.

Vehicular entrances for drive-through
facilities, garage entrances, service
bays and loading/unloading facilities
should be consolidated into one (1)
curb cut to reduce the amount of
vehicular penetration into pedestrian
sidewalks and adjoining rights-of-

one another to.form a continuous
pedestrian natwork from parking
garage entrances, parking areas,
primary and secondary padestrian
entrances, etc. Wherever possible
pathways shall be separated from
vehicular traffic. .

by utility poles
trash

from
tandem parking spaces.

To be determined
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Sec. 4-201.L.2

Sec. 4-201. M1

Sec. 4-201.M.2

Sec. 4-201.

structures (traffic signage shail be
sxempt from the above regulations).

Sidewalks at points of street
intersections or pedestiian crossing
shail be slopad In such & manner as
to accommodate handicapped
access with the use of two (2) curb
cuts and/or ramps at each street

shall be Instalied undarground in
accordance with the pravisions of

Above
ground, fagade, roof, mechanical
and electrical facilities shall be
appropristely scresned to entirely
hide the facility in accordance with
the provislons of Article 5, Divigions
11 and 18. Screening materials may
Include landscaping, walls, fencing,
etc., to achlave one hundred (100%)
percent . Approval of typs of

be determined at

Configuration of land. The parcel
proposed for development shali be a
contiguous unlifiead parcel with
sufficlent width and depth to
accommodate the proposed uses.
Public rights-of-way or other public
lands shall not be considered as a
separation.

Easements. The City may, as a
condition of approval, require that
sultable araas for sasements be set
aside, dedicated and/or Improved for
the Installation of public utllities and
purposas which include, but shall nat
be limited to water, gas, telephone,

- alectric power, sewer, drainage,

public access, ingress, egress, open
space, recreation and other public
purposes which may be deemed
_nacessary by the City Commission

way, Any encroachments,
construction and penetration into the
rights-of-way shall be subject to the
following:

obe

To be determinad

Page 11
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4-201

Sec. 4-302.8B
Sec. 4-302.C

Sec. 4-302.D

Sec. 4-302.D.7.a

and softscape); benches; trash
receptacles; irrigation; klosks;
plazas; open spaces; recraational
facilities; private streets, stc.
subject to all the provisions for
which the development was
approved as may be amended.
The property owners shall be
responsible for Hability insurance,
local taxes, and the maintenance
of the encroachment andfor

units.

* Each liva work unit, including the
garage (if applicable), shall be
separated by walls from other live
work units or other uses in the
building, and shall have the ability
to construct separate entrances to

Public (sea
4-201.M.5 for
of density area
ratio within the site plan. The density
and floor area ratio may be
transferrad throughout the
unified

Permitted uses.
Conditional uses.

Performance standards.

Mix of uses. In order to encourage
the creative mix of uses, all mixed-
use developments shall have at least
eight (8%) percent or the entire
ground floor of retall commercial
and/or office uses. The remaining
portions of the bullding may be uses
In the underlying zoning

rarea multiple

determined and the
be

To be reviewed and approved by Public Works.

To be reviewed and approved by Zoning when
obtaining certificate of use permits.

uses require and approval by

Proposed
p
developments in overlay district. See review
provided under “Section 4-201, Mixed Use District
(MXD)" above.
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T
4-302.D0.7.¢c Ground floor treatmaent. Ground floor

treatment for all Mixed-Use
development shall be pedestrian

orlented, and shall detall the percent
glazing to solids, pedestrian-oriented
landscaping and other features when
submitting to the Board of Architects

and Planning and Zoning Board.

lty.

A. The purpose of these design
review standards is to:

1. Provide standards and criterla

for raview of applications for
development approval within
the City,

2. Promote innovative design with

regand to the aesthetics,
architectural design,
appearances, safety, and
function of the built
environment in relation to the
site, adjacent structure and
surrounding community;

3. Promote orderly and
harmonious development of
the City;

4. Enhance the desirability of

residences or investment in the

City;
5. Encourage the attainment of

the most desirabie use of land

6. f

ent

- tunctional areas.

To be reviewed and

by the Board of
Architects.

Complies



Y
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shall be applicable to applications
for development approval within
all zoning districts, except as
otherwise provided herein.
The Board shall
determine if an application satisfles
the following design review
standards:

1. Whether the color, design,
finishes, fenestration, texture,
selection of architectural
elements of exterior surfaces of
the structure are compatible and
the relationships of these items
in comparison to building base,
middle and top with the hierarchy
of importance being the base,
top and middie.

2, Whether the planning and siting
of the various function and
structures on-site provides the
following:

a. Creates an intrinsic sense of
order between buildings,
streets and pedestrian
movements and activities.

b. Provides a desirable
envircnment for occupants,
visitors and the generai
community.

3. Whether adjacent existing
historic features, natural features
and street level pedestrian view
corridors are appropriately
integrated or otherwise
protected.

4. Whether the amount and
arrangement of open/green
space [including urban open
space (i.e. plazas) or
unimproved areas (i.e. open
lawns, etc.)] are appropriate to
the design, function and location
in relationship to the function of
the structures and surrounding
properties.

5. Whether sufficient buffering

~ (including hard and softscape) is
- provided when non-compatible
-uses.abut or adjoin one another.

6. Whether the proposed lighting

To be

and the

Complies

Complies

Complies

Complies

Complies

Complies



Review: (Project Name)

persons and
provides security and minimizes
glare and reflection on adjacent
properties,
7. Whaether access 1o the property Complies
and circulation is eafe and

prompt and safe ingress/agress

to the site.

8. Whether waste disposal facilities Complies
sdversely affect adjacent

properties.

9. Whether the application provides
improvements, public open
space, pedestrian amenities
which benafit the public.

Complies

10. Whether the proposed Complies
application is in conformity with

Except as for in 5- he approved by Board
603(1) all buildings Architects
construsted or reconstructed, shall
be designed in a specific
architectural style such as but not
limited to Colonial, Venetian,
Mediterranean, Italian, French,
Bahamian or other identifiable
architectural style. All buildings
hereinafter altered or added to shall
conform to the architectural design of
the existing building provided,
however, that if the architectural
style of the building is belng altered
then the building shall be designed in
a specific architectural style such as
but not limited to Colonial, Venetian,
Mediterranean, Italian, French,
Bahamian or other identifiable
architecturai style. The Architect
shall a page or pages inthe
which defines the architectural
with text and photographs and
a statement on

Complies.

with the
and
of the Board of
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and require from the

Awnings and canopies.
Colors,

Decorative lighting (helght,
location and style).

Doors.

i

» ;b

9. Planters.
10. Roofs including materials, color,
slope and overhang.
11, Shutters.
12. Site circulation in regard to
pedestrian travel, parking,
services, grades and
landscaping.
13, Texture of surface.
14. Trim.
15, Walls, height, location, materials,
and deslgn.
16. Window boxes.
17
Sec. B The architectura style for a given To be approved by the Board of
location uniess specified to the Architects.
contrary, shall be in harmony with
the architecture of lts particular Complies

fnm E QN2 arch | context of an area o be reviewed and by the of
includes the height, scale, massing
separation between buildings, and
style, in regard to how buildings and
relate to each other within
a area.

district To be reviewed and approved by
are
restorations-
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elernants on

compatible with or
structures that occu same

levsl.

strest level:

a. Display windows or retall disgplay
area;

b. Landscaping; and/or

c. Architectural relief elements or

clements on
top of buildings.
The following
computation
A and M-Use

Districts:
a. Air-conditioning equipment room.
b. Elsvator shafts.
c. Elevator mechanical equipment
rooms.

d. Parapets.
Roof structures used only for
omamentat and/or aesthetic

not a combined
area percent of

below.

and

and

reviewed and

the of
Architects.

Complies

by the Board of

the Board
Architects.

Complies
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Reference #5

Reference #7

Reference #8

the provisions that no such

shall exceed height of more than
twenty-five (25) fee! above the roof
except for commercial buildings in
the Central Businass District (CBD)
where no such structure shall
axceed one-third 1/3) of the
allowable total

Bicycle storage.

To encourage the use of bicycles,
bicycle storage facilities (racks) shall
be provided. A minimum of fiva (5)
bicycle storage spaces shall be
provided for sach two hundred and
fifty (250) parking spaces or fraction

Facades in excess of one hundred
and fifty (150) feet in length shall
incoiporate vertical breaks,

stepbacks or variations in
bulk/massing at a minimum of one

hundred 1 foot
ot coverage,

No minimum or maximum building lot
coverage is required.

Drive through

Drive through facilities including but
not limited to banking facilities,
restaurants, pharmacies, dry
cleaners, elc. are prohibited access
fo/from Ponce de Leon Boulevard
from S.W. 8th Street to Bird Road,
Miracle Mile from Douglas Avenue to
Lejeune Road, and Alhambra Circle
from Douglas Avenue to LeJeune
Road.

Landscape open space area.

Each property shall provide the
following minimum landscape open
area {percentage based upon total
jot area):
a. Five (5%) percent for
nonresidential properties;,
b. Ten (10%) percent for mixed use
properties; and
c. Twenty-five (25%) percent for
residential properties.
The area shall be based
lot area, This landscape

To be and approved by the
Architects.

Complies [J
Does not comply [J

To be determined

To be reviewed Board
Architects.
Complies
To be reviewed and by the
Architects.
Comptlies

To be reviewed and approved by the Board
Architects.

Complies

To be reviewed and approved by the Board of
Architects.

Complies
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public

elevated areas planter boxes,
the Board of

and
be Architects.

Reference Lighting, street

complies O
Does not comply

To be determined

To and a by Board
#10 garages. Architects.

Complies

uses and/or residential units. Ground
floor parking is permitted on alley
frontages.

Parking facilities shall strive to
accommodate pedestrian access to

Reference #11 reviewed and approved by the
Architects.

Porte-cocheres are prohibited

access to/from Ponce de Leon Complies
Boufevard from 8.W., 8th Street to

Bird Road, Miracle Mile from

Douglas Avenue to LeJeune Road,

and Alhambra Circle from Douglas

Avenue
access. To be reviewed approved by the of

Architects.

All buildings, except accessory
buildings, shall have their main
pedestrian entrances oriented
towards adjoining streets.

Complies

Pedestrian pathways and/or

sidewa'ks shall be provided from all

pedestrian access points and shall

connect to one another to form a

continuous pedestrian network from

bulkiings, parking facilities, parking
etc. Wherever
shall be



»7
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Uplighting of landscaping within
and/or adjacent to pedestrian areas
(i.e., sidewsatks, plazas. open

on axterior building
facades.

The use of natiral matenials shall be

incorporated into the bass of the

building on exterior surfaces of

buitding. This includes but not imited

fo the following: marble, granite,
efc.

doors.

if overhead doors are utiized, the
doors are not directed towards
residentially zoned properties.

treatments.

inclusion of paver treatments in all of

the following locations:

a. Driveway entrances minimum of
10% of total paving surface.

b. Sidewalks. Minimum of 25% of
total ground level paving surface.

The type of paver shail be subject to

Public Works Depariment review and

approval. Poured concrete color

shall

Pedestrian amenities on both private
property and/or public open spaces
including a minimum of four (4) of
the following:

a. Benches.

b. Expanded sidewalk widths

beyond the property line.

¢. Freestanding information kiosk
(no advertising shall be
permitted).

. Planter boxes.

. Refuse containers.

Public an.

. Water features, fountains and
othar similar water features.
Ground and/or wali mounted.

Above amenities shal be consistent

in design and form with the City of

Coral Gables Master Streetscape

Q™o o

streets,

To be determined

To be reviewed and the Board of

Complies

be reviewed approved by of

Complies

and approved by the

To be
Aschitects.

Subject to review by approval by Public Works.

To be approved by the Board of
Comptlies OJ
Does not comply O]

Architect to provide additional information for BOA

Review.

bythe  of

To ba reviewed

Page 21
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“Sec. 5-1104.A

106.A

Sec.

Sec. 5-1402.A

In lieu of providing one (1) pass-
through of ten (10) feet in width
every two hundred and fifty (250)
feet of frontage, two (2)
pass-throughs can be combined to
provide one ) twenty (20) foot wide

parking.
The elow
grad in floor
area of the

total surface lot area. Underground
parking shall be located entirely
below the established grade as

s all

vehicles and associated a circulation

Code 5-11 for
general requirements that are
applicable to all rights-of-way and

within

comply
with items 1 thru 6 of Zoning Code
1
Other properties. with
items 1 thru 3 of Zoning Code
1056.C.

and configuration of
parking spaces.

1. Required parking space
dimensions:
a. Parallel parking spaces. 9
feet by 22 feet.
b. Angled parking spaces: 8%
fest 18 feet

be by Board
Architects,

0
a

Not applicable

iance required at time

Requires review and approval
and Public Works.

Requires review and approval by
and Public Works.

obe
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Zoning Review: (Project Name)

c. thereafter

Vertical parking lift systems shall be
limited to two-levels/decks and each
lift shall be controlled exciusively by



DRC Zoning Review: 4311 Ponce Attachment E..

Prepared by Planning Division — 04.21.2014
Review based on plans dated 04.04.2014

Existing designations and site data

Category Site Info
Property address 4225 & 4311 Ponce de Leon Boulevard
Property legal description Lots 36 — 43, Block 5, Industrial Section
Total site area (sq. ft.) 20,035 sq. ft.*
Existing property uses Commercial uses
Existing Comprehensive Plan Future Commercial Mid-Rise Intensity
Land Use Map designation(s)

Proposed Comprehensive Plan Future No change
Land Use Map designation(s)

Existing Zoning Map designation(s) C. Commercial.
Proposed Zoning Map designation(s) No change
Eligible to utilize Mixed Use District Located within North Industrial Mixed Use Zoning District;
(MXD) provisions eligible to utilize MXD Overlay District provisions.
Within Mediterranean Architectural Yes; Mediterranean Architecture required for projects utilizing
District (citywide) MXD Overlay District provisions
Within Coral Gables Redevelopment Yes

Infill District (GRID) (Traffic
Concurrency Exemption Zone)

Restrictive Covenant Restrictive Covenant required in Lieu of a Unity of Title.
*As per Miami-Dade County Property Appraiser website.

Category Site Info
Total site area (sq. ft.) 20,035 sa. ft.*
Floor area ratio (FAR) permitted — Not applicable. Mediterranean bonus required for MXD
Maximum 3.0 FAR (without projects located within MXD Overlay.
Mediterranean bonus)

Floor area ratio (FAR) permitted — 70,123 sq. ft

Maximum 3.5 FAR (with
Mediterranean bonus)

Floor area ratio (FAR) proposed 2.75 FAR; 55,138 sq. ft. (see Sheet 6.1)
Building height (feet) permitted 100’ (habitable); 125’ (with architectural elements)
Building height (feet) proposed 92’-4” (habitable); 93’-8" (with architectural elements)

*As per Miami-Dade County Property Appraiser website.

Note: The review provided herein is not a comprehensive analysis and is intended only to identify
concerns at the Development Review Committee (DRC) level in order to inform the applicant of any
changes that may be necessary to allow further review of the application to proceed.



DRC Zoning Review: 4311 Ponce

Zoning Code Review:

Zoning Code .

Section Reference/Provision

Sec. 3-401 Conditional Uses

Sec. 3-1201 Abandonment and Vacation of Non-
Fee Interests

Sec. 3-2001 Art in Public Places

Section 4-201. Mixed Use District (MXD)

Sec. 4-201.A.7.e.i MXD development permitted within
(C) Commercial and (1) Industrial
Districts only

Permitted Uses

Conditional Uses

Sec. 4-201.B
Sec. 4-201.C

D. Performance Standards

Sec. 4-201D.3 Minimum site area for an MXD
project/building within North and
South Industrial MXDs as defined on
the Official Zoning Map

Greater than forty-five (45) feet in
height shall provide a minimum of
one-hundred (100) feet of primary
street frontage and a minimum site
area of ten-thousand (10,000)
square feet.

Lot coverage. No minimum or
maximum.

Mixed use percentages. Provide
min. 8% total sq. ft., or entire ground
floor, whichever is greater, as ground
floor uses.

Mediterranean architecture.
Mandatory for MXD overlay districts
only.

Sec. 4-201.D.4

Sec. 4-201.D.5

Sec. 4-201.D.6

E. Building regulations.

Sec. 4-201.E.1 Encroachments of bridges over
rights-of way. Bridges traversing a
public right-of-way are permitted,
however, only if properties on both
sides are under same ownership.
Encroachments for balconies,
awnings, etc. Subject to applicable
regulations.

Floor area ratio. Up to 3.5 with
Mediterranean architecture.
Floors. No minimum or maximum
required.

Sec. 4-201.E.2

Sec. 4-201.E.3

Sec. 4-201.E4

Required/Provided

Conditional uses require review and approval by
the Planning and Zoning Board (PZB) and City
Commission (CC).

Requires review and approval from Public Works

Requires review by Economic Sustainability

Complies.

See list of permitted uses.

Conditional uses require review and approval by
the PZB and CC.

Complies

Complies

Complies

To be determined

Requires review and approval by the Board of
Architects.

Provide statement pursuant to Zoning Code
Section 5-603 defining the architectural style with
text and photographs that states how the
proposed building complies with the style.

Not applicable.

Subject to applicable regulations.

Complies.

Complies.
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Zoning Code
Section

Sec. 4-201.E.5 Floor-to-floor height. The minimum
floor-to-floor height shall be
permitted as regulated per the
Buildina Code.

Sec. 4-201.E.6 Height. The maximum allowable
building height(s), subject to
satisfying Article 3, Division 4,
Conditional Uses, for habitable
space for the following underlying
zoning designations and uses may
be granted as follows:

* Commercial Limited District: Up
to and including seventy-five (75)
feet.

+ Commercial District: Up to and
including one-hundred (100) feet.

* Industrial District: Up to and
including one-hundred (100) feet.

» Manufacturing uses: Up to and
including forty-five (45) feet.

Sec. 4-201.E.7 Heights of architectural elements,
etc. The maximum allowable
height(s), subject to satisfying Article
3, Division 4, Conditional Uses, of
architectural elements, spires, bell
towers, elevator housings or similar
non-habitable structures for the
following underlying zoning
designations and uses may be
granted as follows:

» Commercial Limited District: Up to
and including fifteen (15) feet.

* Industrial and Commercial
Districts: Up to and including
twenty-five (25) feet.

» Manufacturing uses: Up to and
including ten (10) feet.

Sec. 4-201.E.8 Height adjoining residential uses.
Properties which are adjacent to
residential district designations shall
be limited to a maximum height
(habitable space) of forty-five (45)
feet within one hundred (100) feet of
the adjacent right-of-way line. Ten
(10) additional feet are permitted for
roof top architectural elements, etc.
above the habitable height.

Reference/Provision

Sec. 4-201.E.9 Number of buildings per site. No
minimum or maximum required.
Sec. 4-201.E.10 Minimum of fifty (50%) percent of the

linear ground floor building frontage
shall include retail sales and service,
office, or restaurant or public realm
land area (i.e. plazas, courtyards,
open space, etc.) uses. Primary
street means a major street of
considerable continuity which serves

Required/Provided

Floor-to-floor height to be approved by the
Building Official.

Complies.

Maximum allowable building height: 100 feet
(Commercial District)

Proposed building height: 92.33 feet

Complies.

Not applicable

Complies

Complies
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Zoning Code

Section Reference/Provision

or is intended to serve as a major

traffic artery connecting large areas

of the community (City).

Minimum of forty (40%) percent of

the linear ground floor building

frontage shall include retail sales and
service, office, or restaurant or public
realm land area (i.e. plazas,
courtyards, open space, etc.) uses.

Secondary street means a minor

street used to access abutting

properties which carries traffic to the
primary street system.

Retail frontage on alleys. No

minimum or maximum required.

Up to a maximum of one hundred

and twenty-five (125) units per acre

except for properties in the Central

Business District (CBD) and the

North and South industrial Mixed

Use Districts. There shall be no

density limitations in the CBD and

the North and South Industrial Mixed

Use Districts.

Setbacks (buildings) -

Front. Up to forty-five (45) feet in
height: None. If over forty-five
(45) feet in height: Ten (10) feet.

Side: Interior side: None. Side
street: Fifteen (15) feet.

Rear: Abutting a dedicated alley or
street: None. No abutting
dedicated alley or street: Ten (10)
feet.

Balconies: Cantilevered open
balconies may project into the
required setback areas a
maximum of six (6) feet.

Applicants and property owners

desiring to develop pursuant to these

regulations may not seek a variance
for relief or reduction in building
setbacks. Reductions are only
permitted subject to the below listed
requlations.

Setback reductions and vertical

building stepbacks.

Sec. 4-201.E.11

Sec. 4-201.E.12

Sec. 4-201.E.13

Sec. 4-201.E.14

Sec. 4-201.E.15

Reduction in setbacks Setbacks
may be reduced subject to the
following standards:

Minimum percentage of open space.
A minimum of fifty (50%) percent of
the total ground floor square footage
received from the setback reduction
is provided as publicly accessible
street level open space and

Required/Provided

Complies.

Complies.
Complies.

No density limitation within North Industrial Mixed
Use Districts.

Complies.

1,500 sq. ft. of publicly accessible street level
open space and landscape area provided along
San Lorenzo Ave to comply with front setback
reduction on Ponce de Leon Blvd.

Does not comply.
Vertical building stepback is required. A minimum

ten (10) foot stepback is required at a maximum
height of forty-five (45) feet on all fagades.
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Zoning Code
Section

Sec. 4-201.E.16

Sec. 4-201.E.17

F. Design regulations.
Sec. 4-201.F 1

Reference/Provision

landscape area on the private

property. The open space is subject

to the following:

» Types of open space. Types of
open space shall be in the form of
courtyards, plazas,
arcades/loggias, pedestrian pass-
throughs and open atriums
adjacent/contiguous to the
adjacent rights-of-way.

*  Minimum area. Minimum square
footage of allowable open space
(i.e., plazas) shall be five hundred
(500) square feet.

* Include both hard and softscape
landscape improvements and
pedestrian amenities.

» Vertical volume. As a minimum
include a vertical volume of space
equal from street level to the first
floor height or a minimum of
thirteen (13) feet. Additional
height may be recommended.

* Restaurant seating. This area
may be used for outdoor
restaurant seating subject to
approval as provided for in these
regulations.

Vertical building stepbacks. A
vertical building stepback of a
minimum of ten (10) feet shall be
provided at a maximum height of
forty-five (45) feet on all fagades.
Additional vertical building stepbacks
may be required by the City Architect
and the entire Board of Architects to
further reduce the potential impacts
of the building bulk and mass.
Setbacks adjoining residential uses
Residential districts. All property
lines abutting a residential land use
or district shall be a minimum of
fifteen (15) feet. No reductions in
setbacks may be requested or
granted.

Street/lot frontage. No minimum or
maximum.

Arcades and/or loggias. Arcades,
loggias or covered areas may
accommodate up to eighty (80%)
percent of the entire linear length of
the building based upon the site plan
review criteria listed herein.
Encroachment of the entire length or
one hundred (100%) percent mav be

Required/Provided

Not applicable.

Complies.

Complies.
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Zoning Code
Section

Reference/Provision

Required/Provided

requested subject to review and
approval at the time of site plan
consideration. Limitations of
encroachments on corners of
buildings may be required to control
view corridors and ground floor
building bulk and massing.

Sec. 4-201.F.2

Architectural relief and elements.
Architectural relief and elements
(i.e., windows, cornice lines, etc.)
shall be provided on all sides of
buildings and include similar
architectural features as to those
provided on the front fagade. No
blank walls shall be permitted unless
required pursuant to applicable Fire
and Life Safety Code requirements.

Does not comply.

Sec. 4-201.F.3

Building support services. All
mechanical, electrical and other
associated support service areas
shall be located entirely within the
structure.

To be determined.

Determination requires full-size set of plans for
review.

Sec. 4-201.F.4

Facades in excess of one hundred
and fifty (150) feet in length, shall
incorporate design features with the
use of, but not limited to the following
items:

(a) Breaks, stepbacks or variations in
bulk/massing at a minimum of
one hundred (100) foot intervals.

(b) Use of architectural relief and
elements.

Does not comply.

Sec. 4-201.F.5

Lighting (street). Decorative street

lighting shall be provided and located

on all streets/rights-of-way subject to

the following:

+ Light fixtures/poles up to thirty-five
(35) feet in height.

» Subject to all other applicable City
code provisions.

To be determined.

Determination requires submittal of lighting plan.

Sec. 4-201.F.6

Lighting (building). External
illumination and lighting of buildings
shall require Planning Department
and Planning and Zoning Board
review and recommendation with
approval of the City Commission.

To be determined.

Determination requires submittal of lighting plan.

Sec. 4-201.F.7

Lighting (landscaping). Lighting in
the form of uplighting of landscaping
is encouraged.

To be determined.

Determination requires submittal of lighting plan.

Sec. 4-201.F.8

Outdoor storage. The storage of
materials, goods, merchandise, and
equipment for the purpose of display
and/or sales outside the confines of
any buildings or structures is
prohibited.

To be regulated by Code Enforcement.

Sec. 4-201.F.9

Overhead doors. Overhead doors
shall not face or be directed towards

Not applicable.
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Zoning Code
Section

Sec. 4-201.F.10

Sec. 4-201.F.11

Sec. 4-201.F.12

Sec. 4-201.F.13

Sec. 4-201.F.14

Reference/Provision

residential properties and/or adjacent

rights-of-way abutting residentially

zoned properties.

Paver treatments. Paver treatments

shall be included in the following

locations:

+ Driveway entrances.

+ Crosswalks.

+ Sidewalks. Minimum of twenty-
five (25%) percent of paving
surface.

Parking garages. Parking garages

shall include exterior architectural

treatments compatible with buildings
or structures which occupy the same
development and/or street.

Pedestrian access orientation. All

buildings, except accessory

buildings, shall have their main
pedestrian entrance or entrances
oriented towards the front property
line.

Pedestrian amenities. Pedestrian

amenities shall be provided on both

private property and/or public open
spaces including but not limited to
the following: benches, information
kiosks, lighting, bike racks, refuse
containers, sidewalk pavement
treatments, statuary, street
crosswalk paver treatments, wall
mounted fountains, water fountains
and other similar water features. All
pedestrian amenities shall be
permanently secured to the ground
surface.

Above amenities shall be consistent

in design and form with the

applicable City Public Realm Design

Manual.

Pedestrian design features for

building frontages (street level only).

On any front property line or primary

street, where an adjoining pedestrian

sidewalk is located, the following
design features shall be included:

» Display windows or retail display
area;

» Landscaping; and/or,

» Architectural building design
features.

The intent is to create pedestrian

and shopper interest, preclude

inappropriate or inharmonious
design, preclude blank walls of
building faces, and prohibit windows
from beina permanently obstructed.

Required/Provided

To be reviewed and approved by Public Service
and Public Works.

Does not comply

Complies.

To be determined.

Provide Pedestrian Amenities Plan indicating
compliance.

Complies
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Zoning Code
Section

Sec. 4-201.F.15

Sec. 4-201.F.16

Sec. 4-201.F.17

G. Landscaping
Sec. 4-201.G.1

Reference/Provision

Pedestrian pass-throughs/paseo.
Pedestrian pass-throughs shall be
provided for each two hundred and
fifty (250) linear feet or fraction
thereof of building frontage provided
on the primary street. The pass
through shall be subject to the
following:
*  Minimum of ten (10) feet in width.
* Include pedestrian amenities as
defined herein.
In lieu of providing one (1) pass
through of ten (10) feet every two
hundred and fifty (250) feet of
building frontage, two (2) pass-
throughs can be combined to provide
one (1), twenty (20) foot wide pass-
through.
Porte-cocheres. Porte-cocheres are
prohibited on front property line or
primary street.
Rooftop screening. All mechanical,
electrical, cellular antennas and
other similar roof top building support
services shall be entirely screened
from public view subject to the
discretion and approval from the
Board of Architects for design and
screening material. Landscaping
may be used as a screening material
at the discretion of the Board of
Architects.

Landscape open space requirements
are satisfied pursuant to the rights-
of-way planting requirements listed
in Article 5, Division 11.

H. Parking/vehicle storage

Sec. 4-201.H.1

Sec. 4-201.H.2

Sec. 4-201.H.3

Bicycle storage. To encourage the
use of bicycles, etc., a minimum of
one (1) ten (10) foot bicycle rack for
each two hundred and fifty (250)
parking spaces or fraction thereof
shall be provided. The location shall
be convenient to users and shall be
subject to review as a part of the site
plan review

Boats and recreational vehicles, or
similar accessory vehicles These
vehicles shall be parked and/or
stored within an enclosed garage,
area or structure.

Raised curbing. Six (6) inch raised
curbing shall be provided on all
streets abutting this use Curb cuts
and ramps for handicapped access
shall also be provided at all street

Required/Provided
Not applicable.

Complies

Complies

See review provided under Article 5, Division 11
below.

Does not comply.
Required parking: 144 spaces (see Sheet 6.1)

Provide a minimum of one (1) ten (10) foot
bicycle rack to comply with bicycle storage
requirement.

To be regulated by Code Enforcement.

To be reviewed and approved by Public Works.
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Zoning Code
Section

Sec. 4-201.H.4

Sec. 4-201.H.5

Sec. 4-201.H.6

Sec. 4-201.H.7

Sec. 4-201.H.8

Reference/Provision

intersections and points of
pedestrian crossing.
Loading/unloading areas. Off-street
loading standards and requirements
shall conform to the requirements as
set forth in Article 5, Division 14.

All loading/unloading areas and/or
facilities shall be within fully enclosed
areas with overhead doors.
Overhead doors shall remain closed
when not in use and after hours.
Nonresidential uses. Off-street
parking requirements shall be
calculated utilizing a blended parking
of one (1) space per two hundred
and fifty (250) gross square feet.

Restaurants shall require one (1)
space per cne hundred (100) gross
square feet.

On-street parking. On-street parking
must be provided on both sides of
the street on all primary streets,
unless encroachments for
arcades/loggias are requested.
Evaluation as to the amount of on-
street parking provided shall be
evaluated on a case-by-case basis.

On-street parking shall not be
included as satisfying the required
parking requirements.

On-street parking is encouraged on
alleys.

Removal of on-street parking shall
be subject to compensation to the
City based upon established City
provisions.

Parking garages. Ground floor
parking that is located and fronting
on a primary street is prohibited.
Ground floor parking is permitted on
secondary streets and shall be fully
enclosed within the structure and
shall be surrounded by retail uses.
Ground floor parking is permitted on
alley frontages.

Parking facilities shall accommodate
pedestrian access to all adjacent
streets and alleys.

Parking space limitations. Restricting
and/or assignment of off-street
parking spaces for individual tenant

Required/Provided

Complies.

Complies

To be approved by Parking, Public Service and
Public Works.

Complies.

Complies.
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Zoning Code
Section

Sec. 4-201.H.9

Sec. 4-201.H.10

Sec. 4-201.H.11

Reference/Provision

or users with the use of signage,
pavement markings, etc., are
permitted.

Residential uses. Off-street parking
requirements shall conform to the
requirements as set forth in Article 5,
Division 14.

Surface parking areas. Surface
parking lots and/or similar vehicle
use areas are prohibited to front on
primary streets.

Valet parking areas. If valet parking
is desired, the valet parking drop-off
areas shall be provided on private
property. Tandem and/or stacking of
parking are prohibited

|. Sanitation and service areas

Sec. 4-201.11
J. Sians
Sec. 4-201.J.1

K. Streets and alleys.
Sec. 4-201.K 1

Sec. 4-201.K2

Sec. 4-201.K.3

General. In accordance with Article
5. Division 17.

General. In accordance with Article
5, Division 19.

Streets and alleys. Property owner(s)
may request the vacation and/or
abandonment of a public right-of-way
subject to the criteria and procedure in
Article 3, Division 12.

Driveways. Vehicular access to
parking garages shall be from a side
street or alley. Vehicular
egress/ingress, including but not
limited to driveways, service drives,
drive-throughs, etc., may be
permitted from a primary street and
shall be evaluated as part of site
plan review based upon the project
design in relation to existing
surrounding circulation. Valet access
points are exempt from these
provisions.

Vehicular entrances for drive-through
facilities, garage entrances, service
bays and loading/unloading facilities
should be consolidated into one (1)
curb cut to reduce the amount of
vehicular penetration into pedestrian
sidewalks and adjoining rights-of-
way.

Sidewalks. Pedestrian pathways
and/or sidewalks shall connect to
one another to form a continuous
pedestrian network from parking

Required/Provided

Complies

Complies

Valet parking, if utilized, must be located entirely
on private property and is prohibited from parking
in any proposed tandem parking spaces.

To be determined.

Provide Signage Plan indicating size and location
of all proposed exterior signage.

Not applicable.

Complies.

Complies.
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Zoning Code
Section

L. Utilities.
Sec. 4-201.L1

Sec. 4-201.L.2

M. Miscellaneous
Sec. 4-201.M 1

Sec. 4-201.M.2

Reference/Provision

garage entrances, parking areas,
primary and secondary pedestrian
entrances, etc. Wherever possible
pathways shall be separated from
vehicular traffic.

Sidewalks shall be located on both
sides of all streets with a minimum of
four (4) foot unobstructed clear area.
The clear area shall be unobstructed
by utility poles, fire hydrants,
benches, trash receptacles,
newspaper stands, light poles,
planter boxes, telephone booths or
other similar temporary or permanent
structures (traffic signage shall be
exempt from the above regulations).

Sidewalks at points of street
intersections or pedestrian crossing
shall be sloped in such a manner as
to accommodate handicapped
access with the use of two (2) curb
cuts and/or ramps at each street
intersection.

Underground utilities. All utilities
shall be installed underground in
accordance with the provisions of
Article 5, Division 22.

Above ground utilities. Above
ground, fagade, roof, mechanical
and electrical facilities shall be
appropriately screened to entirely
hide the facility in accordance with
the provisions of Article 5, Divisions
11 and 18. Screening materials may
include landscaping, walls, fencing,
etc., to achieve one hundred (100%)
percent opacity. Approval of type of
screening shall be determined at
time of site plan review.

Configuration of land. The parcel
proposed for development shall be a
contiguous unified parcel with
sufficient width and depth to
accommodate the proposed uses.
Public rights-of-way or other public
lands shall not be considered as a
separation.

Easements. The City may, as a
condition of approval, require that
suitable areas for easements be set
aside, dedicated and/or improved for
the installation of public utilities and

Required/Provided

To be determined.

Provide Underground Utilities Plan/Statement
indicating that all utilities will be installed
underground.

To be determined

Additional screening of any above ground utilities
may be required by the Planning and Zoning
Board and/or City Commission as conditions of
approval of the Site Plan Review.

Complies.

To be determined by City Commission
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Zoning Code
Section

Sec. 4-201.M.3

Sec. 4-201.M.4

Sec. 4-201.M.5

Sec. 4-201.M.6

Reference/Provision

purposes which include, but shall not

be limited to water, gas, telephone,

electric power, sewer, drainage,
public access, ingress, egress, open
space, recreation and other public
purposes which may be deemed
necessary by the City Commission.

Encroachments into public rights-of-

way. Any encroachments,

construction and penetration into the
rights-of-way shall be subject to the
following:

* The property owners shall be
responsible for all maintenance of
all encroachments and/or property
of all surrounding public rights-of-
way, including but not limited to
the following: landscaping (hard
and softscape); benches; trash
receptacles; irrigation; kiosks;
plazas; open spaces; recreational
facilities; private streets, etc.
subject to all the provisions for
which the development was
approved as may be amended.

« The property owners shall be
responsible for liability insurance,
local taxes, and the maintenance
of the encroachment and/or
property.

Live work units.

» Each live work unit, including the
garage (if applicable), shall be
separated by walls from other live
work units or other uses in the
building, and shall have the ability
to construct separate entrances to
each use in the future.

Public realm improvements (see

Sec. 4-201 M.5 for provisions).

Transfer of density and floor area

ratio within the site plan. The density

and floor area ratio may be
transferred throughout the
contiguous unified parcel.

Section 4-302. Commercial District (C)

Sec. 4-302.B

Sec. 4-302.C

Sec. 4-302.D

Permitted uses

Conditional uses.

Performance standards

Required/Provided

To be reviewed and approved by Public Works.

Not applicable.

To be reviewed and approved by Public Works

Complies.

To be reviewed and approved by Zoning when
obtaining certificate of use permits

Conditional uses require review and approval by
the PZB and CC.

Proposed mixed-use building must comply with
Performance Standards for mixed-use
developments in overlay district. See review
provided under “Section 4-201. Mixed Use
District (MXD)” above.
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Zoning Code
Section

Sec. 4-302.D.7. Additional standards for mixed-use development.

Sec. 4-302.D.7.a

Sec. 4-302.D.7.b

Sec. 4-302.D.7.c

Reference/Provision

Mix of uses. In order to encourage
the creative mix of uses, all mixed-
use developments shall have at least
eight (8%) percent or the entire
ground floor of retail commercial
and/or office uses. The remaining
portions of the building may be uses
permitted in the underlying zoning
desianations.

Floor area ratio. When multiple
uses are incorporated into a
development of four (4) or more
stories in height, the floor area ratio
(FAR) for each use shall be
individually determined and the
highest of the individual FAR shall be
applied to the entire development.
Ground floor treatment. Ground floor
treatment for all Mixed-Use
development shall be pedestrian
oriented, and shall detail the percent
glazing to solids, pedestrian-oriented
landscaping and other features when
submitting to the Board of Architects
and Plannina and Zonina Board.

Article 5 — Development Standards.
Article 5 — Development Standards. Division 11. Landscaping

Sec. 5-1104.A

See Zoning Code Sec. 5-1104.A for
general requirements that are
applicable to all rights-of-way and
private properties within the City.

Section 5-1105. Landscape requirements

Sec. 5-1105.A

Sec. 5-1105.C

Public rights-of-way. Must comply
with items 1 thru 6 of Zoning Code
Section 5-1105.A.

Other properties. Must comply with
items 1 thru 3 of Zoning Code
Section 5-1105.C.

Required/Provided

Complies.

Complies.

Complies

Compliance required at time of final plan
submittal.

Requires review and approval by Public Service
and Public Works.

Requires review and approval by Public Service
and Public Works.

Article 5 — Development Standards. Division 14. Parking, Loading, and Driveway Requirements

Sec. 5-1402.A

Dimensions and configuration of
parking spaces.

1. Required parking space
dimensions:

a. Parallel parking spaces: 9 feet
by 22 feet.

b. Angled parking spaces: 8%
feet by 18 feet.

c. Disabled parking spaces shall
be dimensioned in accordance
with Chapter 11 of the Florida
Building Code.

2. Wheel stops and curbing

To be determined.

Determination requires full-size set of plans for
review.
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Zoning Code
Section

Sec. 5-1402.B

Sec. 5-1406.A

Sec. 5-1409.B

Sec. 5-1410.A

Sec. 5-1410.B.2

Reference/Provision

Precast concrete wheel stops or
curbing shall be provided for all
angled parking spaces that abut a
sidewalk such that cars are
curbed at 16 ¥z feet. The balance
of the required depth of the
parking spaces between the
wheel stop or curb and the
sidewalk shall be clear of
obstructions.

3. Required aisle widths. Minimum
required aisle widths for two-way
aisles: 22 feet.

Dimensions of loading spaces.

Loading spaces shall be at least 10

feet wide by 25 feet long, and shall

provide at least 14 feet of vertical
clearance.

General

1. All triangles of visibility that are
required by this Section shall be
kept clear of visual obstructions
between a height of 2% feet and 8
feet above the established grade.

2. Visibility triangles for driveways
and intersections that are not
included in this section shall be
provided in accordance with the
standards set out in the Miami-
Dade County Code.

Calculation of parking requirements.

(List parking requirements for each
proposed use as specified in Zoning
Code Section 5-1409. Amount of
required parking)

Tandem spaces. Tandem spaces
are permitted as required parking;
provided each set of tandem parking
spaces are assigned to an individual
unit within the buildina.

Vertical parking lifts may utilize the
following maximum percentages to
satisfy required parking spaces,
calculated at two (2) parking spaces
per lift, within a building:

a. Twenty percent (20%) of the first
fifty (60) parking spaces; and,

b. Ten percent (10%) from fifty-one
(51) spaces to two-hundred (200)
spaces,; and

c. Five (5%) percent thereafter.

Vertical parking lift systems shall be

Required/Provided

To be determined.

Determination requires full-size set of plans for
review.

To be determined.

Determination requires full-size set of plans for
review.

To be determined

Determination requires full-size set of plans for
review. Applicant’s parking calculations are
provided on Sheet 6.1.

Complies.

Each set of tandem parking spaces must be
assigned to the same individual unit (commercial
or residential) within the building.

Complies.

Each lift must be controlled exclusively by one (1)
tenant/unit.

Page 14



DRC Zoning Review: 4311 Ponce

Zoning Code
Section

Reference/Provision

Required/Provided

limited to two-levels/decks and each
lift shall be controlled exclusively by
one (1) tenant/unit.

Page 15



MIAMI DAILY BUSINESS REVIEW

Published Daily except Saturday, Sunday and
Legal Holldays
Miami, Miami-Dade County, Florida

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF MIAMI-DADE:

Before the’undersigned authority personally appeared
MARIA MESA, who on oath says that he or she is the
LEGAL CLERK, Legal Notices of the Miami Daily Business
Review #k/a Miami Review, a daily (except Saturday, Sunday
and Legal Holidays) newspaper, published at Miami in Miami-Dade
County, Florida; that the aftached copy of advertisement,
being a Legat Advertisement of Notice in the matter of

CITY OF CORAL GABLES LOCAL PLANNING AGENCY
PUBLIC HEARING - OCTOBER 8, 2014

inthe XXXX Court,
was published in said newspaper in the issues of

09/26/2014

Affiant further says that the sald Miami Daily Busingss

Review is a newspaper published at Miami in said Miami-Dade
County, Florida and that the said newspaper has

herstofore been continuously published in sald Miami-Dade County,
Florida, each day (except Saturday, Sunday and Legal Holidays)
and has been entered as second class mail matter al the post
office in Miami in said Miami-Dade County, Florida, for a

period of one year next preceding the first publication of the
attached copy of advertisement; and affiant further says that he or

she has neither nor promised any person, firm or corporation
any discount, refund for the purpose
of in the said
to and before me this
2014
(SEAL)
MARIA MESA tome
MERCEDES 2ALDIVAR

MY COMMISSION RBEO2DTYE
EXPIRES June 20 20 7

ccm
14071 398-0133

Attachment C

CITY OF CORAL GABLES, FLORIDA
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

CITYPUBLIC LOCALPLANNING AGENCY (LPAY
HEARING PLANNING ANDZONING BOARD
DATES/TIMES WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 8, 2014,

6:00 - 9:00P.M.

LOCATION CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS,

CITY HALL, 405 BILTMORE WAY,
CORAL GABLES, FLORIDA, 33134

PUBLIC NOTICE is heraby given that the City of Caral Gables, Florlda,
Local Planning Agency (LPA) Planning and Zoring Board {(PZB) will
conduct Public Hearings on the followirg:

Ilerms 1 and 2 are related.

. An Ordinance of the City Commission of Corai Gables, Florida

requesting a change of zoning pursuant to Zoning Code Article 3,
"Development Review”, Division 14, "Zoning Code Texi and Map
Amendments”, from Muiti-Family 2 Distrigt (MF2) to Commerclai
District (C) for the conglruction of a commercial office building
referred to as "Ofizzina”, including a drive-through bank facility, for
the portion of the properly legally described as Lols B and 7, Block
26, Douglas Section {1200 Ponce de Leon Boulevard), Coral
Gables, Florida; and praviding for severability, repealer and an

effeclive date. N

. An Ordinance of the Clty Commission of Ceral Gables, Forida

requesting conditional use site plan review pursuant to Zoning
Code Articie 3, "Davelopment Revlew", Division 4, *Conditional
Uses®, and Aricie 5, "Developmenl Slandards", Division 1,
"Accessory Uses”, Section 5-115, “Drive-lhroughs, walk-up
windows, and aulomatic teller machines {ATM)", for a drive-
through bank facility on property designated Commercial District
(C) adjscent lo a Multi-Family 2 Districl (MF2} zoned distrlct, and
legally descritied as Lots 6-10, Block 26, Dauglas Section {1200
Ponce de Leon Boulevard), Coral Gables, Florida; and including
required condilions, providing for severability, repealer and an
effective date.

Items 3 through 5 are ralated.

. An Ordinance of the Cily Commission of Coral Gables, Florida

requesting an amendment 1o the Fulure Land Use Map of the City
af Coral Gabies Comprehensive Plan pursuant to Zoning Code
Article 3, "Development Review", Division 15, "Comprehensive
Plan Text and Map Amendmenis”, and Small Scale amendment
pracedures (ss 163.3187, Florida Statules), from "Residential
Mulli-Family Medium Density" to "Commercial Mid-Rise Intensity”
for the property legally described as Lols 11-16, Block 203, Riviera
Section Parl 14 {1500 Venera Avenue), Coral Gables, Florida;
and, providing for severability, repealer and an effective date.
{LPA review)



ssion of Coral Gables, Florida

effeclive date.

as "Shorma Park Tower" on the
ots 11-16, Block 203, Riviera
avenue), Coral Gavles, Florida;

including reguired conditions; providing foran effective date.

date.

ng and Zoning
q Division
les, Florida

ar26 14-3.324/2352716M
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City of Coral Gables g i
Courtesy Public
Hearing Notice £
" 13
September 26, 2014
Applicant: 4225 Properties, LLC & 4311 Ponce de Leon, LLC
Application: Mixed Use Site Plan Review
4311 Ponce de Leon Boulevard, Coral Gables,
Property: .
Florida
Public Local Planning Agency/Planning and Zoning Board,
Hearing - October 8, 2014, 6:00 - 9:00 p.m.,
Date/Time/ City Commission Chambers, City Hall,
Location: 405 Biltmore Way, Coral Gables, Florida, 33134

PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given that the City of Coral Gables, Florida, Local Planning Agency (LPA)/ Planning and
Zoning Board (PZB) will conduct a Public Hearing on October 8, 2014 on the following application at the Coral
Gables City Commission Chambers, City Hall, 405 Biltmore Way, Coral Gables, Florida:

A Resolution of the City Commission of Coral Gables, Florida requesting mixed use site plan review
pursuant to Zoning Code Article 4, “Zoning Districts”, Division 2, “Overlay and Special Purpose Districts”,
Section 4-201, “Mixed Use District (MXD)” for the mixed use project referred to as “4311 Ponce” on the
property legally described as Lots 36-43 , Block 5, Industrial Section (4225 and 4311 Ponce de Leon
Boulevard), Coral Gables, Florida; including required conditions; providing for an effective date.

All interested parties are invited to attend and participate. Upon recommendation by the Board, the application
will be scheduled for City Commission consideration. Please visit the City webpage at www.coralgables.com to
view information concerning the application. The complete application is on file and available for examination
during business hours at the Planning Division, 427 Biltmore Way, Suite 201, Coral Gables, Florida, 33134.
Questions and written comments regarding the application can be directed to the Planning Division at
planning@coralgables.com, FAX: 305.460.5327 or 305.460.5211. Please forward to other interested parties.

Sincerely,

City. of Coval Gakles, Flovide



4311 Ponce
(4311 Ponce de Leon Blvd)

Mixed Use Site Plan Review

November 12, 2014

Application Request

+» Mixed Use Site Plan Review (MXD)
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3D Rendering

Ground Floor Plan
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Landscape Plan
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South Flevation (San Lorenzo Ave)

East Elevation (SW 39" Ave)
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North Elevation (Interior Side)

Legislative History
6 Lots (Lots 38-43)

< Resolution No. 2008-38 (adopted 03.11.08) - Approved

mixed use site plan on 6 lots:
7-story / 83'-6" high with a penthouse (to 95'-6")
46,150 sq. ft. of primarily commercial office and
ground floor retail space
4 live/work residential units on 1% floor
182 parking spaces provided, 83 of which are
mechanical lifts, within 3 levels of parking

11/6/2014
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Legislative History
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Legislative History

K/

% Prior request did not step back all sides of the building 10 feet
above the 45’ building height
% Staff at the time erred by not requiring step back as required




Legislative History

Site Plan Information

Total site area

FAR x total site area =
Total square footage of
Building height

Retail

Office

Residential

Floor area ratio (FAR)

3.5 FAR

70,123 sq. ft.

Up to 100™-0”

No density limitation
within MXOD

Proposed

20,035 sq. ft. (0.46 acres)
2,76 FAR

55,178 sq. ft.

8 floors / 93™-7"

11,457 sq. ft.

24,133 sq. ft.

8 two-bedroom units

11/6/2014



11/6/2014

Off-Street (on-site) Parking Information®

Required Proposed

16 spaces 160 spaces

Retail Use 46 spaces 406 spaces

Office Use 82 spaces 82 spaces

Total oft-street parking 144 spaces 145 spaces

Additional parking

. 1 space
rovided P

* Zoning Data provided by applicant, See Sheet 6.1 of applicant’s submittal package.

% Loss of 1 on-street parking space

< Vertical topiary art walls as public art require
approval by the Arts Advisory Panel, Cultural
Development Board, and Board of Architects
prior to City Commission’s submittal




11/6/2014

Setbacks / Stepbacks

The proposed Application does not comply with Section
4-201.E for mixed-use projects:

Provide 10" foot front sethack (Ponce de Leon) for
building over 45’ in height (o’ provided for building
height of 93’-7"); or

To reduce required front setback, provide 10’ foot
stepback for building exceeding 45’ in height on all
sides (o’ provided)

Setbacks

Required” Proposed

Front setback bldg. height > 45’
(Ponce de Leon Blvd)

Side street setback

_(San Lorenzo Ave)

Interior side setback
(north)

Rear setback

(SW39'" Ave)

* Setback reductions may be awarded for MXD projects approved for Mediterranean
style design bonuses. Setback reductions are only permitted for MXD projects
subject to providing vertical building stepbacks.

10



11/6/2014

Stepbacks

Required® Proposed

Front stepback o’ up to 45 and Complies for
(Ponce de Leon Blvd) 10’ over 45’ bldg. height habitable space onl
Side street stepback o’ up to 45 and None - Does not
(San Lorenzo Ave) 10’ over 45’ bldg. height ~___ compl
Interior side stepback o’ up to 45’ and None - Does not
(north) 10’ over 45’ bldg. height comply
Rear stepback o’ up to 45 and None - Does not
(SW 39'" Ave) 10’ over 45’ bldg. height comply

* Vertical building stepbacks are required for MXD buildings when setback
reductions are requested.

MXD Projects with Stepbacks
Village Place

11
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South Elevation

anor

\Y

7 2]
p—
o
(2]
=
]
)
it
v o}
w
S
>
W
doed
v
=
S
=5
a
<
=

Merrick

— East Elevation

MXD Projects with Stepbacks

Merrick Manor

13



MXD Projects with Stepbacks
4535 Gables Ponce 11

Review Status

% Board of Architects approved preliminary on 6.12.14

< Building setback/stepback not in compliance with the
Zoning Code

% Traffic comments have been addressed

%+ Landscape comments have been addressed with
recommendation conditions if project is approved

< Neighborhood meeting was held on 10.28.14 per code

11/6/2014

14



11/6/2014

Findings of Fact - Mixed Use Site'Plan.Review
Staff finds the standards in Section 3-408 are not satistied.

% Inconsistent with the Comprehensive Plan Policy DES-1.1.5

% Does not comply with Zoning Code’s setback/stepback for a
mixed use project

% Does not comply with the Zoning Code’s MXOD provisions

Recommendation

% The Planning and Zoning Division based upon the
complete Findings of Fact contained within this Report
recommends denial.

4311 Ponce
(4311 Ponce de Leon Blvd)

Mixed Use Site Plan Review

November 12, 2014
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